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Corporate Profile
XN

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code:
01169) (the “Company”), a subsidiary of Haier Group,
is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are principally engaged in the research,
development, manufacture and sale of washing
machines and water heaters in the PRC under the
brand name of “Haier”. The Group is also engaged in
the integrated channel services business for other
home appliance products such as refrigerators,
televisions and air-conditioners, of both “Haier” and
“non-Haier” brands, substantially broadening its
sources of revenue and driving its profit growth.

Founded in 1984, Haier Group is headquartered in
Qingdao, Shandong Province, the PRC and is today
one of the world’s leading white goods home appliance
manufacturers engaging in the research, development,
production and sale of a wide variety of household
appliances (including the white goods) and consumer
electronic goods in the PRC. The products of Haier
Group are now sold in over 100 countries.
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Simplified Business Structure
EEEBRBE
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Haier

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd:
BHEREEGRAR
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Corporate Information
RAEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. YANG Mian Mian (Chairman)
Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LI Hua Gang

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan
Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Yinong
Mr. YU Hon To, David
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Alternate Director

Mr. GUI Zhaoyu (alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

Principal Board Committees

Audit Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Mr. WU Yinong

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Remuneration Committee

Mr. WU Yinong (Committee Chairman)

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

Nomination Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)

Mr. WU Yinong

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)
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Strategic Committee

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie (Committee Chairman)

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG and Mr. GUI Zhaoyu
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. NG Chi Yin

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong Law

DLA Piper Hong Kong

As to Bermuda Law

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKER IN HONG KONG

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER IN THE PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Six-month interim period end . 30 June

Financial year end . 31 December
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Corporate Information (continued)

[ FEHR ()

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3513

35/F., The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Haier Industrial Park
No. 1, Haier Road
Qingdao, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F., Tesbury Center
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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TELEPHONE NUMBER

+852 2169 0000

FAX NUMBER

+852 2169 0880

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited:
01169

WEBSITE

www.haier-elec.com.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Porda Havas International Finance Communications Group
Units 2009-2018, 20/F, Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone Number (852) 3150 6788
Fax Number : (852) 3150 6728
E-mail Address : haier-elec@pordahavas.com
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Chairman’s Letter
* & K

ACHIEVEMENTS OF 2012

We saw in year 2012 that, despite downturn of overall home appliances
market, the company persisted in customer value creation and
delivered another record performance:

Our revenue as reported was RMB55.615 bilion in 2012,
representing an increase of 11.0%, while profit before tax was
RMB2.244 billion. In 2012, profit attributable to owners of the
Company reached RMB1.695 billion, representing an increase of
20.4%. Diluted earnings per share was RMB66.18 cents, up by
19.2%.

In terms of single brand’s sales volume, Haier washing machines
continued to rank first in the world for the fourth consecutive
year, and the global market share was enlarged to 11.8%,
representing an increase of 0.9% as compared to 10.9% last
year. Haier water heaters accounted for 19.9% of the domestic
market share, and continued to rank first in the domestic market.
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I. ACHIEVEMENTS OF 2012 (Continued)

o Our capabilities to serve customers have been further enhanced.
The coverage of our Haier brand store channel and Goodaymart
channel was further expanded, with more than 8,500 sales points
at county level in aggregate. In 2012, we achieved 24-hour
delivery in 1,500 counties nationwide, and our “direct-delivery-to-
town” fulfilment capability was extended to cover 30% of town
level sales points nationwide. With rapid development of online
sales, at the TMALL.COM November 11th Shopping Festival (-
SHEE+—BEYES), the sales value in our Haier Flagship Store at
TMALL.COM was more than RMB70 million, making us
champion for both sales value and user recognition under the
home appliance category.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)
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I. ACHIEVEMENTS OF 2012 (Continued)

The accomplishment in 2012 was derived from our relentless focus on
superior customer value creation during the entire shopping journey.
We implemented the following strategies:

° Through an open research and development platform tailored to
personalized customer demand, we have designed such creative
and technologically-advanced products as “Crystal” series
washing machines, which redefined market space and enabled
our washing machine business to obtain further market share
and lead the industry trends. We implemented the multi-brand
strategy with three brands: “Casarte”, “Haier” and “Leader” to
serve under-developed segments and help growing our market
share.

o We focus on superior customer experience such as product
customization, on-time delivery, delivery with installation services,
as well as ongoing after-sales services. We invested in the end-
to-end capabilities combining sales, logistics and after-sales
services in order to support the “last mile” strategy. Such move
has significantly expanded the scale effect and expansibility of
the integrated channel services business segment.

. TRENDS ANALYSIS

| shared with our shareholders the following three trends in the Annual
Report of last year:

° The competition dynamic of the home appliance market will
transform from price war into customer value creation

o For home appliance distribution in 3rd and 4th tier markets, the
multi-layer agency model of trickling down from the city, county
to town levels will change

° The Internet has brought impacts on conventional home
appliance channels; we see the inevitable integration of virtual
and physical networks

We have seen all these three trends being confirmed in 2012, and they
will continue to have a significant influence on the industry in 2013. The
evolution of the home appliance market, retail industry and distribution
business in China will accelerate, and the home appliance brands will
have to adapt themselves to this trend. | want to discuss these trends
further.

12 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012
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TRENDS ANALYSIS (continued)

The customers will be more brand-conscious, and the home
appliance industry will be more consolidated. With the rising
consumption power and importance of word of mouth, the branding of
home appliance becomes more appealing to consumers, and the
market share of famous brands will increase further. However, this
does not imply that we will gain market share easily as the competition
among major brands will remain fierce. As customers are becoming
more demanding and increasingly require personalized products and
services, the winning formula of brands is to innovate products that
exceed the customers’ expectations.

The on-line penetration of home appliances purchasing will
increase especially large home appliances. China’s number of
internet users ranks first in the world, and the online penetration is ever
increasing. The online users of inland provinces such as Henan and
Yunnan are also growing at a fast pace. On the other hand, the variety
of choices, high transparency of prices and relatively low prices offered
by online and mobile phone shopping channels have attracted a large
number of internet users to turn to purchasing home appliances on the
internet from physical stores. In the past, the online sales of large home
appliances were suppressed by bottleneck problems such as high
logistic costs, complaints on delayed delivery and installation, and
inability to handle large shipments at lower cost. However, it is
expected that in the foreseeable future, the consolidation of third party
logistic services industry in China will accelerate and the logistics and
distribution services will be further enhanced. Consequently, the
operating environment will improve and the proportion of online
purchasing of large home appliances will increase.

User experience from multi-channels and entire shopping journey
will influence brand competition of home appliance producers. In
the era of internet and mobile communication, consumers can search
products online and order them in physical stores, or they can also
touch and feel in physical stores and order online. It is inevitable for the
brands to manage online channels, outside retail chains and channels
of own distributors at the same time, so that consumers can enjoy the
seamless shopping experience.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)

X E R ()

TRENDS ANALYSIS (continued)

For direct selling channels, brand producers need to clearly understand
consumers’ interest at different stages of the shopping process, such
as when they show shopping interests, consider selection of goods,
choose shopping channels, compare orders, accept delivery,
installation and after-sale services. They also need to enhance
capabilities of rendering customers specific services and personalized
solutions, and to manage well customers experience on the whole
shopping process. The internet channel allows consumers to make
online comments based on their own user experience, which may have
an impact on other channels because of transparency and trust. This
means that the brands will face significant losses if they fail to preserve
their brands in online channels. The distributor channel will continue to
be the key channel for most of the brand producers for a long time. In
addition to high-quality products, the brands are required to provide
more added values, such as reducing the costs of distributors’ supply
chain, advancing store operation management and assisting
distributors to implement e-commerce strategy. This helps to create a
sustainable co-inherent interest body between brand producer and
distributors.

The current distribution and retail model of home appliance
products is evolving, and | expect to see two general phenomena:
“Less Big Stores (XJE#4)” and “Larger Small Stores (“MNERK)”.
Through effective layout and plentiful exhibitions, physical stores
provide a pleasant shopping environment and stimulate consumption.
The large physical stores in good locations used to be assets, but now
the huge legacy of physical stores will be a disadvantage due to
growing rental costs and increasing labor costs. As a result, the
number of large stores in the 1st and 2nd tier cities will decrease. As to
physical stores in rural areas, they would provide more variety of
products and create better fulfillment experience to consumers with the
support of online display and the integration of regional warehouses
and logistics networks.
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STRATEGIC FOCUS FOR 2013

After significant development and integration of our businesses in 2012,
the Company has further identified its strategic initiatives for 2013. |
would like to highlight four actions below:

Our “just-in-time” operating model has the effect of increasing
market shares of the washing machine and water heater
businesses thereby fostering our industry leadership. The
customers’ purchasing decision depends on brand and product
features. This drives us to introduce global suppliers and
research and development resources with an open mind,
continuously launch “trend-defining and innovative” products by
leveraging our large scale modular production facilities, and
create differentiated user experience through our vertically
integrated operation model, which combines consumer demand
interaction, research and development, production, distribution
and after-sale services. In terms of brand and channel strategy,
we will continue to tap into new markets using multi-brand
strategy and promote product customization to increase sales
through emerging channels such as the Internet.

To improve the operating efficiency of channels and deeply
exploit the value of the existing two self-developed channels.
Firstly, we will improve store operation efficiency from Haier
Exclusive Stores and Community Stores, then Goodaymart
Stores. Aiming at creating the superior user experience and
improving the operating profitability of franchise stores, we will
promote installation of E-store system and the adoption of
delicacy management for stores. Secondly, we will promote the
“direct-delivery-to-town” model nationwide. Such model allows
us to reduce distribution layers through directly distributing and
delivering goods from regional distribution center to town level
retail shops, and has been well-developed in Shandong province.
Thirdly, we establish distribution and storage center in county
level that can serve our county level distributors, and helps to
lower their inventory and transportation costs.
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Chairman’s Letter (continued)
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STRATEGIC FOCUS FOR 2013 (continued)

To develop vertically-integrated distribution service capabilities,
increase the sales of third-party brands and expand into more
appliance categories. For brand introduction development, we
will emphasize on developing nationwide “Turn-Key” brand
services business, deepen the cooperation relationship with
suppliers and increase our profitability. As to product categories,
we will stretch the development of high-potential area, such as
small home electric appliances and lifestyle consumer electronic
products, and penetrate our businesses into communication and
household products through alliance and joint venture means.

To emphasize on developing end-to-end large items distribution
capability and develop our logistics business as an open platform
for third parties. From long-term perspective, the “last mile”
logistics capability that can provide direct-delivery and installation
services to customers in towns is a key competitiveness for
developing channel business. Such capability is also a crucial
element for customers experience in selling large items. In 2013,
we will develop our end-to-end distribution capability for other
types of large item products such as furniture and continue to
strengthen distribution capability of home appliances.

To reinvent management model and provide organizational
support for growth. We have almost 20,000 employees, our
businesses spread all over the world and penetrate into villages
and towns. The core theme of organizational revolution in the
future is to maintain the entrepreneurial vitality of all staff and
provide a development platform to frontline staff. We will aim to
abolish the existing rigid hierarchy of positions and position-
based remuneration system, and establish our organization as a
self-driven “co-inherent interest body”. It implies that the frontline
staff in an organization serving customers may work closely with
internal product development team and external distributors so
as to integrate internal and external resources, create and share
value. Such an organization has no boundary with market, and
has the strongest vitality.
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward to future, the Chinese companies’ competitive strength
of low-cost manufacturing will continue to be impacted by domestic
production costs increase and the technological innovation. In addition,
the traditional retailing model and marketing model will be under more
challenges from the Internet, and the Internet retailing will return
customers the power over the brands. We always remind our
management team that the past success was merely a consequence
of luckily catching up with the pace of the era. An ever winner will soon
face fierce challenges or become a force-out. Therefore, in order to
sustain our long-term growth, we must weed out the old mindset and
think about how to seamlessly follow consumer trend and respond to
consumer needs under the two main trends: the era of the Internet and
new industrial revolution.

As a large organization, various organizational inertia accumulated
would reduce our market competitiveness and affect our market agility,
and thereby hinder our capabilities of continuously delivering growth
higher than that of our peers. Accordingly, the only way to survive is to
keep innovating, including our management innovation and strategic
innovation. As our future success is entirely dependent on the strength
of our talent pipeline, we will build the Board into a more open,
diversified and constructive one and introduce talents with e-commerce
and distribution background.

In 2013, the Company will aim to outgrow the industry, accompanying
with sustainable profitability objectives and ensuring high-quality
customer services. To achieve this, on one hand, we will re-organize
our management structure to fuel growth by achieving operating
efficiency, as well as empowering managers and frontline employees
act like owners of the business. On the other hand, we need to
vigorously explore new clients and serve emerging needs through new
models. | am very confident about our growth strategies as well as our
management team and look forward to witness the sustainable
development with all our shareholders in 2013.

Chairman’s Letter (continued)
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Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREERE

The directors and senior management of the Group as at the date of this
report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. YANG Mian Mian, aged 71, has served as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company since January 2005. Ms. Yang is
responsible for determining corporate strategies and overall management of
the Group. She graduated from Shandong Industrial Institute, which is now
known as Shandong University, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in
19683. As one of the founders of the Haier Group, she has been in charge of
the overall management of the white goods business since 1984. She is
currently the president of Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and the
chairman of Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “A-Share Company”)).

Ms. Yang is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Beijing Haier
Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongqging Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Chongqging
Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier Electric Co., Ltd., Foshan
Shunde Haier Intelligent Electronic Co., Ltd., Haier Holdings (BVI) Limited,
Hefei Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Economy and Technology
Development Zone Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Drum
Washing Machine Co. Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia Trading Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao Goodaymart Supply Chains Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Washing
Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics Service Co. Ltd. and Wuhan Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie, aged 46, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since 12 November 2009. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee, nomination committee and strategic committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhou graduated from the Huazhong University of Science and
Technology, the PRC with a Bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in 1988. He
has a Master’s degree in corporate management from the Ocean University
of China, the PRC and has completed his Doctoral courses with a diploma in
Management from the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC. He joined the Haier
Group in 1988 and has over 20 years of experience in the sales management
and enterprise management. He has been appointed as Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company and resigned as the General Manager of the
Company from 18 March 2013. He is also an Executive Vice President of
Haier Group.

Mr. Zhou is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Chongqging
Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongging New Goodaymart Electronics Sales Co.,
Ltd., Goodaymart (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd., Haier Electronics Sales
(Hefei) Co., Ltd., Haier Electronics Sales (HK) Co., Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart
Logistics Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Supply Chains Co., Ltd., Qingdao
Haier Logistics Co., Ltd, Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliances Co., Ltd., SHC
International (HK) Ltd., Ocean Vast Enterprises Ltd., Haier Group E-commerce
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics Service Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier
Electronics Sales Service Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Bolang Housewares Trading
Co., Ltd. (formerly Pegasus Telecom (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.), HH Retalil
Limited and Haier International Business Corporation Ltd., Haier Electrical
Appliances Fourth Holdings (BVI) Limited, Haier Washing Machines Holdings
(BVI) Ltd., Haier Water Heaters Holdings (BVI) Ltd., Haier Holdings (BVI) Ltd.,
and Sunlit Enterprise International Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREEE (FE)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. LI Hua Gang, aged 43, has served as a Chief Operation Officer of the
Company since 12 November 2009, and has served as an Executive Director
since 19 April 2010. Mr. Li, graduated from the Huazhong University of
Science and Technology, the PRC in 1991 with a Bachelor's degree in
Economics. He joined the Haier Group in 1991 and has since held a number
of senior positions in the sales and marketing functions with his expertise in
the sales management in the 3rd and 4th tier markets of the PRC.

Mr. Li is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Chengdu Haixin
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Chongqging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd.,
Chongqging New Goodaymart Electronics Sales Co., Ltd., Fujian Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Goodaymart (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd.,
Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) Co., Ltd., Haier Electronics Sales (HK) Co.,
Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd., Hunan Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd, Shandong Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Xuchang Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd., Yantai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Hefei Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Suzhou Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Liaoning Goodaymart Trading Co., Ltd., Xinjiang Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Subei Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Tangshan Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Wuhan Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Shanxi Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Nanchang Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Bolang Housewares Trading Company Limited (formerly
Pegasus Telecom (Hong Kong) Co., Limited), HH Retail Limited, Foreland
Agents Limited, Coreland Limited, Impressive Holdings Limited, Haier
Washing Machines Holdings (BVI) Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Ke Song, aged 62, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since December 2001 and has been re-designated as Non-
executive Director with effect from 12 November 2009. Mr. Wu is also the
Deputy Chairman of the Company. Mr. Wu is responsible for worldwide
business development of the Group and liaison with relevant government
officials. He graduated from Shandong Industrial Institute, the PRC which is
now known as Shandong University, the PRC in 1974 and joined the Haier
Group in 1984. He is also a vice chairman of Haier Corp and a director of
Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Holdings (BVI) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Wu has resigned as an Non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 16 December 2012 as he has reached the age
of retirement. After his resignation, Mr. Wu has been retained as a senior
consultant to the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan, aged 46, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since December 2001 and has been re-designated as Non-
executive Director with effect from 12 November 2009. Mr. Liang was
previously mainly responsible for strategic procurement and overall quality
control of products of the Group. He is currently responsible for identifying
market opportunities and white goods business strategies formulation of the
Company. He received a Bachelor’s degree of Industry from the Xian Jiaotong
University, the PRC and has 24 years of experience in the manufacture of
household electrical appliances, particularly in raw material procurement
function and white goods business. He is also an Executive Vice President of
Haier Corp, the General Manager and Vice Chairman of Qingdao Haier Co.,
Ltd. and a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Beijing Haier
Logistics Co., Ltd., Qingdao Economy and Technology Development Zone
Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Chongging Haier Drum Washing Machine Co.,
Ltd., Foshan Haier Drum Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Haier
Investment and Development Holdings (BVI) Limited.

Ms. Janine Junyuan FENG, aged 44, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since 24 August 2011. She is also a
member of the remuneration committee, nomination committee and strategic
committee of the Company. Ms. Feng joined the Carlyle Group in 1998, she
is currently a Managing Director of the Carlyle Group. Ms. Feng has been
involved in many direct investments by the Carlyle Group in consumer,
financial and industrial companies in the PRC. Prior to joining the Carlyle
Group, Ms. Feng worked for Credit Suisse First Boston’s New York office,
engaging in investment banking business. Ms. Feng is currently serving as a
non-executive director of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd., a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 2601) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
601601), since June 2007, a non-executive director of Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
157), since November 2009. Ms. Feng received an MBA degree from Harvard
Business School in 1996.

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. GUI Zhaoyu, aged 41, has been appointed as the alternate Director to
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng since 24 August 2011. Mr. Gui is a director of the
Carlyle Group and is focused on Asia buyout opportunities with a particular
focus on opportunities in the PRC. Mr. Gui is primarily based in Beijing. Prior
to joining the Carlyle Group, Mr. Gui was a Vice President of the Investment
Banking Department at China International Capital Corporation in Beijing, and
a Vice President of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited in Hong
Kong. He also has working experience at the Special Investment Department
of CIC and two state-owned companies, and had founded his own logistics
company. Mr. Gui received his MBA degree from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology Sloan School of Management.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREEE (FE)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Yinong, aged 50, has served as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since January 2005. Mr. Wu graduated from
Portland State University in the United States of America with a Master’s
degree in Business Administration in 1994. He is currently the Managing
Director of China Investment Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings
Limited. He has been in the investment banking industry for more than 16
years.

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2007. Mr. Yu is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm
with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is the Vice Chairman of
MCL Partners Limited, a Hong Kong based financial advisory and investment
firm. He serves as an independent non-executive director of several other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely China Datang Corporation
Renewable Power Co., Limited, Great China Holdings Limited, China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited, Media Chinese International Limited,
One Media Group Limited, Playmates Holdings Limited, Sateri Holdings
Limited, Synergis Holdings Limited, TeleEye Holdings Limited, VXL Capital
Limited and China Resources Gas Group Limited.

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2007. He is currently the
Managing Director of China Resources Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.. He has
worked in various international financial institutions since 1993, including N. M.
Rothschild & Sons, JP Morgan and DBS. He has many years of experience in
corporate finance. Dr. Liu has a Ph.D and Master degrees from the Faculty of
Economics, University of Cambridge and a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
from Sichuan Institute of Finance and Economics, China. Dr. Liu is currently
also an independent non-executive director of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited and Honghua Group Limited, both of which are publicly listed
companies on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. XIE Ju Zhi, aged 47, graduated from Shandong Economics College in July
1989 specialised in Economics and Management. He has held senior positions
in Electrothermal Product division and East China division of Marketing and
Promotion Division of the Haier Group, and served as the general manager of
the Customer Service Operation Company of the Haier Group since August
2002. He has over ten years of experience in service management. Currently,
he is mainly responsible for the Group’s customer service and channel business
expansion of community stores in the 1st and 2nd tier markets. He also serves
as the vice chairman of the Subcommittee on Household Electric Appliances
Service of National Technical Committee on Household Electric Appliances of
Standardization Administration of China, and the vice chairman of the presidium
of the China National Household Electric Appliances Service & Maintenance
Association.

Mr. DIAO Yun Feng, aged 41, graduated from the Southeast University, the
PRC in 1995. He joined the Haier Group in 1995 and has held a number of
senior positions including the director of overseas marketing management
of the Haier Group and the general manager of Haier International Business
Corporation Limited. He has experience in managing domestic small home
electric appliances business, particularly has 18 years of experience in
overseas market expansion and overseas corporate management. He is
currently the director of small home electric appliances division of the Group,
and is responsible for the global small home electric appliances segment of the
integrated channel services business.

Mr. HUANG Xiao Wu, aged 35, was appointed as Deputy General Manager
of the Company in November 2009. Mr. Huang holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering from the University of Chong Qing. Mr. Huang is
responsible for assisting the General Manager in implementing the Group’s
corporate development strategy. Mr. Huang has 15 years of extensive
experience in banking, investment and corporate finance. Prior to joining the
Group, he had worked with a commercial bank and several investment
banking firms.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREREEE (FE)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. PENG Jia Jun, aged 35, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 10 February 2009. Mr. Peng has a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of International Business and Economics,
China and a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from Northeastern
University, China. He is currently a Doctoral Candidate in accounting of
Ocean University of China. He joined the Haier Group in 2000 and has since
held a number of senior financial positions in Haier Group finance department,
Haier Australia trading company and washing machine business of the Group.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 1 March 2013, Mr. Peng did not
act as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company due to the reallocation of
appointments within the Haier Group.

Mr. Tao Jun, age 48, has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since 1 March 2013. Mr. Tao has a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Murdoch University in Australia and his Bachelor
degree in Economics from Zhongnan University of Finance and Law in China.
Prior to joining the Haier Group, Mr. Tao was an executive director of a
household electrical appliance company listed in Hong Kong, a financial
director of a joined venture owned by a large state-owned company and a
blue chip Hong Kong property company. Mr. Tao has over 20 years of
financial management experience in retail, distribution and household
electrical appliance business. Mr. Tao also has extensive experience in
merger and acquisition business as he has worked in investment field over 10
years.

Mr. SHU Hai, aged 46, has served as the General Manager of washing
machine product division of the Company since June 2009. Mr. Shu has a
Master’s degree in International Trade from Ocean University of China, the
PRC. He joined the Haier Group in 1995 and has since held a number of
senior positions in the washing machine business. He is currently responsible
for the sales, research and development and production management of the
washing machine business of the Group.

Mr. SUN Jing Yan, aged 42, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company until August 2011 due to the reallocation of appointments within
the Haier Group. Mr. Sun has been the General Manager of the Haier Group’s
Electrothermal Product Division since 2005 and is mainly responsible for the
operation of the Group’s water heater business. Mr. Sun graduated from
Shandong Institute of Light Industry, the PRC in 1993 with a Bachelor in
Engineering in Machine Design and Manufacture. He joined the Haier Group
in 1998 and has since held a number of senior positions in the Electrothermal
Appliance Department of the Haier Group. He has over 19 years of extensive
experience in water heater business.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. WANG Zheng Gang, aged 40, has served as the General Manager of
Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd., since March 2003, and has currently
served as the director of logistics division of the Group. Mr. Wang graduated
from Tianjin University in 1995. He also graduated from the Xian Jiaotong
University, the PRC with a Master’s degree in Logistics Engineering in 2007.
He has 17 years of experience in the manufacture of household electrical
appliances, particularly in raw material procurement function and logistics
business. He is currently responsible for developing the logistics business of
the Company and identifying related market opportunities.

Mr. REN Xian Cun, aged 39, graduated from Jilin Industrial University in 1997,
and obtained his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from
the University of International Business and Economics, the PRC in 2005.
He joined the Haier Group in 1997 and has held senior positions such as the
general manager of Haier Air-conditioning in the PRC and the general manager
of various regional centers of Haier. He has 17 years of experience in market
planning and marketing management in the home electric appliances industry,
particularly has professional experience in the operation and management of
the home electric appliances channels. He is currently the director of Haier
products of the Group, and is mainly responsible for Haier products segment of
the integrated channel services business.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. NG Chi Yin, aged 47, joined the Company on 18 March 2009 as
Company Secretary. Mr. Ng graduated from the Faculty of Business
Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
degree in business administration. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 24 years of experience in
auditing, finance and company secretarial matters.
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In 2012, the Group’s core businesses generated significant value for our
shareholders by achieving high-quality growth in overall revenue and profit.
The Company’s overall profitability continued to improve. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company elevated to a new record level, surged by 20.4%
year-on-year to RMB1.695 billion. Diluted earnings per share increased by
19.2% year-on-year to RMB66.18 cents.

During the year,

° the Group’s revenue grew steadily despite tough industry environment.
Revenue for 2012 grew by 11.0% year-on-year to RMB55.615 billion.

° segment result from the washing machine business increased by
23.3% year-on-year to RMB1.105 billion, segment result from the water
heater business increased by 30.8% year-on-year to RMB500 million,
and segment result from the integrated channel services business was
RMB735 million, it increased by 12.6% year-on-year to RMB841 million
when excluding the loss of RMB106 million incurred in respect of the
joint venture established with Home Retail Group (UK).

° cash flow improved significantly. Net operating cash flow increased by
32.8% year-on-year to RMB1.74 billion, accounting for 102.7% of the
net profit attributable to shareholders. Cash balance increased by
35.5% year-on-year to RMB5.368 billion.

During the year, the profit growth was attributable to the increased market
share, improved operating margin of the white goods manufacturing
business, as well as the steady growth of Haier brand products distribution
and the rapid increase in third-party brand products distribution of the
channel services business, which were driven by the significantly strengthened
“last mile” service capability.
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MARKET ENVIRONMENT OF THE HOME
APPLIANCES INDUSTRY

In 2012, following a slowdown in China’s economic growth and the gradual
termination of several stimulus policies, including the “Rural Area Subsidized
Electrical Appliance Purchase Policy” (“Rural Subsidy”), the retail sales of
home appliances were weak and declined compared to that of last year.
According to a market research report from China Market Monitor Co., LTD (the
“China Market Monitor Report”), the monitored total retail sales from 846
cities and counties declined 6.6% year-on-year during the year. However, the
overall demand of the home appliances market could be in better shape than
what is stated in the above-mentioned figures, as more home appliance sales
occurred online instead of in physical stores due to the increasing popularity
of online and mobile shopping, but such rapid-growing sales may not have
been included in the monitored sales.

New demand in the 1st and 2nd tier markets was temporarily suppressed
due to the high home appliances penetration rate and the governmental
control policy on real estate market. However, withstanding the headwind of
the gradual phase out of the “Rural Subsidy”, the following factors could still
underpin home appliances sales in the 3rd and 4th tier markets over the next
few years: (a) under-saturated penetration rate in rural areas; (b) China’s
continuous urbanization process; and (c) rising income level in the rural areas.

During the year, affected by factors such as uncertain European sovereign
debt outlook and slow recovery of US economy, the worldwide export growth
for home appliances was slower than 2011. However, the export growth for
China’s home appliances remained positive, largely attributable to the
continued healthy demand from emerging markets and the Asia Pacific
region, and the manufacturing competitiveness of Chinese home appliance
producers.

Business Review (continued)
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Business Review (continued)
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IMPACT OF GOVERNMENT POLICIES

In June 2012, the Chinese government introduced the new energy-saving
subsidies for home appliance products to encourage consumption of energy-
saving home appliance products and stimulate industrial upgrade. The policy
did not contribute significantly to home appliance sales in 2012 as the
implementation of such rules will take time. However, due to the stricter
requirements of this policy in terms of technological standards and
manufacturers’ scale, the gradual implementation of the policy and the
government’s efforts to further promote energy-efficiency, this policy will help
to optimize the product composition of the industry, and the industry’s market
share will increasingly be concentrated in the hands of the leading companies
with stronger R&D and innovation capabilities over time. With Haier’'s
achievements in the research and development of energy-efficient
technologies over years, the Group earned the highest number of bid-winning
products among the washing machines manufacturers in the product
promotion list under the “Energy-Saving Product Promotion Project”
announced by the National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC”),
and had 30 models of water heater products won the bidding.

Having lasted for nearly five years, the “Rural Subsidy” expired in phases from
November 2011 to January 2013. In order to mitigate the possible market
impact caused by the expiration of such policy, the Group has adjusted its
product mix since 2011, which included reducing categories of bid-winning
products in the total sales and promptly launching new products to replace
bid-winning products. This enabled the Group to capture the upgrade
consumption and to boost its business development.
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SEGMENT STRATEGIES

Washing Machine Business

In 2012, Haier washing machine won the prizes of the “Top Brand” and the “Top
Manufacturer” among global washing machines. According to the market
survey regarding the global home appliances market conducted by
Euromonitor in 2012, “Haier” brand washing machine ranked first in the world
for the fourth consecutive year and held a global market share of 11.8% in
terms of the single-brand sales volume, increased by 0.9% as compared to
last year.

During the year, sales of the Group’s washing machine business in the
overseas markets amounted to RMB1.523 billion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 10.1%. In the domestic market, the Group’s washing
machine continued to maintain its leading position and hold a market share of
31.2% in terms of sales volume, up by 4.2% year-on-year, according to
China Market Monitor Report. In the domestic market, the sales of washing
machines through the Group’s self-developed channel accounted for 61% of
its national sales.

During the year, the washing machine business recorded stable growth, and
outperformed industry growth rate in both urban markets and rural markets.
This was mainly due to the Group’s market share gain from the superior
products, well recognized brands and efficient sales channels. The Group
consistently focused on product innovation to create new market demand in
a mature market, and adopted a multi-brand strategy to meet the needs of
various market segments. In addition, our Just-In-Time model alleviated
customers’ pressures on inventory and working capital, which was welcomed
by distributors under this tough market environment.

The Group has always been keen on product innovation and focused on
personalized customer demand. The Group enhanced its capability to
develop new products through the integration of global leading supplier
resources, and utilized the research and development capabilities of its five
R&D centers located at China, Asia, Europe, Americas and Australia. During
the year, the Group cooperated with leading international suppliers, such as
Fisher & Paykel, and developed the Haier “Crystal” Series front-loading
washing machines. The “Crystal” Series dominated the consumption trends
with breakthrough in technological areas including quietness, cleaning and
speed. Such series redefined market opportunity and allowed us to gain
further market share.
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Business Review (continued)

FBEEE)

SEGMENT STRATEGIES (continued)

Washing Machine Business (Continued)

In order to meet the needs of various market segments, the Group tapped
into markets using a multi-brand strategy. While maintaining the dominance
of Haier brand, two sub-brands “Casarte” and “lLeader” capture the
consumption upgrade trend and the personalized customer demand during
the age of the Internet. “Casarte” targets the high-end market to seize the
opportunity from home appliance consumption upgrade in the 1st and 2nd
tier markets. “Leader” brand, with its modular customization, provides
customers with products without unwanted functions, and its largest
consumer groups are young people and consumers from the 3rd and 4th tier
markets, who favored of Leader’s high performance to price ratio. During the
year, sales volume from washing machines under the “Leader” brand
recorded rapid growth, increased by 90% year-on-year.

The Group has long applied the Just-In-Time model that alleviated retail
partners’ pressures on inventory and working capital, which is especially
welcomed by small and medium-sized dealers and retailers in the sluggish
market environment with tight liquidity. Our customer loyalty thus has been
increasing and our distribution network has been expanding.

As a result of adherence to investment in new technologies for years, the
Group has made significant achievements in the research and development
of energy-efficient technologies. The NDRC, Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology (‘MIIT”) and Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) jointly
announced the washing machine energy-efficient product promotion catalog
under the “Energy-Saving Product Promotion Project”, in which, Haier's
washing machine products, including top-loading automatic washing
machines, top-loading twin-tub washing machines and front-loading washing
machines were all included in the promotion list. The Group gained the
highest number of subsidized products and ranked No. 1 in the Energy
Saving Leading Company List under the 2012 “Energy Star” Product Catalog
announced by the MIIT, achieving a leading position in the “green
consumption upgrade” and the industry transformation towards energy
saving products.
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SEGMENT STRATEGIES (continued)

Washing Machine Business (Continued)

Haier washing machines have gained global recognition thanks to its
innovative design and advanced technologies. At the 2012 China Home
Appliances Industry Summit Forum organized jointly by the Development
Department of Information Resources of the State Information Center and
China Household Electrical Appliances Association, Haier washing machine
brand was selected as one of the Global Leading Washing Machine Brands
of the year and awarded the Leading Inverter Technology for Washing
Machines Award and Innovative Washing Machine Product Award. In Awards
for Design Excellence organized by the USA Design Journal, Haier stood out
from more than 1,500 competing products attributable to the perfect design
of its Touch Sense High-Efficiency Washer and won the “Platinum Award”.
Haier was the only Chinese washing machine brand awarded with this prize.

Water Heater Business

The Group’s water heater business continued to maintain a rapid growth
during the year. According to data from the China Market Monitor Report, the
Group’s water heaters earned a domestic market share of 19.9% in terms of
sales volume, continued to rank first in domestic market, of which, domestic
market share of the Group’s electric water heaters in terms of sales volume
increased by 1.3% to 28.5% as compared to that of last year. We remained
the leader of the industry. The market share of the Group’s gas water heaters
also increased to 7.9% in 2012, representing an increase of 0.3% as
compared to 2011. During the year, 81.1% of Group’s water heaters were
sold through self-developed channel.

While maintaining a leading position in the electric water heater business, the
Group builds broad product categories including gas, solar and heat pump
water heaters, providing further momentum for business growth; of which,
gas water heaters achieved rapid growth, with a sales volume increase of
over 30% year-on-year. In order to enhance our water heater full-range
service capabilities, the Group developed over 1,100 water heater exclusive
stores as at the end of the period through a comprehensive layout nationwide,
providing professional sales and services to our customers.

The Group attained a series of technological achievements in the water heater
business through enhanced technological innovation and R&D. In 2012, the
Group successfully developed energy efficient Haier integral airsource heat
pump water heaters and Haier “Flame” Series gas water heaters, which won
the “Product Innovation Award” and “Design Innovation Award” respectively
at the 2012 IFA exhibition in Germany. It was the fourth time that Haier water
heaters won awards at IFA exhibition, which fully demonstrated the
capabilities of Haier water heaters producer, as a world expert of water heater
solutions, in fulfilling consumers’ needs with its creativity.

Business Review (continued)
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Business Review (continued)
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SEGMENT STRATEGIES (continued)

Water Heater Business (Continued)

Based on studies on customers’ needs, Haier launched upgraded water
heaters solutions which could enhance energy efficiency of home appliances
and accelerate the pace of energy saving and emission reduction in the home
appliance industry. In the promotion list of energy efficient water heaters
under the “Energy-Saving Product Promotion Project” announced by NDRC,
30 models of Haier’s water heater products won the bidding. In “2011 Leader
List of Energy-saving Product Enterprises of China” issued by Energy
Efficiency Label Management Center of China National Institute of
Standardization in May 2012, Haier Group ranked first in the “List of Energy-
Saving Product Enterprises in China” and won the first 8 seats in the ranking
list of water heaters.

Integrated Channel Services Business

In 2012, the Group’s integrated channel services business centered on
competitive strength of “Integrating the Four Networks”, which consisted of
distribution network, logistics network, services network and virtual network,
providing customers with end to end integrated solutions. During the year, in
addition to deepening penetration of its channel networks, the Group
improved operating efficiency of its own channel, which was critical for the
continuous healthy growth of Haier brand products and expansion of non-
Haier products distribution business.

Distribution Unit

In 2012, the Group advanced the information management system and
strengthened existing brand’s distribution management, which resulted in
improving operating performance of its existing nationwide brands. The
coverage of the Group’s franchise network continued to expand and
deepened its penetration into towns and villages. By the end of 2012, the
Group had over 8,000 Haier Exclusive Stores and over 800 Goodaymart
stores selling multi-brands home appliance at the county level and over
30,000 sales points nationwide.

The Group installed E-Store system in town-level Haier Exclusive Stores to
help them advancing information management and keeping track of
procurement, sales and inventory; established store operating manual on
Delicacy Store Management for franchisees to enhance the store image,
brand recognition and customers’ shopping experience; provided staff
training to franchisees to improve performance of store managers and
salespersons. The information management and Delicacy Store Management
have helped franchisees to improve operating efficiency and better manage
their inventory, which in return increase loyalty of the Group’s customers.
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SEGMENT STRATEGIES (continued)

Distribution Unit (continued)

During the year, the Group piloted Delicacy Store Management Program in
Zhengzhou. Well-trained supervisors were sent to the stores to ensure
smooth implementation of the program, which help improve sales
performance of the stores. During the year, the average sales of the 17 stores
participated in this pilot program has increased by more than 30% year-on-
year.

At the end of 2012, there were close to 2,400 Goodaymart stores which
mainly sold third party brands, an increase of 20% compared to the beginning
of the year. The Group introduced more third party brands with good potential
and provided more comprehensive services to our business partner. The
Group entered into master distribution agreements with a number of small
home appliance suppliers to introduce more home appliance categories and
enrich brands portfolio. The Group also entered into “Turn-Key” service
agreement with third party brands to provide more value-added services,
including product customization, marketing, distribution and services, to
enhance the loyalty of the brands. Furthermore, with “direct-delivery—to-town”
model, the Group strengthened its control over franchise network terminal.

Logistics Unit

During the year, the Group developed its “direct-delivery-to-town” capability
to cover 30% town level markets through consolidation of warehouse
resources at the town level, systematic design of delivery routes and
optimization of delivery routes for returning defective products. Such services
reduced distribution layers, as well as logistics cost and inventory risk for our
customers. The Group also installed GPS devices to monitor the entire
delivery process. With enhanced delivery scheduling capability which includes
better inventory management and effective back-end IT system support, the
group improved both scheduled and on-time delivery services. With its
efficient B2B and B2C delivery and logistic solution services capabilities, the
Group has attracted various third party customers including, leading home
appliance brands, furniture brands and online retailer platforms. Haier’'s
delivery services for Tmall customers are highly regarded as it is 45% faster
than industry average. Haier was also selected as the Best Partner in 2012 by
Amazon China.

Business Review (continued)

5 EE (E)

S
okr

)

N

o HE T

ER AEBESNBBEETEACEEE
) SR BE o 12 AN 8 4D B 9 B AT S 8 H 0
EHEAD WEFENBAELOERETS
RHMBRHEMEE UENEFRSHERA -
FRNLEBEBEREMNMEATR 2NESE
I8 B 1% 19 B 5 $5 6 R b 3 0 i B B0% A I o

T

BEHR XEF=77R2BENWABIEMERE
3T 2,400% - 8 B 9] 48 :20% © 7N 5 [E 18 i
TRE=ZTmEREER BERTHRERE
ENRPEA - AKEEZHNRERER
VoS SEZHRERBALADH
RET LERBERE LBERE=TTRE
R mERemsE SHERE‘EZEERY
HRREHmEHRE - I BHEZELEIEA
MERRBARBEIRERERN  AEEK
e TN E MR IR ) -

Y RE T

RERN RAEBEBRBBRAMALNERER -
RAEERAREXRES  URELTRBHER
RYROE XS BR2E0%H R Y
MERRXIBEREF, ZERBERE
HBREMR ¥ BRETEPHNYRMKAE R
FERR AEETBBELEGPSHKRE @ LA
ZREERAB - AEHBBREARETE
ZHWNEN BREFNFEETERA RN
BIBITRAE R - BOE R X E RIROBCER
% o 5 = M8 B2B K B2CHEE & & ¥ ik R R 5
ERBEN NEEERIIZRE=ZNFF
BEREAERERE FAMENFELTET
E-BRMARHEEPRENEKERYEEZEE
B HITEFHKFA%M Z B E oo b
S BB EFETBEFR2012FKES
1ERHE]

BEEREERARAA —T——F4R

35



Business Review (continued)

FBEEE)

SEGMENT STRATEGIES (continued)

After-sale Service Unit

The Group further developed its service networks, and the number of after-
sale service providers nationwide has exceeded 15,000 by the end of 2012.
Haier’s services are ranked the first on varies online retailing platform with a
“Excellent” rating for 98.76% transactions, far exceeding industry average.
The Group continued to expand its third party customer portfolio and
provided comprehensive range of services, including feedback on product
quality, customer sampling, installation and repair and maintenance to 13
external home appliance manufacturers. Haier’'s after-sale services awarded
the first place in the “Customer Satisfaction Evaluation in China” conducted
by China National Institute of Standardization for the eighth consecutive year,
and was one of the first batch enterprises to receive “Five-star After-sale
Services” certificate issued by China General Chamber of Commerce.

E-commerce Unit

During the year, ehaier.com took leadership role in providing integrated
delivery and installation services among the home appliance online retail
players. At present, ehaier.com has covered 2,558 districts and counties
nationwide, among which more than 1,000 districts and counties have
realized delivery within 24 hours. Moreover, Haier flagship store operated by
e-Haier Team at tmall.com has become the best-seling home appliance
brand at tmall.com.

To increase sales on online channels by product customization is a strategic
focus of the Group. In September 2012, the Group launched a TV
customization campaign at tmall.com. At the initial customer interaction
section, 1,000,000 interested online buyers voted to determine functional
characteristics of the TV sets, including the size, frame, clarity, energy
consumption, color and interface within 8 days. The Group then arranged
order and production based on the voting results. Finally, 10,000 customized

LCD TVs of 3 different models were sold out in only 2 days.

In November 2011, we set up a joint venture with Home Retail Group (UK) to
develop multi-channel retail business in China. The joint venture was
established to develop our general merchandise distribution capability
especially through online channel, by leveraging on the experience of the joint
venture partner in multi-channel retail management. In early 2013, due to
adjustment of strategic focus of the joint venture partner and after the detailed
evaluation on the competition landscape of E-commerce in China, we have
decided to terminate the joint venture, and we believe that such decision is
beneficial to the interests of the shareholders as a whole. After the termination
of the joint venture, we remain optimistic to the outlook of multi-channel retail
business, particularly the Internet channel. We will strengthen investment in
future, and remain committed to develop our core competitive capability on
logistics and distribution, installation and services to support our online sales.
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The Group achieved substantial financial performance in 2012. For the year
ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB55,615,047,000 representing an increase of 11.0% as compared to
RMB50,089,857,000 (restated) in 2011. The profit attributable to owners of
the Company was RMB1,695,122,000, representing an increase of 20.4%
from RMB1,407,458,000 (restated) in 2011. The basic earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was RMB70.73 cents,
representing an increase of 15.6% from RMB61.19 cents (restated) in 2011.

1. ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT
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Financial Review (continued)
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued)

During the year, the increase of revenue was partly due to the stable
growth of the washing machine business and the rapid growth of the
water heater business of the Group. Revenue from the washing
machine business amounted to RMB13,277,283,000 in 2012,
representing an increase of 8.7% as compared to RMB12,214,870,000
in 2011. The revenue from the water heater business amounted to
RMB4,489,460,000 in 2012, representing an increase of 17.3% as
compared to RMB3,828,303,000 in 2011. The fast revenue growth in
the water heater business was mainly attributable to the Group’s
continuous product and technological innovation, as well as alliance
with the Group’s channel department to vigorously develop the
specialized water heater sales network for capturing new demand
growth in the 1st and 2nd tier markets and meeting rapid growth
demand in the 3rd and 4th tier markets.

On the other hand, the integrated channel services business was a
major driver of the Group’s revenue growth, and its stable growth in
2012 also made a substantial contribution to the revenue of the Group
during the year. The revenue for the integrated channel services
business in 2012 amounted to RMB50,768,583,000, representing an
increase of 11.9% as compared to RMB45,377,390,000 (restated) in
2011, boosting the Group’s total revenue.

The revenue increase in the integrated channel services business was,
on one hand, primarily derived from the Group’s deep understanding of
the rural home appliance market in China, its unique business model
that integrates virtual and physical networks and its Just-in-Time model
that meets our customers’ needs with greater, faster, better and more
economical services. On the other hand, despite the current economic
downturn, the revenue increase was also partly attributable to the
continued increase of market share achieved by leveraging on its
brand’s strength, as well as innovative and differentiated products. In
2012, the Group’s after-sale service and e-Haier businesses made
contributions to the integrated channel services business, generating a
revenue of RMB1,055,891,000, representing an increase of 154.8% as
compared to RMB414,420,000 in 2011 (note: the after-sale service
business commenced revenue contribution in the 2nd quarter of 2011).
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

In 2012, the profit attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB1,695,122,000, representing an increase of 20.4% from
RMB1,407,458,000 (restated) in 2011. The basic earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was RMB70.73
cents in 2012, representing an increase of 15.6% from RMB61.19
cents (restated) in 2011. In 2012, the Group’s EBITDA (earning before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) was RMB2,384,332,000,
representing an increase of 22.3% from RMB1,950,345,000 (restated)
in2011.

Gross Profit Margins

In 2012, the Group’s gross profit margin of the washing machine
business was 27.8%, flat with 2011. Gross profit margin of the water
heater business was 43.0%, representing an increase of 1.1% from
41.9% in 2011. Through adopting a modular approach to improve
production efficiency, strengthening research and development of
differentiated and high-end products to enhance our product mix, the
Group was able to offset the pressure from increased labor costs and
other expenses, and the overall gross profit margins increased.

In 2012, the Group’s gross profit margin of the integrated channel
services business was 8.2%, representing an increase of 0.9% from 7.3%
in 2011. It was mainly due to the increase in distribution business’s
gross profit margin from 6.8% in 2011 to 7.7% in 2012. In addition, the
gross profit margin of the logistics business increased slightly from 7.6%
in 2011 to 7.7% in 2012. The gross profit margin expansion for the
integrated channel services business was mainly because the Group
strengthened its sales function in the 3rd and 4th tier markets, and
undertook more marketing and promotion initiatives, which
correspondingly led to an increase in the selling and administrative
expense ratio.

In 2012, the gross profit margin of the integrated channel services
business increased by 0.9%. The total expense ratio of the integrated
channel services business increased by 1.1%, which was slightly higher
than that of the gross profit margin and mainly due to the loss of
RMB106,081,000 in 2012 (2011: nil) incurred in respect of the joint
venture established by the Group and Home Retail Group (UK), which
has directly led to an increase of 0.2% in total expense ratio of the
integrated channel services business. After excluding the impact of
such loss, the net profit margin of the integrated channel services
business was flat with last year.
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Financial Review (continued)
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND PROFIT (continued)

Gross Profit Margins (Continued)

The Group’s overall gross profit margin increased to 16.1% in 2012
from 15.0% in 2011 due to the increase in the gross profit margins of
the water heater business and the integrated channel services
business.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

In 2012, the ratio of selling and distribution expenses of the Group’s
washing machine and water heater businesses to its segment revenue
declined to 17.2% from 18.9% in 2011, which was mainly attributable
to the enhanced efficiency of selling and marketing spending, as well as
the decline in the after-sale costs for the year as a result of the
improved quality of washing machines and water heaters.

The ratio of selling and distribution expenses of the integrated channel
services business to its segment revenue was 4.7%, representing an
increase of 0.7% from 4.0% in 2011. The selling and distribution
expenses mainly arose from brand promotion and product promotion
expenses incurred by the integrated channel services business. The
compensations for sales staff and other selling and distribution
expenses increased as a result of the increased marketing activities
during the year to expand the Group’s market share.

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the ratio of administrative expenses of the Group’s
washing machine and water heater businesses to its segment revenue
was 5.8%, representing an increase of 1.2% from 4.6% in 2011, which
was mainly due to the newly imposed taxes on waste home appliances
and higher research and development costs incurred during the year.
In 2012, the Group strengthened its research and development efforts
and made significant investments in the development of product
features, enhancement of product functions and efficiency.

The ratio of administrative expenses of the integrated channel services
business to its segment revenue was 2.0%, representing an increase of
0.3% from 1.7% in 2011, which was mainly due to the administration
and liquidation expenses incurred during the year by the joint venture
established by the Group and Home Retail Group (UK).

40 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012

WA R R 2 A o

E R 2 @)

BKEMREGERBELEETF
Rz EH BHAREEEEERERH =
E——F215.0% LtAZEFT—=—F2
16.1% °

HEEH

ZE-F REBEDARHEEIOKEE
BZHEBRBEZEHDBRALHIH
—ZE——F118.9% FERI17.2% - LA
TREZARAEMSEHERNBE
R UMb AR R RKENE
mEENRA  ERERAFAMTE -

REGAMRBEGOHEEBEREZES
WAL EBAT% B _F——FH4.0%
RIATO7% HEBRTEMANRESR
ERBzAEHERKRAREREE &
TRATSNE SERFAESTH
%ﬁ%%@'%ﬁWMT%%AEW%
B A0 E 855 B

EEER

FRARERERBKFBEBHEEZBERG
ZEBWALLR AE58% BT ——4F
B46%IRFA T12% T B RA A K F
EVENEERER MM EE ML
R - AEBEE_T——_FMATHED
E-HEERNERE  RREAMBE
REFHETTRANERA -

RERARBESFE TEEAMGZ
E¥BWAN20% B_FT——FMW1.7%
RATOI% ZEEFEAREEMRAR
ERUEERINEERARREAFEED
EEMSEER-



2. FINANCIAL POSITION

2.

Financial Review (continued)

Bt %5 [ B (48)

ltems HE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Current assets MEBEE
Current liabilities REBEE
Non-current liabilities R AE
Net assets BEFE

B 7 iR 5
2012 2011
Sl = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(E751)
2,172,657 1,739,795
16,040,609 12,615,810
10,921,309 8,989,175
1,451,729 1,060,629
5,840,228 4,305,801

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In 2012, the Group maintained a healthy financial position. The cash
and cash equivalents balance increased by 35.5% to
RMB5,368,308,000 from RMB3,961,781,000 (restated) as at 31
December 2011. The increase was mainly attributable to the growth in
net cash flows from operating activities during the year, representing an
increase of 32.8% as compared to the same period of last year.

Net Assets

In 2012, the Group’s net assets increased by 35.6% to
RMB5,840,228,000 as at 31 December 2012 from RMB4,305,801,000
(restated) as at 31 December 2011.

Working Capital

Trade and Bills Receivables Turnover Days

The trade and bills receivables turnover days of the Group’s washing
machine and water heater businesses was 107 days at the end of
2012, among which, the trade receivables turnover days was 16 days,
representing a decrease of 3 days as compared with last year. The
proportion of bills receivables of the Group’s washing machine and
water heater businesses to its total trade and bills receivables was
85.2% (31 December 2011: 77.1%), which was mainly bank’s
acceptance bills with minimal risk of default.
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Financial Review (continued)
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FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Working Capital (Continued)

Trade and Bills Receivables Turnover Days (Continued)

In the integrated channel services business, the majority of customers
in the 3rd and 4th tier markets are relatively small customers, and the
sales are generally under a payment term of cash on delivery. Our
business model aims at reducing the customers’ working capital
requirements and facilitating the cash-settled payment method. As a
result, the trade and bills receivables turnover days in 2012 decreased
to 12 days from 15 days (restated) at the end of 2011. The trade
receivables turnover days increased slightly from 5 days (restated) at
the end of 2011 to 8 days, which is competitive in the industry.

Inventory Turnover Days

Under the Group’s JIT policy, the Group has implemented a series of
measurements including rolling order forecasts, made-to-order and
procured-to-order productions, which help to maintain a relatively low
inventory level. The Group’s inventory turnover days of washing
machine and water heater businesses was 23 days at the end of 2012,
representing an increase of 5 days as compared to the end of 2011.
The increase was mainly attributable to special purchases for the
Spring Festival.

In 2012, inventory turnover days of the Group’s integrated channel
services business was 15 days, which was mainly attributable to the
enhanced efficiency of transportation, distribution and transit. The
inventory turnover days are competitive in the industry, which has
greatly improved the cash flow arising from operating activities of the
integrated channel services business.

Trade Payables Turnover Days
The trade payables turnover days of the Group’s washing machine and
water heater businesses was 23 days at the end of 2012.

The trade payables turnover days of the integrated channel services
business was 14 days, which maintains a relatively lower level.
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Financial Review (continued)
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3. CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 3. BEFEHADW

2012 2011

—E——F —E——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

(Restated)

(&%)

ltems =

Net cash flows from operating activities KEEH RS MEFEE 1,740,167 1,310,034
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZGH RS REFRE (649,083) (251,337)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEZEB RS REFHE 114,925 356,182
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekREEZHEEBEE 2GMNFE 1,206,009 1,414,879

The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities increased by
32.8% in 2012 as compared with 2011, which was mainly due to the
cash flow contribution and continuous profit from the principal
operations. Net cash outflow from investing activities increased by
158.3% compared to 2011, what was mainly consisting of the
construction of additional logistics warehouse and purchase of plant
and equipment for capacity expansion.

Net cash inflow from financing activities for the year decreased by
67.7% over 2011, which mainly included inflows upon exercise of
warrants and share options (RMB82,948,000), investment from minority
shareholders (RMB35,926,000), payment of interest of convertible
bonds (RMB35,188,000) as well as new loans (RMB107,565,000).
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Financial Review (continued)
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group focuses on cash flow management and has been able to maintain
a healthy financial and liquidity position. The Group recorded a current ratio of
146.9% as at 31 December 2012, representing an increase of 6.6% as
compared to the 140.3% (restated) in 2011. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents balance amounted to RMB5,368,308,000
(81 December 2011: RMB3,961,781,000 (restated)). The amount of bank and
other borrowings, shareholder’s borrowings and the liability component of
convertible bonds were RMB39,800,000, RMB59,537,000 and
RMB699,643,000 (31 December 2011: RMB25,000,000, nil and
RMB669,849,000) respectively. As a result, the Group’s net cash balance (cash
and cash equivalents balance, net bank and other borrowings, shareholder’s
borrowings and the liability component of convertible bonds) as at 31
December 2012 amounted to RMB4,569,328,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB3,266,932,000 (restated)), representing an increase of 39.9% over last
year.

The Group will maintain significant operating cash flows and sources of
liquidity in 2013 that are adequate to meet its working capital requirements,
and for the distribution channel network expansion and construction of the
logistics network, and maintain financial flexibility for any significant investment
opportunities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Company assesses its capital expenditure and investments in the
businesses of the washing machine, water heater and integrated channel
services from time to time. The capital expenditure during the year was
RMB476,587,000, which was mainly used for the investments in developing
the integrated channel services business, including the construction of
warehouse projects, as well as factory equipment modifications for washing
machines and water heaters.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s gearing ratio (defined as total
borrowings (including the liability component of convertible bonds) over net
assets) was 13.7% (31 December 2011: 16.1% (restated)).
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach for its cash management and risk
control. Most of the Group’s revenues and expenses are denominated in
Renminbi. Cash is generally placed in short term deposits denominated either
in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. Foreign currency risk is largely, though not
fully, mitigated, as liabilities in Renminbi will be substantially offset by the
Group’s revenue, most of which are derived from domestic sales in China
and denominated in Renminbi. Only approximately 4.7% of the Group’s
revenue is derived from export sales and is denominated in other currencies.
The Group does not have any significant interest rate risk as it has an overall
net cash balance. The Group does not have any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group’s capital commitments contracted but not yet provided for
amounted to RMB106,883,000 as at 31 December 2012 (31 December
2011: RMB200,972,000), which were mainly related to the purchase of
machinery for the Group’s businesses capacity expansion as well as
construction of warehouse for the logistics business. Capital commitments
authorised but not yet contracted amounted to RMB179,008,000 (31
December 2011: RMB267,677,000) which mainly related to the warehouse
construction for the logistics business in 2013.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

The Group’s short-term bank loans as at 31 December 2012 were secured
by floating charges over the Group’s inventories totaling RMB76,740,000 (31
December 2011: RMB38,500,000; 1 January 2011: nil).

Further, as at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s bills payables were
secured by the pledge of the Group’s bank deposits of RMB61,804,000 (31
December 2011: RMB87,402,000; 1 January 2011: RMB3,011,000) and the
Group’s bills receivables of RMB122,809,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB250,453,000; 1 January 2011: RMB518,137,000).

Financial Review (continued)
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Financial Review (continued)

Bt % [ B (48)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the Company had
any significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group decreased by approximately 6.0%
to 17,304 as at 31 December 2012 from 18,406 as at 31 December 2011.
The Group ensures that the remuneration packages for its employees remain
competitive, and its employees are generally remunerated with fixed monthly
salaries, which are reviewed annually, along with discretionary performance
bonuses.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has proposed distribution of a final dividend of HK8 cents per
share in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 18 June 2013 for the year ended 31
December 2012. All the dividends will be paid upon approval by shareholders
at the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend will
be paid on around Friday, 19 July 2013.

This dividend represented approximately 10% of the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the year, and will be distributed out of the
contributed surplus account of the Company. The Group shall retain sufficient
cash for maintaining a strong financial position for capturing strategic
investments when opportunities arise, and in particular, achieving the financial
flexibility in relation to investments in the integrated channel services business.
The Company will review the payout ratio in the coming period and will
increase that ratio should the financial situation allow.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the management (the
“Management”) of Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”)
recognise that sound corporate practices are crucial to the efficient operation
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) and the
safeguarding of our shareholders’ interests. In this regard, the Board attaches
great priority to reinforce the Company’s corporate governance standards
with emphasis on transparency, accountability and independence in order to
enhance our long-term shareholders’ value.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) and principles under the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and the
Corporate Governance Code (collectively, the “Code”) during the period from
1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for certain
deviations as described below. The Board shall review its code from time to
time to ensure its continuous compliance with the Code. This report describes
the Company’s corporate governance practices, explains its applications of
and deviations from the Code, together with considered reasons for such
deviations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, two Non-executive
Directors (after the resignation of Mr. Wu Ke Song on 16 December 2012)
and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”). Throughout
the year, the Board has at least one-third in number of its members
comprising INEDs and at least one of the INEDs possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are well-versed
in respective areas such as legal, accounting and finance, business
management and industry knowledge and the Board as a whole has achieved
an appropriate balance of skills and experience. The Directors’ biographical
details, by category of Directors, are set out on pages 18 to 22 of this annual
report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial or family
relationship among the Board members. All of them are free to exercise their
independent judgment on all matters concerning the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEER®E (E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for specific terms, subject to re-election. Currently, all non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election.

The Bye-laws have stated clearly the procedures for the appointment of new
directors, re-election and removal of directors. Under the Bye-laws, the Board
may from time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company or until the next following AGM and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the same general meeting. Pursuant to
bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Liang Hai Shan, Mr. Li Hua Gang and Mr.
Wu Yinong will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
forthcoming AGM. Mr. Wu Yinong has tendered notice to the Company that
he will retire as an INED with effect from the conclusion of the AGM and has
decided not to offer himself for re-election. Further details regarding the
retirement of Mr. Wu Yinong as an INED were as set out in a separate
announcement of the Company.

Delegation by the Board

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s strategies,
providing leadership and guidance to put them into effect, reviewing and
monitoring the performance of the Group and are accountable to the
Company’s shareholders. To maximise the effectiveness of the Group’s
operations, the Board has delegated management and administration of the
Group’s daily operations to the Executive Directors and the Management
while reserving several important matters for its approval. To this end, the
Board has adopted written guidelines (the “Guidelines”) laying down the
division of functions between the Board and the Management (including the
Executive Directors for the purpose of the Guidelines).
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Delegation by the Board (continued)

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and the
Management are summarized as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:
1. determining the overall strategy;
2. reviewing all significant policies of the Group;

3. monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure that the
business operations of the Group are properly planned and undertaken;

4. approving interim and annual results of the Group based on
recommendations made by the audit committee of the Company;

5. approving material contracts and transactions for which the
Management is required to obtain the Board’s prior approval; and

6. subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, approving transactions
in which connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Group is/are considered having a material conflict of interests.

The Management is principally responsible for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other acts as
may be exercised and performed by the Directors, save and except for
those that may specifically be reserved by the Board and/or the
committees set up by the Board for decision and implementation; or
those that may only be exercised by the Board pursuant to The
Companies Act of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”), the Listing Rules and/or the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Repurchases;

2. formulating and implementing policies for business activities, internal
controls and administration of the Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its business
activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which may be
inspected by any members of the Board or the Board committees upon
request.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEER®E (E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During the
year, the Company did not have any person holding the title of CEO. Ms.
Yang Mian Mian has been the Chairman of the Board and has also been
performing the functions of CEO. The Board has met regularly to consider
major matters affecting the business and operations of the Group. The Board
believes that through the supervision of the Board and its independent non-
executive directors, checks and balances exist so that the interests of the
shareholders are adequately and fairly represented.

As announced by the Company on 18 March 2013, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie,
Executive Director of the Company, has been appointed as CEO of the
Company (and he resigned as the General Manager of the Company) with
immediate effect on 18 March 2013. There is therefore compliance with the
terms of Code Provision A.2.1 with effect from 18 March 2013.

INEDs

The INEDs have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as the
Executive Directors. They are expressly identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

The INEDs are experienced professionals with expertise in areas of
accounting and finance. With their professional knowledge and experience,
the INEDs advise the Company on its operation and management; provide
independent opinion on the Company’s connected/continuing connected
transactions; participate in the Company’s audit committee meetings,
remuneration committee meetings and nomination committee meetings. The
INEDs also contribute to provide adequate checks and balance to protect the
interests of the Company and the Company’s shareholders as a whole, and
to promote the development of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that all INEDs to be independent as the date of this report.

Supply of and access to information

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages containing the
duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules and other
applicable rules and regulations.

50 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012

BEEEm)
TRERITHAR (THRARD

BT AEXA21 TEETRAHZAE
EERD X TEH-ARBRE - FA - K
AT EEFMALTHETREAR ZBE -5
MELTREFEIFR FABERBETITHAR
BB -BEFeEHETER HPEELSR
EXBREEZEZEEMUZE -EFE
R CEFERBUFATEENEET
BB RROMBEATATES R
RNFHREIR -

ARNRIR=ZFT—=F=R+ N NB2AH &2
BAMITESRASEALECEEZERARAIT
BB (LEERARLERE)  BRR T —
=F=ZA+NBES AL —=F=
A+ N\BREEST FAEXA21 Z 15K -

BYHITES

BYUFRNTEFAHTETAERRAZER
BEERKRENRREEE - RMEREES
MEZRAEAAN - SRR HIB I
HiITE=-

BYFBTEFTHREREEAL AHFE
TEERERBEZEXANE - BEEFEEA
LR BUFATEERARAZEE
EEBMARBDRERE RAQB 2B/
FEREXIRHABILER Y2 EARRQF
LERZBEEeSR FTHMZEEERNRES
ZECSER -BUFRTESINEREHRED
ETRGEFELER BREBARFA LA
RARRZEBANGE  WREARAZER -

REAREEH ARACDEESBILIENT
EERBLTRESBKEHZFEB YL

WRE URBEEBUANTEESHER
SIAE -
ARz R A

MEZECESHEE ERETAFN BEFE
EREERE L TARRAREME BRI KRE
MZBAEREE-



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Supply of and access to information (Continued)

All the Directors are briefed and updated from time to time on the latest
legislative and regulatory developments to ensure that they are fully aware of
their responsibilities under the Listing Rules, applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

In order to ensure that their duties can be properly discharged, the Directors
are entitled to seek advice from independent professional advisers whenever
deemed necessary by them at the Company’s expense.

Professional development

The Company encourages the Directors to attend any relevant programme to
enhance their knowledge so as to discharge their duties and responsibilities
more effectively. During the year, all Directors have attended various relevant
training programmes which include:

(@ In-house training sessions organized by the Company which was
conducted by professional on topics including update on corporate
governance rules, monitoring of connected transactions and latest
revision of Securities and Futures Ordinance. Ms. Yang Mian Mian, Mr.
Zhou Yun Jie, Mr. Li Hua Gang, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng, Mr. Yu Hon
To, David, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng, Mr. Wu Yinong and Mr. Gui Zhaoyu
attended the sessions.

(b)  Participation in conferences and seminars organized by various external
organizations relevant to the business or directors’ duties. Ms. Yang
Mian Mian, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, Mr. Li Hua Gang, Mr. Wu Ke Song, Mr.
Liang Hai Shan, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng, Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Dr.
Liu Xiao Feng, Mr. Wu Yinong and Mr. Gui Zhaoyu have undertaken the
relevant conferences and seminars.

(c)  Private study of materials relevant to the director’'s duties and
responsibilities. Ms. Yang Mian Mian, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, Mr. Li Hua
Gang, Mr. Wu Ke Song, Mr. Liang Hai Shan, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng,
Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng, Mr. Wu Yinong and Mr. Gui
Zhaoyu have undertaken the private study.

The Company Secretary of the Company, who is a full-time employee of the
Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEER®E (E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2012, apart from the adhoc meetings
and consents obtained by means of written resolutions of all the Board
members, the Board had held four scheduled meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals and one additional meeting to review and approve, among
other things, the 2011 annual results and 2012 interim results, the overall
Group’s strategy, discloseable and connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The Company’s board meetings (the
“Board Meeting(s)”) are permitted to be held by means of telephone or other
means of electronic communication under the Bye-laws.

Sufficient notices are served and comprehensive information is provided to
the Board members in advance of all the Board Meetings in order to enable
them to make informed decisions on all matters transacted at the Board
Meetings.

The proceedings of the Board Meetings are conducted by the Chairman of
the Board or another Executive Director who ensures that sufficient time is
allowed for discussion among the Directors and equal opportunities are being
given to the Directors to express their views and share their concerns.

The Company Secretary attends the Board Meetings to advise Directors on
corporate governance practices, and statutory compliance, accounting and
financial issues whenever deemed necessary by the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing minutes recording all
matters transacted and resolved at the Board Meetings. All the Board minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the
Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the scheduled
Board Meetings during the year ended 31 December 2012:
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No. of the scheduled Board

Meetings attended/held
HE BT2EHESS
RS
Executive Directors: BITES:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian (Chairman) T% ,Z% WL (FE) 5/5
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAERLEE 5/5
Mr. Li Hua Gang %EHHEE 5/5
Non-Executive Directors: EBITES
Mr. Wu Ke Song (Deputy Chairman) ReNEE(BIEE)

(resigned on 16 December 2012) (R=ZF—=—#F+=F+HFF) 2/5
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 281 5‘& 4 2/5
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng HEILL L 5/5
INEDs: BYFHTES:

Mr. Wu Yinong RINEBEE 5/5
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BNEE A 5/5
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Bl 31 5/5

It is challenging to arrange the Board Meeting that fits in with the tight and
busy schedules of all the Directors. In particular, as certain of the Non-
executive Directors devote considerable time and efforts to the management
and operation of the Group’s business, they were only able to attend some of
the Board Meetings in person and their attendance rate at the Board
Meetings were relatively low during the year. To enable all the Directors to
keep abreast of the Group’s latest development and to discharge their duties
properly, the Company Secretary briefed the Directors on those matters
transacted at the Board Meetings that they were unable to attend. In addition,
draft and final versions of the Board minutes were sent to all Directors for their

comments and records.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEER®E (E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Haier Electronics Model Code”) on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
as set out in the Haier Electronics Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2012.

In addition, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the “Employees’
Guidelines for Securities Transactions”) for securities transactions by
employees (the “Relevant Employees”) who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information of the Company on no less exacting
terms than the Haier Electronics Model Code. Having made specific enquiries
of all the Relevant Employees, the Company confirmed that all the Relevant
Employees had complied with the required standard as set out in the
Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions throughout the year ended
31 December 2012.

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”), a
Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), a Nomination
Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and a Strategic Committee (the
“Strategic Committee”) (collectively the “Committees”) to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Committees report to the Board
regularly, and have been provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
respective duties. To reinforce independence, the chairman of the
Committees other than the Strategic Committee is an INED. Each of the
Committees has adopted specific terms of reference covering its duties,
powers and functions which will be reviewed by the Board from time to time.
The Company Secretary also acts as secretary of the Committees. The
Committees adopt as far as practicable, the procedures and arrangement of
the Board Meeting in relation to the conduct of meetings, notice of meetings
and recording of minutes. Further particulars of each of the Committees are
set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three INEDs and is chaired
by Mr. Yu Hon To, David. Mr. Yu is a professional accountant and was
formerly a partner of an international accounting firm. In light of the
amendments of the Listing Rules which became effective on 1 April
2012, the Board resolved to adopt a revised terms of reference for the
Audit Committee in March 2012. The revised terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available on the respective websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

M

Audit Committee (Continued)

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity
and credibility of financial reporting, to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the Group’s
external auditors and review of the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems. Each member of the
Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the Group’s external
auditors and the Management.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to review the management and accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss financial reporting
matters including the review of 2011 annual results and 2012 interim
results of the Group, review the adequacy of resources, accounting
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, review of
the internal control procedures and the connected transactions and
other related issues.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditors. The Audit Committee also met the external auditors
at least twice without the presence of the Executive Directors.

The annual results for the year ended 31 December 2012 were also
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Board also resolved to adopt the arrangement in March 2012 for
employees of the Company to raise genuine concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters in
the Company and its subsidiaries.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

M

Audit Committee (Continued)
The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2012:

No. of Audit Committee

Meetings attended/held
HE BIT2EREZERS
BERE

INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMEBEE 3/3
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEE LA 3/3
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng PRz 18+ 3/3

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five members
including one Executive Director, namely Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, one Non-
executive Director namely, Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui
Zhaoyu as her alternate director) and all three INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Yinong, an INED. In light of the
amendments of the Listing Rules which became effective on 1 April
2012, the Board resolved to adopt a revised terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in March 2012. The revised terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on policy and structure of all
remuneration of the Directors and Management. Each of the Directors
has not involved in the determination of his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held two meetings.
At the meetings, members of the Remuneration Committee reviewed
and made recommendations to the Board the remuneration proposal
of the Directors and Management by taking into account factors such
as remuneration packages and benefits offered by comparable
companies, the respective contribution of each of the Directors and
Management to the Group and the business objectives of the Group.
The Remuneration Committee also considered the performance-based
structure of the remuneration of Executive Directors and Management.

56 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012

yMEES
FNEZEeRNmOEaNEEKR B8R
—BRTEFRERNNE  —RIFRTT
EERELXAT(HBEEEZRAERT
EE)VAR B =FBIIFRNTES -
FHEZEERBYUFATESFTRITRL
EREEERF -EREMRRAZETE =
E-_HFNA-BRER EFER_
T-_F-ARRARAFHEZE S 2K
ErRIBEEE FHEEE 2 EEFTR
REERARRRBRAE A 2B T
& o

YFHZEG 2T ZRA/NESTRERE
BzeHaMBRERBERNESESIEY
HEER SREFHE2HRETELY
ZHEH -FHEZEEEFHRIBIT K

&

FINZEEERFABRITTMAER-
¥z EeXRBEES LRI ESERER
BeFMEstnEESFHERR
- ETEEZEITELBRARMERM
ZHHMAEREN SEFREEES
BEHAKREREXBERZARER
R FHEZEENEERTEERERE
Bz RIRAEMERE -



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
*XERAERE (B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EESm
Board Committees (Continued) EEEZEE®W
(2) Remuneration Committee (Continued) 2 FMWZEEE(E
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will review HHMEESE % fm HEBTEIER AR
the proposals made by the management on the remuneration of BOTEERRAEERENTMNERE
Executive Directors and senior management, and make MESgEHEEEZRNEL -EEg
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final authority to REBHEFTHEESRE 2 HEZZ
approve the recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee. XIRFES] o
The following table shows the attendance of members of the TRAEHZ-_ZT——F#+-_A=+—H
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2012: ITFEFER - FTHMEEeRBzeasEE
pesg
No. of Remuneration
Committee Meetings
attended/held
HE BT2FMZES
BERE
Executive Director: HITES:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BEREE 1/2
Non-executive Director: FHITES:
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng HETTRZ L 0/2
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu ERBFEE
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng) (BEETXZ+ZEMEA) 2/2
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Wu Yinong EWIy-$ 5 2/2
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BNEE A 2/2
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 20z & 18 4 1/2
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TEERKRE (B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

(3) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was formed on 19 September 2008 and
currently comprises five members including one Executive Director,
namely, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, one Non-executive Director namely, Ms.
Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director)
and all three INEDs. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Yu
Hon To David, an INED. The Nomination committee meets at least
once a year. In light of the amendments of the Listing Rules which
became effective on 1 April 2012, the Board resolved to adopt a
revised terms of reference for the Nomination Committee in March
2012. The revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating nomination
policy and making recommendations to the Board on nomination and
appointment of Directors and Board succession. It also develops
selection procedures of candidates for nomination, reviews the
structure, size and composition of the Board and assesses the
independence of the INEDs.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and
approval of such nomination by the Board. The Nomination Committee
is to evaluate potential candidates by considering factors such as
professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and
integrity. It also advises the Board in considering the suitability of the re-
election of the Directors who are subject to the retirement by rotation at
the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has held one meeting. At
the meeting, members of the Nomination Committee have reviewed the
composition of the Board, and advised the Board on the suitability of
the retirement and re-election of the Directors at the AGM.

58 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012

—

~

E2ZES W

REZES
REZEBEENR _ZTZN\FALATILEK
YoREHARKEAK BRE-EH
TEEFRAERNGEE —BIFPTEER
BRAXt(HBEEEEFREBTRL) A
ReR=-2BUNRTEFE RELZER
CTHBUFATESMEELELEE
ITF-REZBEFFRIBITRE
FoENEMRAUAZBIB T —Z=F
MA-—HEEN BEFERN_T—_F
“ARARRMREBLZE G ZRETRE
HE - REZEGZKETRELERN
ARARBRZRE B Z BT -

REZEG/REBEMERARE
RREFZRARZTHESSHE
MEFERLEEZZ ZBEETAR
HERBABZEF BRIABFGZR
B ABRER RFRBIIFERTE
=R

REEFEAMREZZ B &N ME
REERAL THEFSR LILE
HERA - RAZEEREBNEXEA
#o LR BABERRERAESE
AEHEREALETIE-ZESNIRE
F?“Tﬁmﬁh%ﬂﬁﬁAt%mL

FzEER AEERETRNESSIR
#H"ER

REZESGERFARIT —REH IR
HEEEeNETELRIESTSZKE
B EREFERAREBEFAE LHE
RERBEETNEYERESRE
B e



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
*XERAERE (B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

EEqw

Board Committees (Continued) EEEZEE®W
(3) Nomination Committee (Continued) @) RBEZEE @)
The following table shows the attendance of members of the TRBEE_FT——-F+=ZA=+—H
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2012: 1E E EN IEZZEgeKE @z F
No. of Nomination
Committee Meetings
attended/held
HE BITZ2REZE®
BRRE
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BERLE 11
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng HEILL L 0/1
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu HEBFEE
(alternate to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng) (BT ZEFA) 11
INEDs: BUFHITES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMEBLE 11
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEE A 11
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 265z 18 18 £ 11

Strategic Committee

The Strategic Committee was formed on 18 October 2011 and
currently comprises three members including one Executive Director,
namely, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, one INED, namely, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng and
one Non-executive Director (unconnected with the Company, Haier
Group Corporation, Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Investment
and Development Co., Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries), namely
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng (with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate
director). The Strategic Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhou Yun Jie. The
Strategic Committee shall meet four times a year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

(4)

Strategic Committee (Continued)

The purpose of the Strategy Committee shall be to prepare
recommendations for the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to (a)
the development, articulation, and execution of the Company’s long
term strategic plan, and (b) the review, evaluation, and approval of
certain strategic transactions, including but not limited to acquisitions,
mergers, divestitures, financings, capital structure and joint ventures.

The primary duties of the Strategic Committee are to review the major
long term strategic proposals of the Group, review the issue, offer or
sale of shares or other equity securities of the Company for the
purposes of funding acquisitions or investments made or new
businesses undertaken by the Group, review the proposed initial or
follow-on equity investment by the Company through the establishment
of a new business or venture or other means, review and comment on
the annual budgets of the Group taken as a whole, and thereafter
recommend to the Board for its consideration and approval.

During the year, the Strategic Committee has held four meetings. At the
meeting, members of the Strategic Committee have discussed the
strategies on the integrated channel business and made
recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Committees (Continued)

(4) Strategic Committee (Continued)

TEEBR®RE (H)

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Strategic TXRABEHZEZ 2 —_F+=ZA=+—H
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2012: HTFEA BHMEZEEXKEZEZLR
;i[\:( .
No. of Strategic
Committee Meetings
attended/held
HE BT 28KEZES
BRRK
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BERTE 4/4
Non-executive Director: FHITES:
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng HE L L 4/4
INEDs: VHBITES
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 28 1 4 4/4
Corporate Governance Function 1 EE R AL

In fulfilling the requirement of Listing Rules which became effective on 1 April
2012, the Board delegated the corporate governance duties to the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee.

The primary corporate governance duties are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE ()

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Function (Continued)

During the year, the Board and the board committees have developed and
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices, including the
revision of terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee, set up of shareholder’s
communication policy and whistle blowing policy, and providing guideline on
the training and professional development of Directors.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

A shareholder’s communication policy was established in March 2012. The
Company has maintained different communication channels with its
shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports, circulars
and announcements. Such information is also available on the Company’s
website.

It is the Company’s practice to provide an explanation of the details of the
procedures for voting by poll in the general meetings to shareholders in
accordance with the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules. The poll results of the
general meetings are also published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and of the Company. The Board regards general meetings as one of the
principal channels of communications with our shareholders and the Directors
provide detailed and complete answers to questions raised by the
shareholders in the general meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2012:

TEEBR®RE (H)

ERRzEBEERREEBER@

TERETEE2MBE_ZT-—_F+A=
T-BLEFERTZERRGZHEFEEX

No. of the General

Meetings attended/held
HE BTz2BRRAE
BB LAH
Executive Directors: BITES:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian (Chairman) S AR T (/) 2/2
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAERLEE 2/2
Mr. Li Hua Gang ZEE| S A 2/2
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES:
Mr. Wu Ke Song (Deputy Chairman) REREE(BFE)

(resigned on 16 December 2012) (RZFE—ZF+ZH+/NBEE) 0/2
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 25810 % & 0/2
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng BETRZ L

(with Mr. Gui Zhaoyu as her alternate director) (BEEFEFREBFLLE) 1/2
INEDs: BIYFHTES:

Mr. Wu Yinong RIMBEE 2/2
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEELAE 0/2
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 2z &1+ 0/2

During the year, there have been no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures by which Shareholders may convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the bye-law 62
of the Bye-laws of the Company, the shareholder(s) of the Company holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company may request the Board to
convene a special general meeting.
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TERER®RS (H)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures by which Shareholders may convene a
special general meeting (Continued)

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the Company at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the head
office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit
3513, 35/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the Company
Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for handling. Such
enquiries can be made by the following means:

Mail:  Company Secretary
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
Unit 3513, 35/F., The Centre, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

E-mail: IR@haier-elec.com.hk

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

On the requisition in writing of (i) either any number of Shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates, or (i) not less than 100 Shareholders,
the Company shall be under a duty to:

(@  give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next AGM notice
of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting; and

b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting (Continued)

The written request/statements must be signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office in Bermuda at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and head
office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit
3513, 35/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before the AGM
in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

If the written request is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (j)
to include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that the shareholder(s) concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted by the shareholder(s)
concerned in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s
expenses for the said purposes, the shareholder(s) concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM; or the statement will not be circulated for the
general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for election as a
Director at a general meeting, notice in writing of his intention to propose
such person for election as a Director and the notice in writing executed by
the nominee of his willingness to be elected must be validly served at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company. The minimum
length of the period during which such notices are given shall be at least 7
days and the period for lodgement of such notices shall commence no earlier
than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

To enable shareholders to make an informed decision on their election at a
general meeting, the names of all candidates submitted for election or re-
election as a Director together with his/her biographical details as set out in
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules (including other directorships held in listed
public companies in the past 3 years and other major appointments) are to
be set out in a circular or supplementary circular to be sent to shareholders
prior to the meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEER®E (E)

INSURANCE

The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors and senior staff of the Group for their potential
liabilities incurred by them in discharging their duties. The Group reviews the
insurance coverage for the Directors and the Group’s senior staff on an
annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements of the Group in accordance with relevant statutory requirements
and generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong and ensuring that
the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position. In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable; and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report of this Annual
Report.

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s development and prospects in all corporate
communications, including but not limited to annual and interim reports, any
price sensitive announcements and financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, any reports to regulators as well as to information required to
be disclosed pursuant to other statutory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to implementing effective internal controls and risk
management procedures to identify and manage the risks that may be faced
by the Group, as well as to safeguard the interests of the Group and our
shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate internal controls and risk
management procedures in the Group, and for reviewing their effectiveness
on an on-going basis. The Board has clearly defined the anthorities and key
responsibilities of each business and operational unit to ensure adequate
checks and balances. The Board has delegated to the Management the
implementation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial, operational
and compliance aspects, as well as risk management procedures.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system including the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programme and
budget.

The Company establishes an annual internal control review plan to cover its
major internal control systems covering areas including operational control,
financial control and compliance control. During the year, the Company has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of Group’s internal control systems
and risk management procedures on the major business and operational
processes, particularly on those divisions of the integrated channel services
business which were newly set up. Recommendations for further
improvements have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit
Committee has, in turn, reported the same to the Board together with its
assessment and recommendations. Such recommendations have been or
are being followed up by management. The Company is committed to
maintaining an effective internal control system and will make sure that
adequate resources and management attention will be devoted to strengthen
its internal controls and risk management procedures.

In response to the growth of the Company’s business activities and the
increase in geographical locations in which it operates, the Company
recognizes the importance of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and continues to strengthen the internal audit department and to
seek the assistance of external independent professionals in establishing
internal audit procedures and in provision of appropriate training to the
relevant staff. This ensures the effectiveness of the Group’s daily operations,
that the Group’s operations are in accordance with the corporate objectives,
strategies.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditors are Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants. During the year, the annual audit fees and non-audit fees
payable/paid by the Group to Ernst & Young were RMB6,250,000 and
RMB3,800,000, respectively. The non-audit services included the
performance of agreed-upon procedures in respect of the Group’s quarterly
and interim financial information (RMB1,050,000), review of the connected
transactions (RMB100,000), and the review of budgetary system and
computerized information system of the Group (RMB2,650,000).
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRESE

The directors of the Company present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

During the year, the Group’s subsidiaries continued to be engaged in the
manufacture and sale of washing machines and water heaters, as well as the
provision of integrated channel services which comprised the provision of
logistics services, distribution of home appliances and other products, the
provision of after-sale service and on-line sales of home appliances. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 87 to 215.

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012 of HK8 cents per share (2011: nil per
share).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 216. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
financial statements, respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, WARRANTS
AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options, warrants
and convertible bonds during the year are set out in notes 33, 34 and 30 to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 35(b) to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted to RMB496,063,000. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of RMB1,973,786,000,
may be capitalised and distributed to members in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 20% of the total sales for the year. Purchases from
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 77% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 44%.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EETEHREE (A

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (continued)

During the year, Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao Haier
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier Investment”) (collectively
referred to as “Haier Group”), the substantial shareholders of the Company,
had beneficial interests in all of the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or any of their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ms. Yang Mian Mian
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie
Mr. Li Hua Gang

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Wu Ke Song (resigned on 16 December 2012)
Mr. Liang Hai Shan
Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng

Alternate director:

Mr. Gui Zhaoyu (alternate Director to Ms. Janine Junyuan Feng)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wu Yinong
Mr. Yu Hon To, David
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Liang Hai Shan, Mr. Li
Hua Gang and Mr. Wu Yinong will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Wu Yinong has tendered notice to the Company that he will retire as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company and has decided
not to offer himself for re-election. Further details regarding the retirement of
Mr. Wu Yinong as an independent non-executive director of the Company will
be set out in a separate announcement.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed
for any specific terms and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of Mr. Wu Yinong, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng and Mr. Yu Hon To, David, and, on
the basis of such confirmations, considers them to be independent as at the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 25 of the annual report.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Below are the changes of directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the interim report:

Up to the balance sheet date, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, the executive director of the
Company was appointed as a director of Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales
Service Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, Mr. Liang Hai Shan, the non-
executive director of the Company was appointed as a director of Foshan
Haier Drum Washing Machine Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Li Hua
Gang, the executive director of the Company was appointed as a director of
Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group.

Mr. Yu Hon To, David has been appointed the independent non-executive
director of China Resources Gas Group Limited on 28 December 2012,
which is a company publicly listed in Hong Kong.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie has been appointed
as Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company and resigned as the
General Manager of the Company with immediate effect from 18 March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the year, no director had a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EETEHREE (A

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of directors with
reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results
of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors in the
share capital and underlying shares (“Share(s)”) of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares of the Company:
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Number of
Shares directly
(personal)
beneficially  Approximate %
Name owned of issued Shares
BEEMEAN)
BEXERE MEBITROZ
#®E BRHEE BB
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BERNEE 900,000 0.04
Mr. Li Hua Gang TEM LA 230,000 0.01

Note: Mr. Wu Ke Song, who resigned on 16 December 2012, directly and beneficially
owned 3,180,000 Shares at the date of resignation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

Report of the Directors (continued)
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SHARES (Continued)
Long positions in underlying Shares of the Company pursuant to share IRIEERER RN ABIMBEKRMD ZIFE -
options:
Approximate %
Number of of issued
share options Shares upon
granted and not exercise of
Name yet exercised share options
ERE fTHEBREZ
BEATEZ WHEBRTRSG
JiE BREHE ZBOESH
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie* BEREE" 5,610,000 0.23
Mr. Li Hua Gang* 2 HE | S A 2,001,000 0.08
Mr. Wu Yinong® KRINE LAY 320,000 0.01
Mr. Yu Hon To, David* BEELAAET 360,000 0.01
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng* B EiE L 320,000 0.01
Note: Mr. Wu Ke Song*, who resigned on 16 December 2012, had 7,420,000 share Misf: R-ZT—=—F+ - A+ "BBEET 2R A%

options granted and not yet exercised at the date of resignation.

* The exercise price of each of the above share options is HK$1.70 for
subscription of one Share. The exercisable period is from 18 September 2010 to
17 September 2014.

The exercise price of each of the above share options is HK$8.67 for
subscription of one Share. The exercisable period is from 16 June 2012 to 15
December 2014.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EETEHREE (A

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd
(“Qingdao Haier”), the Company’s shareholder:

EERROREBERGD ZESR
KRB @

RARBDBRREEERBROHBERARA(ES
BB ZBRDRBEERD ZEFR

Approximate %

of total
Approximate % Number of share registered share
of total  options granted capital upon
Number of registered and not yet exercise of
Name shares held share capital exercised share option Capacity and interest

ERE BREETER

1 48 5 118 AR A B RITRE ZBEMEE FHOKR

i FREAE ZHHABEIT ZEBRERE ZHBHNEDL #ERME
Ms. Yang Mian Mian 1,472,672 0.0548 3,150,000 0.12 Directly (personal)

(note 1) beneficially owned
Gt (M &E1) BEEREEANEZES
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 1,027,920 0.0383 2,212,000 0.08 Directly (personal)

(note 1) beneficially owned
25L& E (BfFEE1) BEEWEANERER
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie 98,298 0.0037 — — Directly (personal)

beneficially owned
AEREE BEEEANERES
Notes: P 7
1. On 28 October 2009, Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Liang Hai Shan were granted 1 ZEZENFTAZTNB BEGELTR

options to subscribe for 2,250,000 and 1,580,000 ordinary shares of RMB1
each, respectively, at an exercise price of RMB10.88 per share in Qingdao Haier.
On 25 August 2010, the exercise price had been adjusted to RMB10.58 per
share. The exercise period is from 28 October 2010 to 27 October 2014. During
2011, Qingdao Haier has issued shares to existing shareholders from its certain
capital reserve on the ratio of 10 shares for 10 shares. The above shares and
outstanding share options held had reflected the effect of such capitalization
issue. Also the exercise price had been adjusted to RMB5.24 per share. During
2012, the exercise price had been adjusted to RMB5.07 per share.

2. Mr. Wu Ke Song, who resigned on 16 December 2012 , directly and beneficially
owned 122,672 shares of Qingdao Haier at the date of resignation.

Save as disclosed above, no directors or chief executive had any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE (A

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TOACQUIRESHARESIN EEZBEA A TKRMH N E R
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY > REF|

Share option scheme BRESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) ZARA TR T EREST 2 ([BEREESTE D) - BW
for the purpose of providing incentives and reward to eligible participants who R A E A EB K I ELEH B 2 & BB
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the 22 EIEIEMH BRI L EIH - BEAREST 2 2 H 4
Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements. HEEERBRERM T34 -

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options T~ ERIFEE AR QD G R E RN K 1T E IR E 2 & H

outstanding during the year: (=D
Number of share options
BREYA
Date of Exercise price
At  Granted Exercised Cancelled  Lapsed At grant of of share
Name or category of 1 January during the duringthe duringthe during the 31 December share options  Exercise period of options (note 2)
participant 2012 year year year year 2012 (note1) share options per share HK$
R »n BRE BRETEE
ZE-ZE O RER RER RER RER ZE-CZF RUAH (W3E2)
HERSHEEER -A-H B it BUH 5% TZAZtT-B (W&E1) BRETES BRET
Executive directors
HITES
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie 5,610,000 - - - - 5,610,000 18/09/2009 18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
AERLE
Mr. Li Hua Gang 2,070,000 - - 69,000 - 2,001,000 18/09/2009 18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
FERLE
7,680,000 - - 69,000 - 7,611,000

Independent Non-executive

directors
BUFHTES
Mr. Yu Hon To, David 360,000 - - - - 360,000 16/12/2011 16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
AEE LA
Mr. Wu Yinong 320,000 - - - - 320,000 16/12/2011 16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
RNMERE
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 320,000 - - - - 320,000 16/12/2011 16/06/2012-15/12/2014 8.67
EEEL

1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE (A

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TOACQUIRESHARESIN EEZBEA A TKRMH N E R
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 2 R )

- e
Share option scheme (Continued) s IR AE s 8l
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of Exercise price
At  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of of share
Name or category of 1January during the duringthe during the during the 31 December share options  Exercise period of options (note 2)
participant 2012 year year year year 2012 (note 1) share options per share HK$
R n BRE BRETHEE
—B-=F RER RER RER RER ZE--F RHAH (M&E2)
HESSEREER -A-8 Rt Cix:d BUH X% t=A=+-8 (MED BRETES BRERT
External consultants
SRR
In aggregate 21,567,000 — 8,535,000 1,840,000 - 11,192,000 18/09/2009 18/09/2010-17/09/2013 1.7
@it
In aggregate 2,200,000 — - - — 2,200,000 16/12/2011 16/12/2012-15/12/2014 7.58
@it
23,767,000 — 8,535,000 1,840,000 - 13,392,000
Other employees
HitiE g
In aggregate 27,371,500 — 4,643,000 1,927,500 — 20,801,000 18/09/2009 18/09/2010-17/09/2014 1.7
@t
In aggregate 24,819,000 — 6,679,000 829,200 1,215,000 16,095,800 18/05/2010 18/05/2011-17/05/2014 4.82
@t
In aggregate 15,680,000 . — — . 15,580,000 16/12/2011 16/12/2012-15/12/2014 7.58
@t
67,770,500 — 11,322,000 2,756,700 1,215,000 52,476,800
100,217,500 — 19,857,000 4,665,700 1,215,000 74,479,800
Notes: B 5T
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the 1 EREEENN AE R RS TR
commencement of the exercise period. 14 B I o
2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment(s) in the case of 2. TR BETARI AR/ AHIEH
rights or bonus share issues, or other similar changes in the share capital of the iU EE)  AIBRENTEEAETUAZR:-
Company.
3. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 3. MNEEERETE R 2 AR B IR M5 niE

the exercise dates of the share options was HK$10 per share.

4. Mr. Wu Ke Song, who resigned on 16 December 2012, had 7,420,000 share 4.
options granted on 18 September 2009 and not yet exercised at the date of
resignation.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN
OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Save as the options granted to the director, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group has contracts with Haier Group and their subsidiaries and/or
associates (collectively referred to as “Haier Affiliates”) for the purchase of
products and materials. Further details of the transactions undertaken in
connection with these contracts during the year are included in the section
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”.

Report of the Directors (continued)

EEEREE(E)

EERELARARMO A BERERE
ZRER )

BB AR RE S Bl )

BRTEFCBREN RFANETAERBH
BENEFAREIEAZIEBARKRFTL
BRTHTEAEBBARNDARD HER
EMEm BN MARA  EEEAR K
LRI H B & ) 3k Z BB A B8 AT SLAE A
L BSARBEEABAEMEMEA
B EHER -

EEZAN
AEERSEEEREKE QAR R
RA(RESEBEAR D) T AL ARE

EmEMH RZEEORFRETRSZ
HMFBREENRERS] -

BHERKEERAAF

—E——FFR 77



Report of the Directors (continued)

EETEHREE (A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2012, the following shareholders interested in 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

TERRAROREBRS 2
Em

R-EBE——F+-_F=+—HBH UTHEAX
NABBEITRARBERES% KA EEEE 2R’
B R AR BB IRE F & B E (5] 55 336
BHREAFTEZ2FTZRELM:

Long positions: e
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Shares issued share
Name of shareholder Notes interested capital
LR NN
BERRZZ BRIREZ
RREH k=3 K% #E BREDE
Qingdao Haier Collective EEOREBEEEREDSE 1,4 1,573,130,592 64.25
Asset Management Association ([FREREEEHE])
(“Haier Collective Asset Management”)
Haier Corp BREER R A 2,4 1,573,130,592 64.25
Haier Investment BREE 3,4 1,573,130,592 64.25
Qingdao Haier E58R 4 1,224,439,592 50.01
Haier Shareholdings (Hong Kong) Limited BRKG (BB)BRAF 4 831,762,110 33.97
(“Hong Kong Haier”) ([EEEB))
Carlyle Asia Partners Ill AIV Cayman, L.P. Carlyle Asia Partners Il AIV 5 240,000,000 9.80
Cayman, L.P.
Hawaii Asia Holdings Limited Hawaii Asia Holdings Limited 5 240,000,000 9.80
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2012, by virtue of the SFO, Haier Collective Asset
Management was deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 1,573,130,592
Shares, including (i) 348,691,000 Shares directly and indirectly held by its non
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Haier Investment; and (i) given Haier
Investment was acting in concert with Haier Corp and Qingdao Haier, Haier
Collective Asset Management was also deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,592
Shares held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, executive directors of the Company,
and Mr. Liang Hai Shan, non-executive director of the Company are also
members of the board of management of Haier Collective Asset Management.

As Qingdao Haier is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp, Haier Corp
was deemed to be interested in 1,224,439,592 Shares held by Qingdao Haier
pursuant to the SFO.

Furthermore, as Haier Corp was acting in concert with Haier Investment, Haier
Corp was deemed to be interested in 348,691,000 Shares held by Haier
Investment and its subsidiary.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, executive directors of the Company,
and Mr. Liang Hai Shan, non-executive director of the Company, are also the
members of the management committee of Haier Corp.

Haier Investment and its subsidiary held 348,691,000 Shares in total as beneficial
owners. Moreover, Haier Investment was deemed to be interested in
1,224,439,592 Shares held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO by reason of
its acting in concert with Haier Corp.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian, the executive director of the Company, is also director of
Haier Investment.

Qingdao Haier held 392,677,482 Shares as beneficial owner. Moreover, Qingdao
Haier was deemed to be interested in 831,762,110 Shares held by its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Hong Kong Haier, pursuant to the SFO.

Carlyle Asia Partners lll AIV Cayman, L.P. was deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by its subsidiary, Hawaii Asia Holdings Limited, pursuant to the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EETEHREE (A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had the following connected
and continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Connected transactions

(i) During the year, Shandong Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Goodaymart”), a 51%-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired 50.5% interests in Zhucheng Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd., Yanzhou Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Rizhao
Lingyun Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Jining Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Taian Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd., Jinan Goodaymart Trading Co., Ltd., Qufu Goodaymart Electric
Appliance Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd. and a 51% interest in Laiwu Goodaymart Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd. at an aggregate consideration of RMB8.59 million, which was
determined with reference to the respective amounts of paid-in capital
of the acquired entities. These acquired entities were non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Haier Group and are principally engaged in the
sales of electrical appliances in Mainland China.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEREEE)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BEE T Z @

Connected transactions (Continued) BERXS @

(ii) During the year, Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliances Co., Ltd. disposed (i) FRN FEEXRETEEEAAIANTE S
its available for sale investment on Qingdao Haier Dish-Washing BMEEERNSTE BB EAMEER QA
Machine Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Dish-Washing Machine”) to Qingdao Haier ([Eexmg)ztHERE KB
at the consideration of RMB6,190,000 which was determined with A ANRYB,190,0007T BEERKEB KA
reference to the net assets of Qingdao Dish-Washing Machine. EEEAMB I BEETFEHEBETE -

Continuing connected transactions HEBREXS

During the year, the Group had the following material transactions with Haier F R KREEHBESHREE A Y EITUTE

Affiliates: ARG :

2012 2011
—¥——F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR®T T ARETF T
Export sale of washing machines and OB E TR &
water heaters oK 22 (i) 1,566,686 1,453,159

Domestic sale of products A 88 & B o (ii) 221,410 152,167

Purchase of finished goods B R @ (i) 26,866,861 27,771,051

Purchase of raw materials BEEE R R (iv) 11,237,974 10,708,982

Printing and packaging fee expenses R EBEEZE v) 57,997 29,688

Mould charges REBYH (vi) 179,014 135,403

Utility service fee expenses ~TARBESZY (vii) 95,033 79,355

Promotion fee expenses SEEBEZH (vii) 204,566 185,969

Other service fee expenses HiREEZ D (ix) 378,906 307,525

Interest income T B U A x) 21,224 12,758

Interest expenses Tl B X H (x) 1,469 464

Other financial service fees HEfh e BRI & (i) 6,173 7,639

Trademark licence fee expenses FEZERRE T H (xii) — —

Logistic service income Wi R 75 WA (xiii) 1,795,008 1,729,837

After-sale service income E B REHA (Xiv) 218,620 45,884

Premise lease income MEREWA (xv) 1,008 2,016

Premise lease expenses MEBRERS (xv) 1,051 2,043

Purchase of equipment RIERE (xvi) 16,033 1,854
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EETEHREE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

Notes:

0

(i)

(i)

()

(vi)

(vil)

(viii)

()

The export sales of washing machines and water heaters were made to Haier
Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Haier Electrical”), subsidiaries of Haier
Investment, at selling prices representing the differences between the selling
prices of washing machines and water heaters mutually agreed and the selling
expenses of Haier Electrical not exceeding 1.5% of the selling prices of washing
machines and water heaters.

The domestic sales of products made at prices no less favourable than those
prevailing in the domestic market for the products of the same type and quality
and those offered by the Group to independent third parties.

The purchase of finished goods was charged at prices no less favourable than
those prevailing in the domestic market for the products of the same type and
quality and those offered by Haier Affiliates to independent third parties.

The purchase of raw materials was charged at prices not higher than the
consolidated and integrated tender and bidding price of the raw materials plus a
commission fee of not exceeding 1.75%.

The printing and packaging fee expenses were charged on terms no less
favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

The moulds were charged with reference to the average market tender and
bidding price plus actual administrative costs.

The utility service fee expenses were charged based on the state-prescribed
prices plus actual administrative costs.

The promotion fee expenses were charged at no more than 1.2% of the
domestic sales of washing machines and water heaters of the Group.

The other service fee expenses were charged with reference to the actual costs
incurred and/or on terms no less favourable than those offered by independent
third parties to the Group.

The interest income and expenses were determined with reference to the
standard rates published by the People’s Bank of China. The maximum balance
of bank deposits placed with and the maximum loan balance drawn down from
Haier Group Finance Co., Ltd. related to the above interest income and expenses
during the year were RMB744,897,000 and RMB39,800,000, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(xi) The other financial service fee expenses were charged on terms no less
favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

(xi)  The trademark licence fee expenses were charged at a nominal consideration of
RMB1 during the year.

(xii)  The logistic service income was charged on terms no less favorable than those
prevailing in the domestic market for services of similar kinds and quality and
those charged by the Group on independent third parties.

(xiv)  The after-sale service income was charged on terms no less favourable than
those prevailing in the domestic market for services of similar nature and scale.

(xv)  The premise lease income and expenses were determined with reference to the
rental assessment of the premises conducted by an independent firm of
professional valuers in the People’s Republic of China.

(xvi)  The purchase of production and experimental equipment was charged at prices
no less favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

Upon the Group’s completion of the acquisition of Goodaymart Companies,
Goodaymart Companies had no material transactions with Haier Affiliates.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that
they were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The amounts of the continuing connected transactions have not exceeded
the cap disclosed in previous announcements made by the Company.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EETEHREE (A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

Ermst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Emst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors as at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the Group are set
out in note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire, and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Yang Mian Mian
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 March 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= K

To the shareholders of Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Haier Electronics
Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 87 to 215, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated income statement,
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

the consolidated statement of

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BAZBEERES

BEWMEREEER D AIMLKRR
(RERZZMAEALZ BRI A
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ERAR(TERAD REMEB AR (KHEIE
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86 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
BUZHEHREE (&

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong
18 March 2013

Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December 2012 B2 T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET AR T T
(Restated)
(&%)
REVENUE 'PN B 55,615,047 50,089,857
Cost of sales 8 55 PR AN (46,673,866) (42,582,594)
Gross profit EF 8,941,181 7,507,263
Other income and gains H b Y A K W 25 5 106,250 99,423
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (4,569,519) (4,157,305)
Administrative expenses THEH (2,152,495) (1,572,964)
Other expenses and losses Hih B REE (16,651) (60)
Finance costs B & B AR 7 (64,504) (22,492)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B¢ A& R 6 2,244,262 1,858,865
Income tax expense T8 i f X 10 (537,285) (386,942)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 1,706,977 1,466,923
Attributable to: LA & 75 ek -
Owners of the Company VNN 5 11 1,695,122 1,407,458
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR = 11,855 59,465
1,706,977 1,466,923
EARNINGS PER SHARE RKATEBR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY B R FEAG
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BRER 13
Basic FHR RMB70.73 cents RMB61.19 cents
ARM70.73% AR61.199
Diluted e RMB66.18 cents RMB55.50 cents

AR%#66.187

AR #5550%

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12tothe AFERIKKRE 2 F BRI KRR 129
financial statements. 5 o

BHEREMERAT —T——_F5H% 87



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEXEHWBRER

Year ended 31 December 2012 &2 T ——F+_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 ARE T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&23)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 1,706,977 1,466,923
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2 HE U=
Exchange differences on translation BMEFINERE 2
of foreign operations PEH =58 (23,056)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEKEARE
FOR THE YEAR 1,709,085 1,443,867
Attributable to: AR &5 AL
Owners of the Company. PiN/NET S 11 1,697,159 1,384,496
Non-controlling interests FEIE R E 11,926 59,371

1,709,085 1,443,867

88 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B ISR R &

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-H=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
+=—A=+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (&%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MRE 1,308,806 990,212 863,893
Investment properties "EY* 14,723 19,128 20,800
Prepaid land lease payments Y& f-F + #h 7 E X 254,735 259,377 171,229
Intangible assets mEREE 74,657 79,811 962
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 2,925 8,625 8,625
Prepayments for items of property, #1% - K= N & &
plant and equipment 18 B 2 B RIE 61,177 — —
Deferred tax assets R IAE &= 455,634 382,642 221,311
Total non-current assets FERHEELE 1,739,795 1,286,820
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories e 2,479,191 2,114,687 1,358,334
Trade and bills receivables FEWEZ REE 6,924,088 5,581,424 3,931,671
Prepayments, deposits and ERRE EEek
other receivables H b FE YT BR 3N 1,207,218 870,516 653,840
Pledged deposits B EfFE R 61,804 87,402 3,011
Cash and cash equivalents R RIREEEIEHR 5,368,308 3,961,781 2,737,413
Total current assets mMEBEERE 12,615,810 8,684,269
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade and bills payables FERERRERE 2,961,504 2,550,908 1,561,376
Tax payable JE 5 #5238 837,476 619,362 616,318
Other payables and H o JE T BR B K%
accruals BB R 6,494,628 5,326,539 4,457,703
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 39,800 25,000 5,000
Provisions B 534,331 466,466 291,963
Put option liabilities RonHEAE 53,570 900 =
Total current liabilities mEAEAER 8,989,175 6,932,360
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 3,626,635 1,751,909
BHEREEMERLAT —T——FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e MR OR & (&)

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011
—FT——F —FT——F
+=-—RA=+—8 —A—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% ARET T ARET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (&%)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,291,957 5,366,430 3,038,729

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE

Convertible bonds AR E S 30 699,643 669,849 —
Due to non-controlling shareholders & 5 3£ 12 i% f% 52 7% 18 28 59,537 — —
Provisions P {5 31 266,884 224,944 1514555
Deferred income i E WA 42,210 42,910 43,609
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE 32 8,755 8,826 9,257
Put option liabilities RonHEE G 29 374,700 114,100 -

Total non-current liabilities R B ERE 1,451,729 1,060,629 204,421
Net assets BEFE 5,840,228 4,305,801 2,834,308

EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners PiN/NET S
of the Company JFE 45 7 2
Issued equity BT €88 2,501,181 2,337,909 2,248,843
Equity component AT ESRZ
of convertible bonds W E 30 149,249 149,249 —
Reserves (& 35(a) 2,731,816 1,538,227 357,006
Proposed final dividend HR R 2 AR S 12 157,480 - -
5,639,726 4,025,385 2,605,849
Non-controlling interests IR E T 300,502 280,416 228,459
Total equity HEmEE 4,305,801 2,834,308
Yang Mian Mian Zhou Yun Jie
B BAEXR
Chairman Director
FE =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2012 B2 T ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2012
—E—C—F
RMB’000
ARET T

Notes
B 5
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEEIESRE
Profit before tax W B4 A g A
Adjustments for: ELAT %
Finance costs A& K AR 7
Interest income A B U A ®
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments A ERERS KA 5
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments B SR E W 5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y% BERKETE 6
Depreciation of investment properties BEMERE 6
Recognition of prepaid land premiums BREMLHEES 6
Amortisation of intangible assets mVEESH 6
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories B REHTERE 6
Provision/(reversal of provision) of H th W BR SR 2 BB S
impairment on other receivables (B R m) 6
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEME -  BER
property, plant and equipment and REIHE RREMEZ
investment properties, net B EF 6
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y% BE R&ERE 6
Impairment of intangible assets BV EERE 6
Equity-settled share option expense ARG AR 4 B 2 B AR i B 2 6

2,244,262

64,504
(35,854)
(6,733)
(190)
97,749
1,192
5,287
7,192
90,049

4,228

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and bills receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Increase in trade and bills payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Increase in provisions

Decrease in deferred income

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

EA=gpill

R WS B 3R B SR 4B 4 A

BNRE REREBER
fR FE AN

& 5 R 5K e SR 4B AR A

H Al & A BR 3R e e AT B (R 48 A0

B 1L

3B AT W AR D

E BB EFR

2,523,729

(454,553)
(1,342,664)

(319,581)
410,596
1,165,126
109,805
(700)
4,719

2,096,477
35,854
(392,164)

Cash generated from operations REXBSHS
Interest received 2 W F B

Mainland China corporate income tax paid B B i E TSR
Net cash flows from operating activities MEER RS REFHE

BHERKEERAAF

2011
—ET——F
RMB’000
ARBF T
(Restated)
(E71)

1,853,865

22,492
(21,242)
(1,988)
83,820
1,672
4,907
4,831
35,634

(331)

60

29,958

2,013,673

(791,988)
(1,649,753)

(216,005)
989,532
1,227,138
247,892
(699)
14,229

1,834,019
21,242
(545,227)

1,310,034

T FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

REeRERER(A)

Year ended 31 December 2012 B2 —Z——F+-A=+—HILFE

2012

—_ -

Notes RMB’000
Fft 5 ARBT R

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from available-for-sale
investments

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Prepayments for items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Additions to prepaid lease payments

Additions to intangible assets

Investments in available-for-sale investments

Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with original
maturity over three months when acquired

REZHZRERE
BEHAHEERERE

BEWX BELERERE

ME - BEEREERE 2
B RIE

HEME  BFERREEREEB

Fi 15 30 IR
AN A E R
MIEEVEE
AHHEREZKRE
BE R GE )
RERGE B REIH B

HBE=EAZERFR

W, (HE )

6,733

15 (406,421)

(61,177)

4,473
17 1,611)
18 (7,378)
(300)

25,598

(209,000)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

REBSMAZ

REenEFE

(649,083)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds
Interests paid for convertible bonds

Capital contributions from non-controlling shareholders

Capital contributions from the then holding
companies of subsidiaries

Capital returned to non-controlling shareholders

Loans from non-controlling shareholders

New bank loans

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

Dividends paid to the then holding companies
of subsidiaries

Deemed distributions to holding companies

Interest paid

METDHZRETRE
BITRAD 5 308

1T AR AR B 75 P 1S XA
FhAT R AR E A 2 FLR
AR E

MEBRARERERQRLEE

RBIFEZERBRER
FEERR AR R E K
I IRITE R
HEMEE

B IE R AR AR AR B
BB QB E
R B S

18 7% A 2 AR A R E Y 9 TR

EAAE

33 82,948
30 =
30 (35,188)

35,926

(9,800)
67,765
39,800

(25,000)
(37,637)

(2,420)
1 —
(1,469)

Net cash flows from financing activities

MERHZHEREIFE
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2011
—ET——F
RMB’000
ARBF T
(Restated)
(E71)

1,988

(210,262)

3,457
(93,394)
(13,680)

(84,391)

144,945

(251,337)

81,662
874,375

48,183

25,000
(5,000)
(19,321)

(3,000)
(664,649)
(1,068)

356,182



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
REBRERER(EH)

Year ended 31 December 2012 B E—ZE——F+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes

s

2012
—E—C—F
RMB’000
ARET T

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

RERREEERBZ

b0 FE R
FzHRehBREFHEER
EREH B FE

1,206,009
3,936,781
(8,482)

5,134,308

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2ESRBESEHEHEH
AT END OF YEAR
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HELREEEERB 2
CASH EQUIVALENTS e
Non-pledged cash and bank balances BERE & RIRTTHER 24
Time deposits with original maturity RIS E B Rt REI B A
of less than three months when acquired LR =18 A 2 E#FH 24

4,210,952

1,157,356

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of financial position

Less: time deposits with original maturity
over three months when acquired

FEARRARP I ZEE R
ReEEEAR

B RIS E B A R R
HEB={E8Z2EHFX

5,368,308

(234,000)

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the statement of cash flows

RenBRPMIIZEAE R
ReFEER

5,134,308

BHERKEERAAF

2011
—ET——F
RMB’000
ARBF T
(Restated)
(E71)

1,414,879
2,567,468
(45,566)

3,936,781

2,326,772

1,635,009

3,961,781

(25,000)

3,936,781
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Statement of Financial Position

B 75 AR R 3R

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P = ARBTR ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KK B R A HEE 19 2,039,482 1,858,599
Intangible assets mEE 18 64,750 68,250
Due from subsidiaries SN S 19 249,671 145,318
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 2,353,903 2,072,167
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEf 518 - & R E M EUKER 28 15,804 779
Cash and cash equivalents RekBF&EBEEE 24 1,065,406 1,340,242
Total current assets MEEERE 1,081,210 1,341,021

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

REBAE

HivEHRAMEFTAE 26 26,010

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

RBEEFE 1,044,266 1,315,011

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

mEBAGEAE 36,944 26,010

REERABAE
3,398,169 3,387,178

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to subsidiaries
Convertible bonds

FRBEE
FEASTFY B & R 3R IA 19 80,574 80,698
CIEAISEE 30 699,643 669,849

Total non-current liabilities

EnBEABERE 780,217 750,547
BEFE 2,617,952 2,636,631

Net assets

EQUITY ER

Issued capital BT 33 247,686 239,382
Equity component of convertible bonds ARKRES DD 30 149,249 149,249
Reserves s 35(b) 2,063,537 2,248,000
Proposed final dividend FIk R EA AR B2 12 157,480 —
Total equity B E 2,636,631

Yang Mian Mian Zhou Yun Jie
Chairman Director
FE e
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Haier”), which is
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), and the
controlling shareholders of the Company are Haier Group Corporation
(“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Haier Investment”) (collectively referred to as “Haier Group”),
which are established in the PRC, by reason of their acting in concert
with each other in respect of the Company. Qingdao Haier is a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

o manufacture and sale of washing machines
o manufacture and sale of water heaters

° provision of logistics, after-sale and other value-added consumer
services as well as sale and distribution of home appliances and
other products procured from subsidiaries and/or associates of
Haier Group (“Haier Affiliates”) and other external parties

During the year, Shandong Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., a
51%-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 50.5% interests in
Zhucheng Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Yanzhou
Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Rizhao Lingyun Goodaymart
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Jining Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd., Taian Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd., Jinan Goodaymart
Trading Co., Ltd., Qufu Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. and
Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. and a 51%
interest in Laiwu Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co., Ltd. at an
aggregate consideration of RMB8,590,000, all of which remained
unsettled as at 31 December 2012. These acquired entities were non-
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Haier Group and are principally engaged
in the sales of electrical appliances in Mainland China.

These transactions are collectively referred to as the “Acquisition
Transactions” and the entities acquired in the Acquisition Transactions
are collectively referred to as the “Acquired Entities”.

1.

B RS AR MY EE

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-H=+—H

DNREH

EREREEARARARBRET
MR z2BRAR  NRA A ZMHESE
B& £ 1 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

EEZRA/ ARAZEEERRARAARTE
EBARNERRAAITEEER] &%
AERHPHEARLME(HE )KL
MEARARARZERERSEASEER
A(EAKEARD AT BAKRER
BRERAR(SAREI(GBEIEAE
B HRPFEKT) AR B R M
B—BTE MRARBAZERRR -
FREERRERERRARZIEZENE

AR ¢

REER RNEBRETINEBRERR:

e BUERHENXE
o BUERHERIKES

e RHUMR ERREMHEBEEE
MBEARHEENDHRABRE
BHBARLR /LR (E
MBBARREMHIINETZK
BEREMEM®

RER > NRREHEES1%EzS 2 B RQ
RAILREHRBIEERARQ2A4E LA
R #8,590,0007t 2 K& - WM B B
IBEERZEREELR - =M B BIEE S
BRRAR - BRBAZHRAIEERERA
Al-EBEEHRIEERERAA TLH
HIEERERAR - EmBEHIEEmESR
RAR -MMEBAHIEZEEERAAINLE
SBHHIEXFERBR A A 250.5%H#
mw UERKETMHHIBERERRAZ
51%Em BEZHSRER=ZZT—Z=F
+ZA=+—HHREE ZEHKE
ERASHEEFZENBAR  HE
ERFEANMHEEIRHEE -

HEXZHRBRIKER S| KB
RHPZREBERGEAIRKEBE

k]
G

BHEREEERAA —T——F5§
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% Y = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 IRBEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Merger accounting for business combination
under common control

Pursuant to the Acquisition Transactions, the Company became a
holding company of the Acquired Entities. Since the Company and the
Acquired Entities were ultimately controlled by Haier Group both before
and after the completion of the Acquisition Transactions, the Acquisition
Transactions were accounted for using the principles of merger
accounting.

The consolidated income statements, consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity
and consolidated statements of cash flows of the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 include the results, changes in
equity and cash flows of all companies then comprising the Group and
the Acquired Entities, as if the corporate structure of the Group
immediately after the completion of the Acquisition Transactions had
been in existence throughout the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011, or since their respective dates of acquisition, incorporation or
registration, where this is a shorter period. The consolidated statements
of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and 1
January 2011 have been prepared to present the state of affairs of the
Group and the Acquired Entities as if the corporate structure of the
Group immediately after the completion of the Acquisition Transactions
had been in existence and in accordance with the respective equity
interests and/or the power to exercise control over the individual
companies attributable to the Company as at 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2011.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The operating results previously reported by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 have been restated to include the operating
results of the Acquired Entities as set out below:

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

2.1 B EE @)

AEEREEZRCBE_T——F+=
A=+ —-HISEZRLXBEEET -
NBREATHHBREBEER ZKEE

=
i

The Group
(as previously Acquired The Group
reported) Entities Elimination (combined)
rE rE
(HBEE2H]H) wiEER 3K 8 (& 6f)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T ARETTT ARBT T
Revenue WA 49,899,807 195,748 (5,698) 50,089,857
Profit before tax e 5 B A 1,848,522 5,343 — 1,853,865
Profit for the year F A i Al 1,462,645 4,278 — 1,466,923

The financial positions previously reported by the Group at 31
December 2011 and 1 January 2011 have been restated to include
assets and liabilities of the Acquired Entities as set out below:

AEFBBEEHRZIN_-_"ZFE——F+-A
=+—HARZE——F—-A—HZUHK
RAEES - LABEATHAEEKEE
BZEEREIE:

The Group
(as previously Acquired The Group
reported) Entities Elimination (combined)
rE rE
(i@ 2 ) W EER 3K 8 (& 6f)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T AR%ET T ARETT
31 December 2011 —E——£F
+=-—A=+-—H

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,739,647 148 — 1,739,795
Current assets B A B 12,554,389 61,421 — 12,615,810
Current liabilities mEAE 8,952,554 36,621 — 8,989,175
Non-current liabilities FERHBEE 1,060,629 — — 1,060,629
Equity 1 = 4,280,853 24,948 — 4,305,801

1 January 2011 —E——H%—H—H
Non-current assets FERHEE 1,286,652 168 — 1,286,820
Current assets BN E E 8,611,977 72,292 — 8,684,269
Current liabilities mE B & 6,880,570 51,790 — 6,932,360
Non-current liabilities FERHERE 204,421 — — 204,421
Equity s 2,813,638 20,670 — 2,834,308

BHEREERRAA —T——FFRK
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% Y = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the
non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises () the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 BETHERMNEESRIRE
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for AREBCDARFENYBHRERE XA
the current year’s financial statements. A EIERT BB B IS 3 &5 22 A o
IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time PR RS RS PR B 75 3 5 2 B
Adoption of International Financial AR5 FA SR B K ERA BB
Reporting Standards — Severe CHE) BT R & E Rl —
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed BREZEBERR
Dates for First-time Adopters B BRI 7
EE HE 2185
IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial PR B RS IR PR B 75 3 5 2 B
Instruments: Disclosures — SR FE 7R FBIRABFLA :
Transfers of Financial Assets ({&&T ) WE —
HHEEEZIEE]
IAS 12 Amendments Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes MR & 5t 2 B BestERFE 1258
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of F125 Fre® — EXEH
Underlying Assets CEHEN) 15 : AR A EAY
WeElz & 5]
The adoption of the revised IFRSs has had no significant financial effect BE 40 48 & =T B0 R Bt 765 3R 45 2 BI| NF 48 59 bt
on these financial statements. EMBMRBEREANMGLE -

SHESEMERAT —T——F5% 101



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% Y = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 Amendments

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
(Revised)

IFRS 13

IAS 1 Amendments

102 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans?

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Financial Instruments®
Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities®

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 — Transition Guidance®

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (Revised) — Investment
Entities®

Fair Value Measurement®

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation
of ltems of Other Comprehensive
Income’

Annual Report 2012
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 B JE 1B 5 KR &£ Xz Bl R
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING B 7% 3R & 2 Al ()
STANDARDS (Continued)

IAS 19 Amendments Employee Benefits’ Besr Rl ESEF
F195%
CEHEY)
IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements? et Rl BB HEK?
E27 5%
(K137
IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and BRastEl REE[FAREELFE
Joint Ventures? 55285k 7% &2
(F&1&3T)
IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial B & st 22 R e TR 325
Instruments: Presentation — F 325 ,57 BILTA:
Offsetting Financial Assets and (BT A) 2o —HE B A E
Financial Liabilities® RHBEEZER®
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production B BHmEs BFRAEBLEEEER
Phase of a Surface Mine® ZRELZE® FUYER K 72
2B 205
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs ZEFENFE RZE—_FHABEM
2009-2011 Cycle issued in May 20122 —EF——4F 2 % BB R B 7 i s
}EE/?Z R Z B8 F]?
F 2
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 ! RZE—Z—F+tA—HBalzEHBZ
FIEHER £
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 2 RZE—=F—HA—Basiz&HBRZ
FEHBEER
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 8 R-_E—NF—F—Hz2&HHZ
F[EHIR £
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 4 R-ZZE—RAF—A—BHZ2&HKAZ
FIEHEM £

BEAAREERZ RN RS
—SARIT ;

T

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

BREF IR ERE7H (BT A) Bk
ERREAHEEEE AR (0
EHRGHR) 2ER - FABRBERRAR
evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial RERTHFRLTHEEERBY B Z
position. The new disclosures are required for all recognised financial TETEAERZEN - BRREEES
instruments that are set off in accordance with IAS 32 Financial sHAERIESR A F T A ZHIEEE 2T
Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to recognised BRAMKIEELEEBHINE - G
financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting WERENEANSBURZR ZAIITEEF
arrangement of similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are set HLHFMARZRUM B TE  MER
off in accordance with IAS 32. The Group expects to adopt the BETAEERARERE @R F325%
amendments from 1 January 2013. ETHEE AEBEBEHE T —=F—
A—RARRMEHEIE -

The IFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose information about
rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements).
The disclosures would provide users with information that is useful in

BHEREMERAT —T——F5#% 103



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of a
comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial
assets into four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in IFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS 39, while
changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
(“FVQ”). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of
the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have been
designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this
entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 on hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The Group will quantify the effect
in conjunction with other phases, when the final standard including all
phases is issued.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities
including special purpose entities or structured entities. It includes a
new definition of control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 require management
of the Group to exercise significant judgement to determine which
entities are controlled, compared with the requirements in IAS 27 and
SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 replaces the
portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It
also addresses the issues raised in SIC 12. Based on the preliminary
analyses performed, IFRS 10 is not expected to have any impact on
the currently held investments of the Group.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It
describes the accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations
and joint ventures, and removes the option to account for joint ventures
using proportionate consolidation.

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities previously included in
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, IAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures and |1AS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these entities.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

In June 2012, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance in IFRS 10 and provide
further relief from full retrospective application of these standards,
limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to
only the preceding comparative period. The amendments clarify that
retrospective adjustments are only required if the consolidation
conclusion as to which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between IFRS 10 and IAS 27 or SIC 12 at the beginning of the annual
period in which IFRS 10 is applied for the first time. Furthermore, for
disclosures related to unconsolidated structured entities, the
amendments will remove the requirement to present comparative
information for period before IFRS 12 is first applied.

The amendments to IFRS 10 issued in October 2012 include a
definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity. Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS
9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were
made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Revised). The amendments to IFRS 12
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment entities. The
Group expects that these amendments will not have any impact on the
Group as the Company is not an investment entity as defined in IFRS
10.

Consequential amendments were made to IAS 27 and IAS 28 as a
result of the issuance of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (Revised) and IAS
28 (Revised), and the subsequent amendments to these standards
issued in June and October 2012 from 1 January 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
IFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances in which the
Group is required to use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair
value should be applied where its use is already required or permitted
under other IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 13 prospectively
from 1 January 2013.

The IAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented in
OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a
future point in time (for example, net gain on hedge of a net investment,
exchange differences on translation of foreign operations, net
movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-
sale financial assets) would be presented separately from items which
will never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains and losses on
defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and buildings). The
amendments will affect presentation only and have no impact on the
financial position or performance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013.

IAS 19 Amendments include a number of amendments that range from
fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-wording. The
revised standard introduces significant changes in the accounting for
defined benefit pension plans including removing the choice to defer
the recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes include
modifications to the timing of recognition for termination benefits, the
classification of short-term employee benefits and disclosures of
defined benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt IAS 19 Amendments
from 1 January 2013.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central clearing house
systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position of performance of the Group upon adoption on
1 January 2014.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued in May
2012 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2013. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of
the amendments may result in changes in accounting policies, none of
these amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact
on the Group. Those amendments that are expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s policies are as follows:

(@ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies the
difference between voluntary additional comparative information
and the minimum required comparative information. Generally,
the minimum required comparative period is the previous period.
An entity must include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides
comparative information beyond the previous period. The
additional comparative information does not need to contain a
complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening statement
of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period
must be presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or makes
reclassifications, and that change has a material effect on the
statement of financial position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period are not required to be presented.

(b)  IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies that income
taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment
removes the existing income tax requirements from IAS 32 and
requires entities to apply the requirements in IAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to equity holders.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as held
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the joint
venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint venture’s operations and
any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance
with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@ a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b)  a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral
control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly, over the joint
venture;

() an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than
20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a position to
exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d)  an equity investment accounted for in accordance with IAS 39, if
the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint
venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is
in a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint
venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to joint control,
resulting in none of the participating parties having unilateral control
over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities are stated at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio is different to the
Group’s equity interest, the share of post-acquisition results of the
jointly-controlled entities is determined based on the agreed profit
sharing ratio. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the jointly-controlled entities,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of jointly-
controlled entities is included as part of the Group’s investments in
jointly-controlled entities.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates and is not individually tested for
impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

As explained in note 2.1 above, the acquisition of subsidiaries under
common control is accounted for using the merger method of
accounting. The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries not under common control.

Business combinations under common contro

Under the merger method of accounting, the net assets of the
combining entities or businesses are combined using their existing
book values from the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of the acquirers’ interest in
the net fair value of acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of investment at the time of common
control combination. The consolidated income statement includes the
results of each of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under common control, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common control combination.

Business combinations not under common control

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Business combinations not under common control
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Business combinations not under common control
(Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

U

(i)

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

M

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

2% to 19%
5% to 33%
10% to 33%
9% to 19%

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Tools, furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of the property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the
cost of each investment property over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rate used for this purpose is 5%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Patents, licences and software

Purchased patents, licences and software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of not exceeding 10 years.

Management services arrangements

Management services arrangements are initially stated at fair value and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over the tenure of
management services arrangements of 20 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability to
measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products, commencing from the
date when the products are put into commercial production.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes in
fair value presented as other income and gains and negative net
changes in fair value presented as other expenses and losses in the
income statement. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if
the criteria under IAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them in the
near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly
changes, the Group may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does
not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss using the fair value option at designation, as these instruments
cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the income statement in other expenses and losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is recognised reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the income
statement in other expenses and losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect
to reclassify these financial assets. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold
these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to
the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the Group has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to
be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the income statement.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative
asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) B ®EERE @
Available-for-sale financial investments AHHENKIRE

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the LAl & ﬂ?ﬁ%& BEMs AEER
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that RERARTHEREREZBAR— E
an investment or a group of investments is impaired. B —AKRE LA RE -

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the M—EAHEEEELRBE  HKNX
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and @(?D GEREENNHLRESE) BEIRTT
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss AFEzZEZFH  EHRATEERZRF
previously recognised in the income statement, is removed from other EE RAZEMBEBEERZSH ,H b 2 T U
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement. =5 - W R U R R

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, BoBEATHEEZEAREMS &
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in HEEAE—BHEZAFTEHREEKR
the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination of what HIFATRE  UEEREKKNE B E
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. “Significant” is [quj A |BELD X E - G2
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” WNEAIE JJEZIBRE ZBEK $
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original J;Igﬁ CMEEREBNEF AR BB
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — AFERRERKANBER AE - FF
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the gyj}ﬁﬁé TT\ ﬁ RWRE - 25518 (R WEE K
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment RNREEHAFTEZEEZBT= BB
previously recognised in the income statement — is removed from G EZ bi) Tx B W & R 2 A RE
other comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement. ER)REMm2E Kz G - R
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale KPR - DlEANHEEE 2EFTE
are not reversed through the income statement. Increases in their fair JREBET2FZRAKIFED - RME
value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive BATEZEBIEENEMEEKZ
income. FRRER ©

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, MO BARMHEEEZERIAEMS A
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets BT AR EHEHK AR ZTEEE
carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for HEZEBFG A BEAKRZ
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between SHEIIREEKAEEEATERZE
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss %;E AE 2 ER(BERiZEEE
on that investment previously recognised in the income statement. RN RERZEMBEEIE) KK
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced 7’F\J SN ABBEIREE 2 RYRBEEE
carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest CWAREEREBERBRITIR R
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring ;]UE EREZHNEZE - F B U A THE
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of other BEHOEMIMAAE - HEKITAATF
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through B 1% 11 A] 2= #8 Hb B 1E U 35 3R P SRR B
the income statement if the increase in fair value of the instruments can BrZELE7EMHEEE JIEKIAZ
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss B E RS S B s R B o

was recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the income statement.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position,
net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated
to the conversion option that is recognised and included in
shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments
are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
is determined by reference to quote market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial
instruments where there is no active market, the fair value is determined
using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions for installation services and product warranties granted by
the Group on certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of installation services rendered,
repairs or returns, discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the income statement over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the income statement by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b)  from the rendering of services, when the services are rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

130 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012

BEwm

AEERE TEMAREE 2 ZERE R
EmRERBREHEENEBERHZE
KR% - #ERREKFMER AL/
REHBREMER) -

B &

BB ERaEEESERBYE R
HamaK s RER  ZAFERR-
e REAXABE AR IERZA
B ® PR 2 AT X 2 B R A it
HERR/UWA -

WA REERMA  MERIFES
ABRTEBAR WEBBEEZEA
EREFHASFEAFED BFERREAR
mikXEEEZEREERNER  XAD
RTEERT ABARER -

LN

AT REEF TSR AREER
I A BE T SEH BT B R I TR R

(@ HEEM REFEZIABIRER
REHEOHER TFTETEER X
SEHMELERTBELR—R
HEEREMEACEREE  TEER
% Il

b) AR WA - IR IR R

7 .
e

© 2K A KRB LG E

7 .
N

@ FMEBATLUNEAEERBER
MEBOE - R H15 T AIEE F
W EEHBE(WER) Z AR
KEEWAERBEREMBEE
BREDFE R EER &



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note 34 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a
market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions
are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of the Company is the
Hong Kong dollar while the RMB is used as the presentation currency
of the financial statements of the Company for the purpose of aligning
with the presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or transaction of monetary
items are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FE€:HEHRE @

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of the subsidiaries not established in the PRC
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of the subsidiaries not established in the PRC are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of these subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its property
portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the
terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation for the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of items of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to industry cycles. The
depreciation charge will increase when the useful lives are less than the
previously estimated useful lives, or management will write off or write
down obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment was RMB1,308,806,000 (2011: RMB990,212,000 (as
restated); 1 January 2011: RMB863,893,000 (as restated)).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets at
31 December 2012 was RMB455,634,000 (2011: RMB382,642,000;
1 January 2011: RMB221,311,000).

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and recognises
movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair value declines,
management makes assumptions about the decline in value to
determine whether there is an impairment that should be recognised in
the income statement. At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of
available-for-sale assets was RMB2,925,000 (2011: RMB8,625,000;
1 January 2011: RMB8,625,000).

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising from the
inability of its debtors to make the required payments. The Group
makes its estimates based on the ageing of its receivable balances,
debtors’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate so that the actual
impairment loss might be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis of making the allowance. At 31 December
2012, the carrying amounts of trade receivables and other receivables
were RMB6,924,088,000 (2011: RMB5,581,424,000 (as restated);
1 January 2011: RMB3,931,671,000 (as restated)) and
RMB431,014,000 (2011: RMB405,624,000 (as restated); 1 January
2011: RMB311,228,000 (as restated)), respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

3.
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assessment of the write-down amount involves management’s
judgements and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in
future is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of the inventories and the write-down charge/reversal
in the period in which such estimate has been changed. At 31
December 2012, the carrying amount of inventories was
RMB2,479,191,000 (2011: RMB2,114,687,000 (as restated); 1 January
2011: RMB1,358,334,000 (as restated)).

Product warranty and installation provisions

Product warranty and installation provisions are made based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of installation services
rendered, repairs or returns. The assessment of the provision amount
involves management’s judgements and estimates. Where the actual
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reversed in the period in which such estimate has been changed. At
31 December 2012, the product warranty and installation provisions
amounted to RMB801,215,000 (2011: RMB691,410,000; 1 January
2011: RMB443,518,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has three reportable
segments as follows:

(@  the washing machine business segment manufactures and sells
washing machines;

(b)  the water heater business segment manufactures and sells water
heaters; and

(c)  the integrated channel services segment provides logistics, after-
sale and other value-added consumer services as well as sells
and distributes home appliances and other products procured
from Haier Affiliates and other external parties.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing borrowings, tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities, convertible bonds and other unallocated liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

4,

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

CEBER

AEBREEMRREREFZHEEM
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#
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2 &
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&E@ﬁ%%%ﬁ%%%&%%
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O 2 REREMER °

EEEBUEREASESLESE X
B ERERIBERIZRRAZRARE
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RBEXHRFFEFRFIRIN > ZEHE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4,
(Continued)
Washing machine Water heater
business business
R T HOKEREK
2012 2011 2012 2011
il Sk — T ——F Emblgmii — T — —fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T PGSR AR T PN R
Segment revenue: DERA
Sales to external customers [A)9NE & P & 5,197,582 4,886,760 848,740 548,980
Intersegment sales DEREE 8,079,701 7,328,110 EEEXIONPIM 3,279,323
Total FEE RPN 12,214,870 4,489,460 3,828,303
Reconciliation: HE
Elimination of HEHERHEE
intersegment sales
Segment revenue AERA
Segment other income AEEMBAR
and gains W 25 55,706 16,550 13,682
Total segment revenue, DEWA - Eib
other income and gains NGy L
Segment results PEEE 1,105,250 896,379 500,055 382,417
Reconciliations: FE
Elimination of D
intersegment results E4
Interest income MEUWA
Corporate and other AR RHEM
unallocated expenses AP EER
Finance costs BMEKA
Profit before tax B 5% A& A
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s s
=

b

Integrated channel

services

REGARBESR

2012
—E—_—F
RMB’000
AR TR

49,568,725
1,199,858

50,768,583

26,291

735,494

2011
-
RMB’000
ARMET T
(Restated)
(7))

44,654,117
723,273

45,377,390

8,893

747,122

ER-F S0 )

Consolidated

o]

2012
—E-—_—F
RMB’000
AR®T

55,615,047
12,920,279

68,535,326

(12,920,279)

55,615,047

70,396

55,685,443

2,340,799

25,930
35,854

(93,817)
(64,504)

2,244,262

2011
—E——F
RMB’000

AREFTT
(Restated)
(&)

50,089,857
11,330,706

61,420,563

(11,330,706)

50,089,857

78,181

50,168,038

2,025,918

(109,299)
21,242

(61,504)
(22,492)

1,863,865



(Continued)

Segment assets AREE
Reconcilitions: HE
Elimination of intersegment HENER
receivables ERER
Deferred tax assets BERRAE
Pledged deposts BEREH
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEERR
Corporate and other unalocated 2 & & E
assets AAREE
Total assets KEAE

Segment liabilities

Reconcilitions:

Elimination of intersegment
payables

Deferred tax iabiities

Tax payable
Interest-bearing
borrowings
Convertble bonds TRRES
Corporate and other REIREM
unallocated liabilties FHRAMR

Total liabilties

Washing machine business

31 December
2012

=t Dt
-A
RMB'000
ARBTR

4,836,909

1,822,744

L ES ]

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Water heater business

BAERE

4,

KETHFE R @)

Integrated channel servicess

RERABEEE

31 December 31 December
2012 2011

bt St 3 2%
Bl - A=t-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTTL
(Restated)

(&31)

1 January 31 December

-7
RMB'000
ARBER

RMB'000
ARBTT
(Restated)
(€2

31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011 2012 2011 2011
2% 2% =t D 2% -F-F
T-A=+t-R -A-A bl F-A=t-R -A-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETR ARBTR ARMTE ARETR
3739397 3,109,747 1,445,075 1,034,867 953,467
2079518 1,447177 756,761 523,136 344,235

7,838,476 5309427 3,379,253 14,120,460

(5133462)
455,634
61,804
5,368,308

3,340,522

18,213,266

8,575,486 6705931 4,187,876 11,154,991

(5133,462)
8,755
837,476

39,800
699,643

4,765,835

12,373,038

BHERKEERAAF

—=

Consolidated

£y

1

31 December 1 January
2011 2011

R %%
+t=A=t-R -A-A
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTE ARETR
(Restated)  (Restated)

(31)

(Z51)

0,083,691 7,442,467

2292098 (1,128,230)
3640 22131
87,402 3011
3961781 2737413

1

(

10,049,804

2,132,187

695,117

4,355,605 9,971,089

9308585  5979,288

2,292,098 (1,128,230)
8,826 9,267
619,362 616,318
25,000 5,000
669,849 -

1,710,280

1,655,148

7,136,781
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)
Washing machine business Water heater business
FERH KR Ok R

2012 2011 2012
—E-——f EEEREl T —F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR® T N AR TR

Other segment HittpEEHR:

information:
Provision for obsolete B RO

and slow-moving FERE

inventories
Provision/(reversal HibEWIRRZ

of provision) WERE/

of impairment on (BERE)

other receivables 4,228 (331)
Product warranty and ERRER

installation provisions REBE 437,455 514,230 240,088
Loss/(gain) on HE/ MEmE -

disposal/write-off BER&EREE

of items of property, 2B/ () F8

plant and equipment, net
Impairment of property, plant %1% - §E &

and equipment ZEAE
Impairment of intangible ERBERE

assets = =
Depreciation and amortisation #7 & & # 44 39,760 20,712
Corporate and other DA R EA

unallocated amounts AOEEH
Capital expenditure* BRRX" 252,454 37,488
Corporate and other DA R EA

unallocated amounts AOESH
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment, prepaid land lease payments and intangible assets.
Geographical information

Over 90% (2011: 90%) of the Group’s revenue is derived from
customers in Mainland China and over 90% (2011: 90%) of the Group’s
non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred tax
assets, are situated in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

During the year, there was no customer which individually accounted
for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2011: Nil).
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2011
===F4F
RMB'000

AR T

278,170

KETHFE R @)

Integrated channel services Consolidated
REGAMBEY RE
2012 2011 2012 2011
el T emblgmpay T —
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR T PN ARSTT N
(Restated) (Restated)
(B3)) (871))

4,228 (331)

677,543 792,400

(227) 1,580
5,503 5,503

5,340 5,340
46,508 106,980

4,440
111,420

183,436 258,652 473,378 312,988

3,209 4,348
476,587 317,336
* EARXBERNEYE BERRE -
BN EERRELEE -
i 35 &

AEFBIBIO%(ZZT ——F :90%) 1
WA RERE A2 EF  MAEE
FBB0% (=T — —F 1 90%) MY IE 7t B)
EEMTEREEMMETIARELEHRE
B EE) THL A B i o

THEIEEFEH

FA - EEP ARG AR EBE K A10%
FNE(CE——F 8-
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5, WA - Htlg A K W=
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net WATREBIAEEB > & %% EEHE M
invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and after ZEEZRE MK EER EEEERE
allowances for returns and trade discounts; and the value of services BOMMUAERFARARERGHEE -

rendered during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ B ARKZESDFTIOT -
Group xE&E
2012 2011
=E-—C-F —T——%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T
(Restated)
(E3)
Revenue KA
Sale of goods HEEY 52,954,210 47,915,677
Rendering of services RHER® 2,660,837 2,174,180
55,615,047 50,089,857
Other income Hfth It A
Bank interest income HRATH S WA 21,242
Government subsidies* BB &~ 21,464
Compensation received from suppliers Bt R E 37,423
Gross rental income in respect of buildings BFzHSKRARE 2,404
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments  A] it tH &£ 1% & 2 f& S g A 1,088
Others Hih 14,902
106,060 99,423
Gains W 2=
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEMHEERE 2 Wa 190 —
—
99,423
* Various government grants have been received from the relevant * AEBEEHREE M ERHKIRERE M
authorities of the Chongaing Municipality and Wuhan Municipality for the REMEBRERAMEL ZZEBNME
Group’s businesses conducted in those areas. There are no unfulfilled B & o B B B) & 0 4R 1 R 2K 2 IR
conditions or contingencies relating to these grants. AR EIE
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBR® AR F

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

AEEZBBRAENEMSR (HER)T

5| %38 -
2012 2011
. —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥E TR ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost of inventories sold EHFERA 44,269,773 40,611,896
Cost of services provided 12 fH AR 75 Ak 2 2,306,852 1,930,233
Depreciation of property, plant Y- BEMERETE
and equipment 15 97,749 83,820
Depreciation of investment properties KEMERE 16 1,192 1,672
Recognition of prepaid land premiums BREMN LB HZES 17 5,287 4,907
Amortisation of intangible assets * T A B g 18 7,192 4,831
Research and development costs MERAZEER 234,700 166,725
Auditors’ remuneration % B Bl B 6,250 5,850
Employee benefit expense EERAAXZ
(including directors’ and (BREEER
chief executive’s remuneration RETBRABZME
— note 8): —Hf7E8) :
Wages and salaries TENES 2,457,077 2,176,185
Welfare & F 50,475 44,160
Pension scheme contributions BIRE FT B K 442,714 356,014
Equity-settled share option expense AR AR GEE 7 AR R X 39,620 29,953
Minimum lease payments under THREFEEEDOZ
operating leases in respect of land &K & KA
and buildings 105,483 116,167
Provision for obsolete and W REHTE BB A
slow-moving inventories* 90,049 35,634
Product warranty and ERRERTEEE
installation provisions 31 677,543 792,400
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HE MEDE BER
property, plant and equipment, net** REBEBZEBEFE 1,580 60
Impairment of property, plant Y% - BB N % R (E
and equipment™* 15 5,503 —
Impairment of intangible assets** EmEERE™ 18 5,340 —
Provision/(reversal of provision) H b e IBR X 2 R E B8,
of impairment of other receivables, net*™ (& & # [ ) /5 58 ** 23 4,228 (331)
Foreign exchange differences, net P N Z R F5E 24,683 63,603
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 6. BR®LATE M @0

* The amortisation of intangible assets and provision for obsolete and slow- * FERNEFEEHHEAN B R AEHET
moving inventories for the year are included in “Cost of sales” on the face EEREDREAWEEIATEERK
of the consolidated income statement. PNIE

> The net loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, plant and o HE MW BERRXEBEEZE
equipment, impairment of property, plant and equipment, impairment of BEE Y BELSERE  B2F
intangible assets and net provision of impairment of other receivables are B E N H b pE U BE B B
included in “Other expenses and losses” on the face of the consolidated SEEO NS AN EINATEMER R
income statement. B8 | B o

FINANCE COSTS 7. MERX

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERADHAT :

Group RE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBF T

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable ERAFREHEEZEENS

within five years 1,068
Notional interest on loans from EEBRBRRERZZEFE

non-controlling shareholders —
Interest on convertible bonds (note 30) AR EH F B (M 5E30) 21,424

64,504 22,492
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERBRITHRAEMS
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed NEBEREESHAKXIMER A AE
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock A FmBAT EmBLDREEDTK
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 BlE1IIEEBCEERTSTHRAE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: BT :
Group KE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R AR T T

Fees e 707
Other emoluments: Hu & :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FULEDA= 1,604
Performance-related bonuses RIRIEA 288
Equity-settled share option expense AR A EE 2 IR X 3,993
Pension scheme contributions RIRS B K 150
5,306 6,035
6,083 6,742
In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect KA EE RIBEARR R 2 8ERES
of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the B ATESAERASERE ZRY
Company, further details of which are set out in note 34 to the financial ERBERE ERFRARMBHRRNM
statements. The fair value of these options, which has been recognised HM - ZEEBREZLAFEDRER

EHEE YEREBHERERAE
R EXNEERERTRABZHME T
BERBRCAAREENBHRRZE
7o

in the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(@)

Independent non-executive directors:

Fees

ik

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

8. EERBEITHRAEMSE

(%)

(@)

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

Fe EUER
BY RS

BYIFRITES:

Equity-settled
share option Total
expense
RAGEH 2
BB R B 2

remuneration

2012 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—B——fF AR%T AR® T AR¥B T AR® T

Mr. Wu Yinong RIMBRAE

Mr. Yu Hon To, David &1 [E & 4

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 285 215 1

2011

—T——F

Mr. Wu Yinong RIMELEE 229 20 32 281

Mr. Yu Hon To, David &1 & % 4 249 25 36 310

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng 285z 18 18 4 229 26 32 287
707 71 100 878
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

8. EEREETHAEME

REMUNERATION (continued) ()
(o) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the chief b BTEF FRTEFRHZSTH
executive: AB:
Salaries
allowances  Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits —related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
¢ 2ER NRAGEEZ BiRe
ik BEVRR RATAL  BRERX TR Memm
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETTT AREFT
2012 —B--F%
Executive directors: WTES:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian® hemxt!
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAEALE
Mr. Li Hua Gang FEMLE
Non-executive directors: FRTES:
Mr. Wu Ke Song B4
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 28I E
Ms. Feng Junyuan, Janine BETKL
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu™ HERFRE™
2011 —E——-F
Executive directors: RNTES
Ms. Yang Mian Mian* Bk at? - 110 - - 25 135
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAEALE - 560 132 1,331 25 2,048
Mr. Li Hua Gang FEHLE — 360 81 388 25 854
Mr. Sun Jing Yan* BRERAE - 340 75 388 25 828
- 1,370 288 2,107 100 3,865
Non-executive directors: FHMITES:
Mr. Wu Ke Song RRibEE - 67 - 1,786 25 1,878
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 28IL5%E - 67 - - 25 92
Ms. Feng Junyuan, Janine BETRL - 29 - - - 29
Mr. Gui Zhaoyu™ EBRFLE - — — - - -
— 163 - 1,786 50 1,999
- 1,633 288 3,893 150 5,864

Ms. Yang Mian Mian is also the chief executive of the Company.

Mr. Sun Jing Yan resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 24 August 2011.

Mr. Gui Zhaoyu is the alternate director to Ms. Feng Junyuan,
Janine.

ke

There was no arrangement under which a director or chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES o

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors (2011: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2011: two) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

TEBEFHNES

ERNAABSFHERRE=RES
—E—F ZREF) EHES>
B SR £ X HHEES - ERB T WA
(ZZ——% ME)AARAFERRHE
BETRARSEHMER 2B S HE
M

Group NE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAEREYF R 1,102
Performance-related bonuses KIBIEAL —
Equity-settled share option expense ARG A4 H 2 B IR 2 941
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B3R 22 20

2,063

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HFEERIESTHAERSHMES
MEETIEERBARZARMT

Number of employees
EEAH
2012 2011
—EB—C—F —ET——F

Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz A R#1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 A R#1,000,001 7T &
A R #1,500,000 7T

P

In prior years, share options were granted to non-director and non-
chief executive, highest paid employees in respect of their services to
the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in
note 34 to the financial statements. The fair value of these options,
which has been recognised in the income statement over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RAREE  FEERIFZRTHRAER
ERFMEERRENAEERMHRZR
BRERERE GRAFBHNTHRE
MEdZHER - ZEBREZATE
DREHBREE  TEREBHREK
ERER EXFEERIEZESTHRA
ExaFMEES2HemBEE 2EE
AREEPBERR IS -
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10. INCOME TAX

10. FT B %

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rated of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made in 2011 as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Tax on profits assessable in Mainland China has been calculated at the
applicable PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) rates. Certain subsidiaries
of the Group are entitled to preferential tax treatments including a
reduction in CIT and a full exemption from CIT for two years starting
from their first profit-making year followed by a 50% reduction in CIT for
the next consecutive three years. Certain subsidiaries of the Group are
entitled to preferential tax treatments of reduction in the CIT rate to

FEENSRIOIRBEFARTEELEZ
il 51 FE AR W 4 A 42 16.6% 2 Tt & 5t 12 %
B-R_F——F AEELEEAR
BEEZERBEN > Bt EEHE
MG B

1A R B 1A 4t AR A B R 2 TR
DEBERATECEMSERTEEMRE
BOBREXFHE - AEBETHERRAE
REAVABEFE BRERRERE
FrE® - AR B & B F 5 E &R EF
ERE2BHBRLEEMSH  URNERE
B=FERR0%ECEMEH - AEH
ETHEBRARAEZERBRESRFE

15%. SR i §
R TR Y (b R PTAS BE R 15% B o
Group KE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
(Restated)
(E3)
Current — Hong Kong BNH — &A
Charge for the year FAZ T 3,212 —
Current — Mainland China BVER — fh B A i
Charge for the year FRALH 608,856 549,189
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBBEEE (1,791) (916)
Deferred (note 32) BT (BT 5E32) (72,992) (161,331)
Total tax charge for the year FAMBZ LB 386,942
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10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. fT8#H (%)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the BARRNBRERIBD B R R FTER A
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the BB ZEEMRAERBR B AN SN 2518
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the YH O BRIREERERERAFE 2R EYHE 2
effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the FAE UREABRRBIEZERR)EET
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows: R R 2 AWM -
Group — 2012 rEE-—Z2—=-F

Profit/(loss) before tax

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
gk Rl A 3t At
RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000
AR T AR T % AR®TT
Bk B4 Al g A1l
(&518) (117,846) 2,362,108 2,244,262

Tax at the statutory tax rate

BAEBEFE

T RIE (19,445) : 590,527 ! 571,082
Adjustments in respect BT HR Z BN HA
of current tax of RIBIEL 2
previous periods EEES — (1,791) b (1,791)
Income not subject to tax  FE R UL A (2,939) . (1,226) : (4,165)
Expenses not deductible 7~ 7] 31 %4 5 &%
for tax 25,596 165,864 d 191,460
Tax losses not recognised K fE 32 %% B 5 48 - 33,034 ’ 33,034
Tax exemption TRIBEA R - (252,335) 4 (252,335)
Tax charge at the Group’s & N &= & 2
effective tax rate BB ERAE
ZHEZE 534,073 d 537,285
Group — 2011 NEH-—FT——&
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB o B i st
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARET T % ARETT % AR®ETTT %
(Restated) (Restated)
(&251) (E31))
Profit/(loss) before tax M B2 Bl 3 Al
(E18) (74,801) 1,928,666 1,853,865
Tax at the statutory tax rate  #% A E f7 K5+ &
218 (12,342) 16.5 482,167 25.0 469,825 25.3
Adjustments in respect A H3 2 BN 2
of current tax of TRIE(EL 2
previous periods EERS — — (916) - 916) —
Income not subject to tax  FERFE UL A (779) 1.0 (1,573) (0.1) (2,352) (0.1)
Expenses not deductible A H1Fi B
for tax 13,121 (17.5) 76,496 4.0 89,617 4.8
Tax losses not recognised 7k #E 53 %% 18 &5 18 — — 12,313 0.6 12,313 0.7
Tax exemption I % — — (181,545) ©.4) (181,545) ©.8)
Tax charge at the Group’s X AEE 2
effective tax rate ERTERHE
Z BB — = 386,942 20.1 386,942 20.9

BHESEMERAT —T——F5% 151



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% Y = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

11.

12.

13.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Of the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB1,695,122,000 (2011: RMB1,407,458,000 (as restated)), a loss of
RMB118,246,000 (2011: RMB74,424,000) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 35(b)).

DIVIDENDS

AR FRREAGRF

EARARAIBRREMAEEREMNARKE
1,695,122,000.( =& — —F: AR K
1,407,458,0007T (L &%) F BEAR
#118,246,0007L( =T — —F . AR K
74,424,0007T) B £ AN A A 2 B 75 3R &K A
B2 2 (K 5E35(0)) °

. RE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R

ARETTT

Proposed final — HK8 cents

(2011: Nil) (Z2——%:3)

Bk RS — B8 n

157,480 =

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,396,748,020 (2011: 2,300,165,017) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, adjusted to reflect the interest on the convertible bonds,
where applicable (see below). The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares, and the contingently issuable shares.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO 13. Z A FIZ @R B HE(LE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE B% 2 R
COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

BEREARBERNZATERGTE

2012 2011
—E-—F —ZET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
(Restated)
(&E3)
Earnings 23
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of AR ESREARRT 2R A A
the Company used in the basic earnings I 378 A% A% R A 0 A
per share calculation 1,695,122 1,407,458
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESF A 61,631 21,424
Number of shares
BHHE
2 2011
—ET——F
Shares BS{ {ﬁ
Weighted average number of ordinary shares GG in EXRABFZEHA
in issue during the year used in the E?éﬁ 3B M AN A 15 A% B
basic earnings per share calculation 2,396,748,020 2,300,165,017
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of BEYE — TRRMNEFEIRE
ordinary shares:
Warrants AR M 7 101,080,154 165,253,988
Share options & IR e 52,875,229 60,489,188
Contingently issuable shares” KA FETZRA! 3,820,805 10,056,372
Convertible bonds AR E S 100,000,000 35,616,438

257,776,188 271,415,986
2,654,524, 2,571,581,003"

In the prior year, as the diluted earnings per share amount was increased * REFE BRFARARKRESZ
when taking convertible bonds into account, the convertible bonds had REERFSEL LM AT RRES
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share and were ignored in HERERBMNFERBEZE BN
the calculation of diluted earnings per share. Therefore, the diluted ESREEARNSETTHE - Bt

earnings per share amount for the prior year was based on the profit of REFEEREFSRINEDIRER
RMB1,407,458,000 (as restated), and the weighted average number of *U/\E#ﬁ ,407,458,000 7C (i‘“iéﬂJ) LA K2

Total F

ordinary shares of 2,535,964,565 in issue. B 3 17 I 18 A% hn 4 7 15 £02,535,964,565
MREHE -

# The contingently issuable shares represented the estimated number of # KA FTEHTZRODERRZ=ZZTE—=F
shares to be issued to certain Haier franchise store owners and certain MAEBEKBARSE T ESRMEEH#E
non-controlling shareholders of the Group’s subsidiaries in 2013. These BARETHERBRRET 2 MEER
Haier franchise store owners entered into management services HEE  ZEBRMBAEHEE AERE
agreements with the Group and achieved the prescribed performance EEUBEERS S WERIEERR
targets and these non-controlling shareholders’ of the Group’s E = ﬁ’ﬁ ZEREBME R AT Hxﬁx

REUK D B R M 5 15 o - 3 B R E

subsidiaries entered into incentive agreements with the Group and met

the prescribed financial and operational performance targets. Further
details of the management services agreements and incentive agreements
are included in notes 18 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

B I & @%ﬁﬁ%°mﬁmﬁﬁm&
BEE 2 E—SFED BRI
RN FE18 %29 °
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with Haier Affiliates during the year:

14. BEATRS

(@)

BRIt EM MR EM AL D Fl 2

BEALRFHI

AEBRFRHE

BREBARCETATEAR

5

2012
—_E—_F
RMB’000
AR® T

Export sale of washing machines and

water heaters
Domestic sale of products
Purchase of finished goods
Purchase of raw materials

Printing and packaging fee expenses

Mould charges

Utility service fee expenses
Promotion fee expenses

Other service fee expenses
Interest income

Interest expenses

Other financial service fees
Trademark licence fee expenses
Logistic services income
After-sale service income

#

Premise lease income
Premise lease expenses
Purchase of equipment

HASHE R RER

EK B
B 88 S E @
PR B &
B R R

Bl & BREXH

BEABEH
AARBEH
EFEXH
HAAR# &
S WA

B X
Hit e @ iR% &
EIEERE L
W)m AR5 WA
ERRBBEA
MEBEERA
MEHEEXH
RERE

1,566,686
221,410
26,866,861
11,237,974
57,997
179,014
95,033
204,566
378,906
21,224
1,469
6,173
1,795,008
218,620
1,008

1,051
16,033

#

The trademark licence fee expenses were charged at a nominal
consideration of RMB1 during the year.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.
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2011
—F——4F
RMB’000
ARBT T
(Restated)
(&%)

1,453,159
142,239
27,810,983
10,709,295
29,927
135,403
80,082
185,969
181,614
13,383
1,068
7,639
1,728,842
184,125
2,016
2,043
1,854

! FA - BREREXHIIRRE
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 14. BEALTRF @)

(o)  Other transactions with related parties: ) BEEALZEMRS:

()  During the year, the Group acquired the Acquired Entities i) FEA XEBNEBEREAR
at an aggregate consideration of RMB8,590,000, which #£ 8,590,000 7T Y 5 1% U B8 &
was determined with reference to the respective amounts B REDIRKREWRKRES
of paid-in capital of the Acquired Entities. Further details of BEABZBAERNET  #Z
these transactions are included in note 1 to the financial ERGZE—FTHBERE
statements. BRI E ©

(i) During the year, the Group disposed of one of its available- iy FARA AEERNESEBDH
sale-investments, with a carrying amount of RMB6,000,000, EE—"HEHEEEAARK
to Qingdao Haier for RMB6,190,000, which was determined 6,000,0007T 2 A ft 1 & &
with reference to the net asset value of the available-for-sale g REAARI6,190,000
investment. T RS2 EAHBERE

LEEFBEEE
(c)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: € AEBZTEEEAS ZHMHM:

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ART T

Short term employee benefits HEERF 5,081
Post-employment benefits BE 2 12 A 270
Equity-settled share option expense AR A EH 2 IR X 5,869
Total compensation paid to ENEZEEBAEZ
key management personnel 42 =8 11,220
The number of non-director and non-chief executive, key EERIIZFETHRAEZTE
management personnel whose remuneration fell within the ERBEAEMEETIEETEETER
following bands is as follows: ZANEMT
Number of key
management personnel
FEEBEAEA
2011
—EF——F
Nil to RMB500,000 Z % AR #500,0007T 1
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 A R #500,001 7t &
A K #1,000,0007T 4
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 A K %1,000,001 7T &

A K #1,500,0007T

Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments are EENEETBRAEME 2 M4
included in note 8 to the financial statements. IBHN MBS RFTIES -
The related party transactions in respect of item (a) also constitute BHEQEZBEEANTZ S NERKEE
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the BEL S (X0 FEAE+mAS) -
Listing Rules.
The related party transactions in respect of item (b) also constitute EBFBELEZBAEANALR S INEK B E
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. RH(EER EMBHAUEFTHAE) -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRZ®B

Group A&
Tools,
Plant and furniture Motor Construction
Buildings machinery and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
IR KR
BF BERHKH R#E AE EEIR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTI ARETRT ARBTT ARETR

31 December 2012
At 1 January 2012 (as restated):

—Z--—#+=-H=+-H
RZZE——4%—F—H

(& E35) :
Cost B A 621,997 767,224 29,686 83,765 310,764 1,813,436
Accumulated depreciation 2HME (244,769)  (506,072) (20,262) (52,121) - (823,224)
Net carrying amount REFE 377,228 261,152 310,764 990,212

Cost at 1 January 2012, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment (as restated)

R-ZZ——%—A—H
ZHAR - BNk R
WERREGEES)

377,228

261,152

9,424

31,644 310,764

990,212

Additions wNE 653 7,625 3,432 18,351 398,818 428,879
Disposals/write-off e 3 (449) (3,469) (198) (133) (2,784) (7,033)
Impairment HE - (GREL)] (364) - - (5,503)
Depreciation provided during FERITERE

the year (24,796)  (56,612) (6,104)  (10,237) = (97,749)
Transfers =37 113,315 116,883 8,738 3,165 (242,101) -

Cost at 31 December 2012,
net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment

R-ZZ——F+=-RA=+—H
ZHAR BB REITE
KA E

465,951

At 31 December 2012:

R-B——F+-R=+—8:
&N

320,440

42,790 464,697

1,308,806

Cost 734,202 843,277 35,661 101,384 464,697 2,179,221
Accumulated depreciation 2EMERAE

and impairment (268,251)  (522,837)  (20,733)  (58,594) - (870415)
Net carrying amount BREFE 465,951 320,440 464,697 1,308,806

31 December 2011 (as restated)

At 1 January 2011:

=2 —£+4+-fF=+-—H
(BE7)

R-F——-A—A8:

Cost AR 614,808 729,319 24,834 77,229 168,518 1,614,708

Accumulated depreciation LR (216,631)  (464,468) (16,856) (52,860) - (750,815)

Net carrying amount BREFE 398,177 264,851 7,978 24,369 168,518 863,893
Cost at 1 January 2011, net of R-—Z——F&—F—H2

accumulated depreciation KA BNk 2T E 398,177 264,851 7,978 24,369 168,518 863,893
Additions NE = 9,482 4,935 14,687 184,552 213,656
Disposals/write-off & = (84) @ (154) (8,277) 3,517)
Depreciation provided during FRAMERE

the year (28,138) (44,937) (3,487) (7,258) — (83,820)
Transfers B 7,189 31,840 — — (39,029) -
Cost at 31 December 2011, R-ZE——&+-_A=+—H

net of accumulated ZHAR  BNGKRAITE

depreciation 377,228 261,152 9,424 31,644 310,764 990,212
At 31 December 2011: R-ZE——&+=-A=+—8:

Cost AR 621,997 767,224 29,686 83,765 310,764 1,813,436

Accumulated depreciation 2T E (244,769) (506,072) (20,262) (52,121) — (823,224)

Net carrying amount R F(E 377,228 261,152 9,424 31,644 310,764 990,212
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Group (Continued)
All buildings of the Group are erected on land in Mainland China and
are held under medium term leases.

As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s buildings with an
aggregate net book value of approximately RMB400,292,000 (2011:
RMB310,376,000; 1 January 2011: RMB329,824,000) did not have
building ownership certificates registered under the names of the
respective subsidiaries of the Company.

With respect to the above properties and the Group’s investment
properties, in prior years, Haier Corp issued three undertakings to the
Company, which agreed to provide other suitable properties to the
Group to ensure the operations of certain subsidiaries of the Company
and/or indemnify the Group against any losses arising from the above
defective property title issue. The aggregate net book value of the
Group’s buildings and investment properties indemnified by Haier Corp
as at 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately RMB206,894,000
(2011: RMB213,6083,000; 1 January 2011: RMB229,160,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group is entitled to lawfully and
validly occupy and use the buildings and investment properties for its
daily operations, notwithstanding the fact that the related building
ownership certificates have not yet been obtained.

15.

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

ME- BERSEKE@®

A& E (#)
AEERHETHMRPEAM - AR
hERNRE -

RZE—=—F+=ZA=+—H ' A&E
R EFELN A A R ¥ 400,292,000 7T
—ZT——4F: AR#¥310,376,0007T : —
T——F—F—H: AR#329824,000
TIZETEFEEARABDNESHE R
AL BEBRCEEESE -

REAYERAEBEEREEMENS * N
BEFE BBREEARBMARAIEL
—HEA SBREEARRERALEE
REHEEMAEEYE  UBREAQFET
MEBARACEERE RNBAEAEH
By RN BEEE M
BRX - RZTE—=—F+=ZA=+—8"
BREBRARBEASEZEFRIEE
Y % 4 IR TEDFE A A A R 206,894,000
T(ZZ —— F: AR ¥213,603,000
T —_FE——F—F—HB: AR¥
229,160,0007T) °

EEZRA BENADNSAEBELER
O EAEBERAERARMERR
ERBTREEMENETAEEE -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REMH

Group

REE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBF T

Cost at 1 January, R—HA—BZKRA -

net of accumulated depreciation Bk EITE 19,128 20,800
Disposals k= (3,213) =
Depreciation provided during the year FRFTERBE (1,192) (1,672)
Cost at 31 December, R+ZA=+—B2ZHA "

net of accumulated depreciation Bk REINE 19,128
At 31 December: Rt+=—A=+—8:

Cost (DN 28,783

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE 4,171) (9,655)

Net carrying amount BREFE 19,128

All investment properties of the Group are erected on land in Mainland
China and are held under medium term leases.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was approximately RMB17,136,000 as at 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB25,153,000; 1 January 2011: RMB28,219,000).
Property rentals from investment properties for the year ended 31
December 2012 amounted to approximately RMB2,016,000 (2011:
RMB2,404,000).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate net book value of approximately RMB14,723,000 (2011:
RMB15,914,000; 1 January 2011: RMB17,106,000) did not have
building ownership certificates registered under the names of the
respective subsidiaries of the Company. The Group obtained an
undertaking from Haier Corp in relation to this defective property title
issue, details of which are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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——F: AR#15914,0007T : — T ——
#—H—H8: AR%17,106,00070) 2 &
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17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. B L A E X
Group REE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBF T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEAE 264,201 175,714
Additions NE 1,611 93,394
Recognised during the year FAER (5,287) (4,907)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—_A=+—HBZKmE 260,525 264,201
Current portion included in prepayments, SEATENIIE e REHAM

deposits and other receivables FEUER R 2 R B 2B 7 (5,790) (4,824)
Non-current portion FEREE D M
All prepaid land premiums represent payments for leasehold land in FrBEEMN T HEASEREMRTPE A B
Mainland China held under medium term leases. B BBEARE 2 HE T FRIE -
As at 31 December 2012, certain parcels of the Group’s leasehold land RZE—ZF+=ZA=+—H8 A&
with an aggregate unamortised prepaid land premium amount of REHEBN T HEZFSBEAAAR
approximately RMB102,536,000 (2011: RMB104,777,000; 1 January #102,536,000c( = F ——F: ARK
2011: RMB66,916,000) did not have land use right certificates 104,777,000t : — T ——F—H—H:
registered under the names of the respective subsidiaries of the AR #66,916,0007T) 2 & TR & + 3
Company, all of which were indemnified by Haier Corp as at 31 WEARNRAARSHEMNBAR ZZEE
December 2012. Details of the undertakings granted by Haier Corp to 2T FERES  BREEAFER
the Company in relation to this title issue are set out in note 15 to the —E——&F+ - A=+—HRtELt2E
financial statements. HHE - BREERARIEHEMAEERM

BEMAARAARMEHAZZFBIRT S
HRMFE6
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

8. B EE

Group

Software

24
RMB’000

ARETT

31 December 2012

—B2-—%t+-A=t+-—H

At 1 January 2012: R—ZFE—=—F—H—H8:
Cost 23 213
Accumulated amortisation R
Net carrying amount BRHEFE 11,561

Cost at 1 January 2012,
net of accumulated

NZZE——F—H—H
ZA - BB REH

amortisation 11,561
Additions NE 7,378
Impairment A (5,340)
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A # §5 55 15 (3,692)
Cost at 31 December 2012, R-TB——F

net of accumulated +—A=t—BziRA&

amortisation and impairment BBk Rt kR E
At 31 December 2012: RZE——F

+=—A=+—8
Cost %N 25,737
Accumulated amortisation 25 RORE
and impairment (15,830)
Net carrying amount REHE

31 December 2011
At 1 January 2011:

—®——F+=A=+-¢
R=B——%—A—Q:

REE

Patents and
licences

BRI R 45 R
RMB’000

ARETT

2,429

(2,429)

Management
services
arrangements
EERB R
RMB’000
ARETTT
(note)

(B &E)

68,250

68,250

(3,50_0)

70,000
(5,250)

64,750

Total

Mzt
RMB’000
ARBTF T

90,788
(10,977)

79,811

79,811

7,378
(5,340)
(7,192)

98,166
(23,509)

74,657

Cost DN 4,679 2,429 - 7,108
Accumulated amortisation Sty (4,063) (2,083) — (6,146)
Net carrying amount REFE 616 346 - 962
Cost at 1 January 2011, net of R—_ZE——F—H—HZ
accumulated amortisation BN - BB 2 5T 3 8 616 346 — 962
Additions INE 13,680 = 70,000 83,680
Amortisation provided during the year 4 A # $5 %5 15 (2,735) (346) (1,750) (4,831)
Cost at 31 December 2011, net of N-ZTE——4F
accumulated amortisation +—A=+—HBZRA -
BRI 3 11,561 — 68,250 79,811
At 31 December 2011: RZT——F
+=—A=+—
Cost AR 18,359 2,429 70,000 90,788
Accumulated amortisation S (6,798) (2,429) (1,750) (10,977)
Net carrying amount BREFE 11,561 - 68,250 79,811
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. B E E @)
Company ¥/ NN

Management services
arrangements (note)
BB R = B (MY aE)
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
N ARBF T

At 1 January: R—A—8:
Cost JWN 70,000 —
Accumulated amortisation RN (1,750) —
Net carrying amount BREFE 68,250 -
Cost at beginning of year, REFZ A - B30k Rt 8
net of accumulated amortisation 68,250 =
Additions NE — 70,000
Amortisation provided during the year F AN HE B (3,500) (1,750)
Cost at end of year, RERZEKA B RET#H
net of accumulated amortisation 68,250
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Cost DN 70,000 70,000
Accumulated amortisation R (5,250) (1,750)
Net carrying amount REFE 68,250
Note: The cost related to the original fair values of the management services M - EHASER FFEKRENEERSH
agreements acquired by the Group in the prior year amounting to FHNRAFTEEBEOKAEARKE
RMB70,000,000, which are amortised over the tenure of the management 70,000,0007C * A RAB A TN E B RG
services agreements. According to the management services agreements, mEFHNEE - RBEEBRBHZ
the Group is entitled to receive management fees broadly equal to 2% of AEBEBRWMEERESE HAHMEESE
the annual purchasing orders (in monetary value) for 2011 to 2018 and 1% RETERNBEENFERBITE (S
for 2019 to 2030 from certain Haier franchise stores. BEBEN2% (T ——FE=_F—
NE)RI1% (B —NhEEZ_B=F

&) e
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

19. RINB AR 2 RE

¥/ NN
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBF T

FEEMHRE - KA

Unlisted investments, at cost

2,039,482 1,858,599

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the Company’s
non-current assets and non-current liabilities of RMB249,671,000 (2011:
RMB145,318,000) and RMB80,574,000 (2011: RMB80,698,000),
respectively, are unsecured, interest-free and are not repayable with
one year.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

FFARRABIERBDEERIERBAGBZ
FEREEMHBARDRESNAEAR
#249671,000 L (=T ——F: ARK
145,318,000 ) & A R #80,574,0007T
(ZZ2——% : AR¥80,698,0007T) & &
R 2ERR—FANLEER -

TEMBRARZERDT

incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
AL ERTERR KXATEHEEMN
=g o R B i B &R EE KREBDL FTEXH
Direct Indirect
HE =
Qingdao Haier Washing PRC/ RMB238,610,000 — 93.44 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of washing machines
EEERARBER QA" R A A R #238,610,0007T HEERHE SRR
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric PRC/ RMB48,800,000 — 60 Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of washing machines
FILTIREERERERAF HE HEAM A [ # 48,800,000 7T EERFHERRE
Hefei Haier Washing PRC/ RMB92,000,000 = 98.69 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of washing machines
SREEREREER QA" R A A #92,000,0007T HEREERKE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

19. R B AR Z’RE @)

IEMBRARZERNT - (8

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
M ERTZER QB EHEERS
£ By E—E$ 4 = EAREE BREBD FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing PRC/ RMB10,000,000 = 94.49 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China of washing machines
SEBEERAXRBERAR HEHERNM A K #10,000,0007C EERHERRE
Chongaing Haier Washing PRC/ RMB25,000,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of washing machines
EESRERBER AR H R A A B #25,000,0007T A E R SHE SRR
Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent PRC/ RMB20,000,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sale
Electronic Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of accessories for
electrical appliances
BT SR EEE T oD A A & #20,000,000 7T EERHEEREMN
AR
Qingdao New Goodaymart PRC/ USD49,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Logistics Service Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China
SBMBBIERERRE LA FE HEAM 49,000,000 7T BB R
Qingdao Goodaymart Lejia PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100 Sale of home electric
Trading Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
EERRIELRESER AR HE HEAM A R # 5,000,000 7T HERE
Qingdao Haier Drum Washing PRC/ USD12,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.*** Mainland China of washing machines
5B RRB LRI H B B A 12,000,000 7T R G K
AR A 7]
Chongging Haier Drum Washing PRC/ RMB250,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd.** Mainland China of washing machines
EEERMEMERBERRA > HEHEAM A K #250,000,0007C HEREHERRE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. REB AR 2R E @)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) FEMNBARIZERNET : (&)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
AR ERTZER QB EHEERS
£ By E—E$ 4 = EAREE REB DL FEXHK
Direct Indirect
B i
Qingdao Economy and PRC/ RMB120,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale
Technology Development Mainland China of water heaters
Zone Haier Water Heater
Co., Ltd. ***
FERBRMTAERER B B A A R 120,000,000 7T EERHERKER
HOKZBE AR A 7
Wuhan Haier Water Heater PRC/ RMB50,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. = Mainland China water heaters
BIRBBAKSEAR DA™ B, A A K #50,000,0007T A E RIHE HUKER
Chongqing Haier Water Heater PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China water heaters
EEFBERKBERAF R A A R #10,000,0007C A R 8H S BUK 28
Foshan Haier Drum Washing PRC/ RMB150,000,000 — 98.69 Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd.** Mainland China washing machines
FILER R A REERAF > REL A A R 150,000,000 7T HERHERRE
Chongqging New Goodaymart PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100 Sale of home electric
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd. *** Mainland China appliances
EFFAAIBREHE B A A R #5,000,0007T HERE
B AR
Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100 Sale of home electric
Co., Ltd. Mainland China appliances
BRERHEE (BE) B B A A R #5,000,0007T HERE
BR A 7]
Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales PRC/ RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Sale of home electric
Service Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
SEERBRHEERS R A A 5,000,000 7T HERE

BRAE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. REB AR 2R E @)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) FEMNBARIZERNET : (&)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
M ERTERR AAREEEAS
£ o % & 3 i B = MEAHEE BREBD FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i 4
Qingdao Haier Logistics PRC/ USD41,870,000 = 100 Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
FEEBYRERR R B, A 41,870,000 7& R Ut R
Beijing Haier Logistics PRC/ RMB1,000,000 = 100 Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
EREBBYIRAR AR HED R A AR #1,000,0007C R RIRSE
Qingdao Goodaymart Supply PRC/ RMB1,000,000 = 100 Provision of logistics
Chains Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
SEHRBIEHEREARARA> HEREA AR #1,000,000 7T R RS
Hefei Goodaymart Logistics PRC/ RMB500,000 — 100 Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
AEBRIEARARAF™ B B A i A B ¥ 500,0007T R Ut R
Chongaing Hairi Logistics PRC/ RMB500,000 = 100 Provision of logistics
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China service
EEBEMTERRA H R B A A R #500,0007C R A7 AR 5
Qingdao Goodaymart Electronics ~ PRC/ RMB20,000,000 — 100 Provision of after-sale
Service Co., Ltd.** Mainland China services
SSHBEERRBAER LA FE HEAH A B #20,000,0007T RAEE & RS
Goodaymart (Shanghai) Investment PRC/ USD71,700,000 100 — Investment holding
Co., Ltd. " Mainland China
BRIE(EB)/EERAR™ HE/HEAM 71,700,000 7T BEER
Shandong Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB20,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
IR B HIEEEARAE™ FR B, B A A B # 20,000,000 7T HERE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

19. R B AR Z’RE @)

IEMBRARZERNT - (8

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
M ERTERR AAREEEAS
£ o % & 3 i B = EAREE BREBD FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i 4

Chengdu Haixin Goodaymart PRC/ RMB9,800,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

KEEHBBIEERARAR FE HEANH A R #9,800,0007T HERSE

Yantai Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB30,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

ZEAaBBIREREERAF> H R A A 30,000,000 7T HERE

Hefei Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB20,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

AEEBIREEER A A H B B A A #20,000,0007T HERE

Hunan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

HEARIEEEERA T B B A i A R #10,000,0007C HERE

Xuchang Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

FFEHBIEERERA A H R B A A #10,000,0007T HERE

Suzhou Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

M B BIRERER DA™ H B, B A A R #10,000,0007T HERSE

Fujian Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB9,800,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliances Co., Ltd.** Mailand China appliances

BEBRIEEBERARRA A B B A i A R #9,800,0007T HERE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. REB AR 2R E @)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) FEMNBARIZERNET : (&)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
M ERTZER QB EHEERS
£ o % & 3 i B = EAREE BREBD FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i

Nanchang Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mailand China appliances

MERRAIEEEGRAF H B, A A R # 5,000,000 7T HERE

Wenzhou Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB6,000,000 - 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mailand China appliances

BMNBBRIEESEAFRA B HED R A A & #6,000,0007T HEXRSE

Liaoning Goodaymart Trading PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

FEHHIRFE AR A A H B B A A #10,000,0007T HERE

Xinjiang Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

HEARIEERGRA T H R B A A R #10,000,0007C HERE

Jiangsu Subei Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

I#RERIL B HIEERER QA RE A A F #10,000,0007T HERS

Tangshan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB6,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

B E BIRE AR QA H B, B A A R #6,000,000 7T HEKRSB

Shanxi Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

WA BIEE S ERAE™ B B A i A R #10,000,0007T HERE

Wuhan Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51 Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

REHHIEERER QA Fr B, B A A & #10,000,000 7T HERSE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

REB AR ZRE @

IEMBRARZERNT - (8

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
AR ERTZER QB EHEERS
£ By E—E$ 4 = EAREE REB DL FEXHK
Direct Indirect
B i
SHC International (HK) Ltd. Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 51 Export sales of small
home electric
appliances
HEFER(FE)ERAQA BE 1,000,000 7T HOHENRE
Ocean Vast Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ USD50,000 — 51 Export sales of small
Hong Kong home electric
appliances
BREEFRAR RERERES/ 50,000 7T HAEENKE
5
Sunlit Enterprise International Ltd.  British Virgin Islands/ USD200,000 = 51 Export sales of small
Mainland China home electric
appliances
BrEEBEERRA A REBRLHS 200,000 7T HAMENKE
R B A i
Haier International Business Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — 100 Export sales of small
Corporation Ltd. home electric
appliances
BRBERELEARRA A BB 10,000,000 7T HAHENKE
Haier Group E-commerce PRC/ RMB37,500,000 — 80 Online sales of Haier
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China branded home electric
appliances
BREEEFEBAERIE"  HEREAM A R #37,500,0007T BLEEBRME
Zhucheng Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 — 25.8" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
FWEBBIEERAREEQA FE HEAM A R ¥ 2,000,000 7T HERE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR
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REB AR ZRE @

IEMBRARZERNT - (8

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
M ERTZER QB EHEERS
£ By E—E$ 4 = EAREE REB DL FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE i

Yanzhou Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 — 25.8" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

ZMBRAIEEEEFRA T B, A A R # 2,000,000 7T HERE

Rizhao Lingyun Goodaymart PRC/ RMB?2,000,000 — 25.8" Sale of home electric
Electric Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

AREZZEAIEESRARRAA> FEHEAM A R #2,000,0007T HEXRSE

Jining Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 — 25.8" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

BEHHIEERAR DA H R B A A R 2,000,000 7T HERE

Taian Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 — 25.8* Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

RLZAAIEERFR AT B, A A R # 2,000,000 7T HERE

Jinan Goodaymart Trading PRC/ RMB2,000,000 — 25.8" Sale of home electric
Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

BB RIEmEBR AT HE R A A R #2,000,0007C HEXRSE

Qufu Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 — 25.8" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

BhEBRBIEERERA A H R B A A R 2,000,000 7T HERE

Qingdao Yatai Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB2,000,000 = 25.8" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances

S5ERIERFEEER AR HEREANH A R # 2,000,000 7T HERE

Laiwu Goodaymart Electric PRC/ RMB1,000,000 — 26" Sale of home electric

Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
RETHBIEERARAA>  HEREAH A & #1,000,0007C HEXRSE
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/

.REB AR ZRE @m)

IEMBRARZERNT - (8

Percentage of equity

directly attributable to

Name operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
Bk Sz ERTEER AR EEEEG
=E: ERDSE=—F ik HEMEREE REE D TEXER
Direct Indirect
BEE CF:3
Zibo Xinxing Goodaymart Electric ~ PRC/ RMB1,980,000 — 26" Sale of home electric
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
BT ERARIEERHE B B i AR #1,980,000 HERSE
AR A A
Yuncheng Sanlian Home PRC/ RMB2,000,000 = 25.8" Sale of home electric
Appliance Co., Ltd.** Mainland China appliances
BH=HREFR DA H B, P i A R # 2,000,000 7C HERSE
* Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under PRC * BEPEEZEFMATIINERGOE E D
law ¥
** Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law * BERBEZAMAEREEAR

e Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law

They are subsidiaries of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the
Company’s control over them.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

21.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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20. I HERE

31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011
—T——4 —T——%
+ZRA=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARMTIT
Unlisted equity investments, at cost  3F F MR A& & -
RS 8,625 8,625
As at 31 December 2012, all of the Group’s available-for-sale R-ZZE——"F+-HA=+—B &&
investments were stated at cost less impairment because the range of 20 AT AR E Y IR AN IR AT DR (B
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of IR REARMGAGEATEZEER

the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

R BERBREDFETEAIEMGS -

Fi—7
INVENTORIES 21. 7 &
Group ZNS
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011
el — =l==rs
+=—A=+—H” —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E75)) (&%)
Raw materials R 110,111 49,060 32,610
Work in progress TR 26,703 26,403 20,155
Finished goods AL oh 2,342,377 2,039,224 1,305,569
2,479,191 2,114,687 1,358,334
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s inventories with a carrying amount A A RRM sE27E —FFi - R =
of RMB76,740,000 (2011: RMB38,500,000; 1 January 2011: Nil) were T ——_F#+_-_A=+—HBH ' A5EEE®E
pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings as further detailed in BAANRMT6,740,000 L (= &F ——4F:

note 27 to the financial statements.

A R %38,500,000t: —F——4—f
—H ENFEEERAKEBEMNK
o EE A o
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

22. RRIERR KR RE

AEEREEPZEANEZEFAEE
RE -HEFEFPHN BEHNETFPAR
NRE-EEHBER—EA TEFR
FzRERZEZALEE=EA - FEF
BEFERLR AKERNNEES
18 R Ui 1B P U BR AR DA R RS B AR o
BHASROAERERETHEM - EN
ERARAREBRBERERSZ Z T
CtEFPER MABEAETHEER
o AN B L % M RR SR A AR A
FEMERRREMEERIT G- &
W BR SR A S o

RBEMREBURERZRRREZRS

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ST -
Group RE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011
—T——F —E——
+=ZA=+—H —A—HA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E71)
Trade receivables: JE U BR 3K
Within 1 month 18 A A 1,258,157 1,133,392 477,368
1 to 2 months 1Z=218 A 90,325 136,688 186,297
2 to 3 months 2% 3@ A 147,785 117,774 133,645
Over 3 months B @3ME A 430,184 82,124 206,684
1,926,451 1,469,978 1,008,994
Bills receivable AR 4,997,637 4,111,446 2,927,677
6,924,088 5,581,424 3,931,671
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

Group

N K KRR E
BEDR —F
B —ERF

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 year past due
1 to 2 years past due

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

22. EWERAR R EE @)

{8 5 2 K R A & 4% AR A3 BB 2 B W AR R
MEBRZERGRDTAOT !

&
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011
—T——%F 2%
+=ZA=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z3) (E|F)
6,493,904 5,499,300 3,724,987
421,300 81,674 138,739
8,884 450 67,945
5,581,424 3,931,671

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts due
from Haier Affiliates amounting to RMB660,109,000 (2011:
RMB862,688,000; 1 January 2011: RMB2,270,764,000), which are
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the major
customers of the Group. Further details of the sales to these related
parties are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s bills receivable of
approximately RMB122,809,000 (2011: RMB250,453,000; 1 January
2011: RMB518,137,000) were pledged to secure certain of the Group’s
bills payable (note 25).

6,924,088

ARiE A R AR BUE 2 R WK TR AT B 3
RALEZEFEER -

EEBERKREZEKRFIALES ZRA
SETELBRECEFER REB
TR ARAEERA/BANZTRE
BRELRERE RAEEERYEE
REF MxFERDERB LA 2K
[B] o

AREFBERERELEERCERKEH
B B N 7 3k 1B A 8 A R # 660,109,000
T(ZZF ——F: AR #862,688,000
T 2 ——F—fA—H: AR
2,270,764,0007T) * % X H B K B4 T A
CSEFERFPZEERRBEEZEER
FEE - BERZEHEATHEZE
SIS I R AR E14

R—_TE——F+-_A=+—H A&£E
T RERKEEDAR122,809,0007T
—T——4F: AR#¥250,453,0007C i =
T——F—F—H: ARK#518,137,000
TEER - UEBRAEEE TREMNER
(P 5E25) °
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23. BATHOE - R R E AR

RECEIVABLES AR X
Group Company
rEE b N
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2011 2012 2011
—2-=fF —F——F —FT——% —2-—=fF —F——F
TZA=1+—0 gk —A—F =Rl - — A =1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥® TR ARBETFIT AR T T AR® TR ARBETFIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E71)
Prepayments TR 5RIE 775,554 464,370 342,090 257
Deposits b 650 522 522 522
Other receivables H A 8 U AR X 444,683 415,065 321,000 =
1,220,887 879,957 663,612 15,804 779
Impairment A (13,669) (9,441) 9,772) - -
870,516 653,840 15,804 779
The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as HEiEWERFREREBEZZFHNT
follows:
Group Company
g b NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —E——4F —E—— & —ET——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T AR TR ARBT T
At 1 January n—HA—H
Impairment losses recognised AR EEE
(note 6) (HI#E6)
Impairment losses reversed B R E & 1R
(note 6) (FF7E6)
As at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H
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23.

24.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Except for other receivables amounting to RMB13,669,000 (2011:
RMB9,441,000; 1 January 2011: RMB9,772,000) included in the above
balance, none of the above assets is either past due or impaired. Other
than the aforementioned impaired receivables, the financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are amounts due from Haier Affiliates amounting to RMB512,331,000
(2011: RMB222,617,000; 1 January 2011: RMB312,543,000), which
are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. FEATF

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

RIH - EREREAMBER

EE,TM,.E)

B L il 45 88 FT B 15 2 H fth B UK BR A
R#13,669,000c(ZZE——F: ARK
9,441,000t : ZE——HF—A—H: A
R#¥09,772,000T) 4N Ll EEMEE
i@ﬁﬂ@iaﬁﬁoﬁﬁtzmzaiﬁiﬁzwguﬁz
RSN LRI BRI E E A
jtéﬂi\ﬁﬁ;ﬁkmaﬁzm&zﬁﬁ R e

ZK%EZ%EH 15 - m@&ﬁmﬁ%uw

REERKERBEARREABAR
%51233100075(_§——¢ AR
222,617,0000 : —_E——4F—F—H:
A B #312,543,0007T ) ° 3% 7% 8 & £ K
2B RZBHMEE-

24 RERBEEEHERE

Group
rE
31 December 31 December
2011
- &
+=—A=+—H
RMB’000
ARBFTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Cash and BR& RIRIT
bank balances Feg S 4,038,756 2,389,174
Time deposits TE BT 3K 1,391,356 1,660,009
5,430,112 4,049,183
Less: deposits pledged S : it FE 1
for bills payable R A
(note 25) TR
(B3t 25) (61,804) (87,402)
Cash and RekRE
cash equivalents £EEA 5,368,308 3,961,781

Company
NG|
1 January 31 December 31 December
2011 2011
—E——F —E—
—A—H +=A=t+-A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTTT
(Restated)
(E=71)
1,817,377 19,003 16,807
923,047 1,046,403 1,323,435
2,740,424 1,065,406 1,340,242
(3,011) —
2,737,413 1,065,406 1,340,242
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 24. Re Rk BEEEEE @)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances and
time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB4,718,226,000 (2011: RMB2,991,074,000 (as restated); 1 January
2011: RMB1,892,356,000 (as restated)). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
within one year depending on the immediate cash requirement of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks or financial institutions with no recent history of
default.

Included in the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are deposits of
approximately RMB732,317,000 (2011: RMB747,154,000; 1 January
2011: RMB7083,605,000) placed with Haier Group Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Haier Finance”), a financial institution approved by the People’s Bank
of China. The interest rate on these deposits ranged from 0.35% to 3.90%
per annum. Further details of the interest income attributable to the
deposits placed with Haier Finance are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. ENERAREE
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting R EHREMNBER ZERHRIZREZA M
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ST :
Group &
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011
=l==0tF ===05s
+=—A=+—8H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARET T
(Restated) (Restated)
() =)
Trade payables: FERTBRSK :
Within 1 month 1EAB R 2,205,948 2,015,482 912,798
1 to 2 months 1Z221E A 65,350 73,523 46,236
2 to 3 months 2Z=3@A 49,899 32,764 47,343
Over 3 months HB@3E A 229,381 80,250 70,429
2,550,578 2,202,019 1,076,806
Bills payable B E g 410,926 348,889 484,570
2,961,504 2,550,908 1,561,376
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ENERREEDFFE I —RIZN
settled on credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. TI0EQRAZEEHER -
Included in the Group’s trade payables are amounts due to Haier AEECZENEREREENSREB A
Affiliates amounting to RMB1,556,523,000 (2011: RMB1,461,642,000; A FIB A A R #1,556,523,0007T ( =
1 January 2011: RMB592,198,000) , which are repayable on similar T ——F: AR®¥1,461,642,0007C : —
credit terms to those offered by other similar suppliers of the Group. T——4F—H—H: ARK®¥S592,198,000
Further details of the purchases from these related parties are set out in JC) BRI EMA R RERS T
note 14 to the financial statements. AEBHEEZEERAREE - BERZ
EHEATHRECEMF BRI B R
=MIFE14 0
Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge of the AEBEETENZEBUARNEE ZRITHE
Group’s bank deposits amounting to RMB61,804,000 (2011: AA K #61,804,000L (ZF——F: A
RMB87,402,000; 1 January 2011: RMB3,011,000) and the Group’s R #¥87,402,000t : —F ——F — A —
bills receivable amounting to RMB122,809,000 (2011: B : AR#3,011,00070) R A& B 2 &l
RMB250,453,000; 1 January 2011: RMB518,137,000). Z 42 AR #122,809,0007T (=& ——4F :

AR #250,453,000t: —E——%—A
—H : AR®518,137,0007T) {EH 18 o
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26.

HttENERAREFEE

Company
NG|
1 January 31 December 31 December
2011 2012 2011
—T——F% —E-—=f% —Z——f
—A—F Rl - — A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARBT R ARBTT
(Restated)

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
Group
A%
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—B-C-F T —f
p=: Rl - A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AREFTT
(Restated)
(&E31)
Other payables H & 5 BR 3X 5,031,352 4,094,692
Accruals EstEE 1,463,276 1,231,847

6,494,628 5,326,539

(Z31)
3,431,909 18,754
1,025,794 7,256
4,457,703 36,944 26,010

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of
three months.

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals are amounts due
to Haier Affiliates amounting to RMB1,483,862,000 (2011:
RMB1,176,495,000; 1 January 2011: RMB1,217,688,000). These
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 27. 5T EEE
Group AEE

31 December 2012 31 December 2011 1 January 2011
—B--—f+=ZA=+—-H —T——F+=-ZA=+—H —T——%—A—H

Effective Effective Effective

interest interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BERF= ARY EEviES AR BBRANX AR
% E T % e Tt % el FT

Current w8
Other loans — secured  E it & 3 —F& & 4f
Other loans — unsecured £ fth & 3t — # 3 3

5.90 2012 25,000 = = =
= = = 6.50 2011 5,000

25,000 5,000

31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011

—E——%F —E——fF

+=-A=+—8© —A—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®TT

Borrowings repayable: ARUTRBEEZEE:

Within one year or on demand —FE RN IR @A 25,000 5,000
All interest-bearing borrowings were RMB-denominated loans FrEstEEELSIERERUEE ALA
borrowed from Haier Finance. Further details of the interest expenses REBAEZER - MEBTBREAER
attributable to the loans borrowed from Haier Finance are set out in BEZAEYE 2 HEMFBH N & H
note 14 to the financial statements. KK 14 -

The Group’s loans were secured by floating charges over certain of the REBZERHAERETHRES A

Group’s inventories totalling RMB76,740,000 (2011: RMB38,500,000). R ¥ 76,740,000 (ZE——F : AR
38,500,000 7T ) 9 /¥ B # 50 35 9

All of the Group’s loans bore interest at fixed interest rates. AEBENFABEREUBEER RS -

BHEREMERAT —T——F5% 179



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% Y = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

28.

29.

30.

DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The loans borrowed from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable in three years.

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

During the year and in the prior year, the Company entered into
incentive agreements with certain non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries pursuant to which the non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries agreed to meet the prescribed financial and operational
performance targets of the non-wholly-owned subsidiaries laid down
by the Company and the Company agreed to grant put options to
these non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries. In accordance with
the terms of the incentive agreements and subject to the fulfilment of
the prescribed financial and operational performance targets at the
relevant financial year ends during the tenures of the put options, these
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries would be entitled to
exercise the put options to require the Company to purchase part or
whole of the equity interests in the non-wholly-owned subsidiaries at
prices to be determined based on the agreed formula.

The put option liabilities are carried at fair value. The subsequent
change in the carrying amount of the put option liabilities is adjusted
against the put option reserve.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 August 2011, the Company issued 100,000,000 3% convertible
bonds for a nominal value of HK$1,067,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB874,375,000), plus 40,000,000 warrants. There was no movement
in the number of these convertible bonds during the year. The bonds
are convertible into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
the option of the bondholders on or after 18 months after the issue
date up to seven days prior to the fifth anniversary of the issue date.
The bonds carry interest at a rate of 3% per annum, which is payable
half-yearly in arrears on 30 June and 31 December.

180 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012

28.

29.

30.
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FARRUAAMEE  ARFERETHE
XA FE R AR AT 3L BB A IRt
INENEIE 2200 ¢ I Rp = NN
FIZHEEEMBARZAT BB REE
RIWBZ - MARARIEERZEH B
DA IE P B B IR R U RROE B - R
B R R B R R B HIR A 2
HEAMBRFEREREKRTAZHERELE
REBE REWMBARFZERRRSE
RETT (£ B0 HIME A B SRR R BIHZ IR 1B 3
EARNEBENERBEIFZENERA
B #B 2 5 2 AR AXAE

om A A A T (B 55 - RN R
£ A 12 14 0 B0 1O 0% 0 M O 1
PR

CIE: Y 88

RZZE——FNA-_1+WMHE ARQF
#% 7 100,000,000 F B 3[E 2 7] # &
& % - ™ 18 /& 1,067,000,000/% 7t ( 18 &
R A R # 874,375,0007T) © 3 S0 IR 3 1T
40,000,000 RIRHEE - FA » ZZ AR
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 30. IR ES @
The fair value of the liability component of convertible bonds amounting ABRESZEBESIZAFEAAR
to RMB665,426,000 was estimated at the issue date using an #665,426,0007C  JIR BT HEAML R A
equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond without a conversion BRI REEBAUGEERE R H R
option and warrants granted. The residual amount was assigned as the EBIZHEETBNXRGE - Fltro BB
equity component of convertible bonds amounting to RMB149,249,000 5% A0 # R ES AR 149,249,000 7T &
and warrant reserve amounting to RMB59,700,000 and is included in RN E F s A K #59,700,000 7T 2 #E
shareholders’ equity. mED  WET AREERZZF o
The movement of the liability component of convertible bonds is as AMRESC ABE D 2HEHT -
follows:

2012 2011
—F-=F —FT——F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT

At 1 January nw—H—H 669,849 —
Issue of convertible bonds TR AR E S - 665,426
Interest expense (note 7) FEZ T (HEET7) 61,631 21,424

Interest paid/payable B EAFE (26,037) (9,151)
Exchange realignment bE 5 3% (5,800) (7,850)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—A~ 699,643 669,849
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31. PROVISIONS

31. &%

Product warranties

and installation
EmRERETS
2012
—E—_F
RMB’000
AR®T T

691,410
677,543
(567,738)

801,215
(534,331)

Group RE
Note
B &

At 1 January ®n—A—AH

Additional provision g 6

Amounts utilised during the year FRAEHHEHE

At 31 December Rt+t-—_A=+—H

Portion classified as current liabilities FIERBBE D

Non-current portion ERBE o

2011

RMB’000

ARETTT

443,518
792,400
(544,508)

691,410
(466,466)

266,884 224,944

The Group provides installation services and warranties of one to six
years to its customers on washing machines and water heaters, under
which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The amount of the
provision for the warranties is estimated based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of installation services rendered, repairs
and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate.
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32. DEFERRED TAX

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets (mainly relating to accruals and
provisions) and deferred tax liabilities (mainly relating to withholding

taxes) during the year are as follows:

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

2. IE 3T IR

FA O REHRBEE(TELERAEBER
BREHRR)MELEHBAGB(Z2REH
BiAER) BEMT

Group REE
Deferred tax assets
EEHEEE
2012 2011
—E—_fF —ET——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
At 1 January n—HA—H 382,642 221,311
Deferred tax charged to the income FAERZRING 2
statement during the year (note 10) EEFL B (B sE10) 72,992 161,331
At 31 December RN+=—BA=+—8H 382,642
Deferred tax liabilities
EEBEE &
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
At 1 January n—H—H 8,826 9,257
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 X (ta)) (431)
At 31 December Rt+-—_A=+—H 8,826
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. IF E B IH ()

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB29,362,000
(2011: RMB29,977,000; 1 January 2011: RMB31,450,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of RMB678,677,000 (2011: RMB613,215,000
(as restated); 1 January 2011: RMB615,384,000 (as restated)) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

Except for the deferred tax liabilities of RMB8,755,000 (2011:
RMB8,826,000; 1 January 2011: RMB9,257,000), which represent the
withholding taxes for the earnings of the PRC subsidiaries to be
remitted, as at 31 December 2012, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB5,428,682,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB3,714,086,000 (as restated); 1 January 2011: RMB2,333,576,000
(as restated)).
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued) iR E B IE (m)
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of NN &) ) E AR BROR 2 A% S B A B AS
dividends by the Company to its shareholders. A Fr {3 B 18 3R o
ISSUED EQUITY . BRITER
Group rEE
Issued equity
BITRE
RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January 2011 R=—ZE——F—H—H 2,248,843
Exercise of share options 1TiE B AR 26,680
Exercise of warrants 1715 R & 62,386
At 31 December 2011 and beginning of year R—E——F+=—_A=+—HBREF 2,337,909
Exercise of share options 1T A 58,334
Exercise of warrants TRERIREFZ 38,831
Issue of shares BEITIR D 66,107
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=A=+—H 2,501,181
Upon the completion of the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) BEAEESEAH(EHIR-_ZEZTRF—

on 28 January 2005, Haier Group became the controlling shareholders
of the Company through the injection of its equity interests in certain
subsidiaries (the “Relevant Subsidiaries”) principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of top loading washing machines and mobile
phones to the Company. Accordingly, the Group applied the reverse
acquisition basis of accounting to account for the effect of the

Reorganisation.

HZ+tNANBZKE  BREEBEEIA
RERETHB AR ((HERBEAR]
TEREHERAARAHEE NG R
REERBBEF)KASRNRAEZERK
Rotlh AEEEREATEREAY
A EEHEAR -
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33. ISSUED EQUITY (Continued) WB.EETEZW
Group (Continued) REE &)
Under the reverse acquisition basis of accounting, the amount of issued BEYmKE2E RBEBHARYR
equity of the Group stated in the consolidated statement of financial SEEARBMNR I AEB D BEITRES Z
position at the end of the reporting period represents: EREA

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
—E-C-F -5 —Z——F
+=B=+-—-H +=ZA=+—~H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARBFR
() the amount of the issued capital, () RETPER IS A BT R 7
contributed surplus and capital reserves MBARIR-_ZZTHE— A
of the Relevant Subsidiaries at 28 January =+ /\ H B 1T « G A & 8
2005 acquired under the reverse UREAFESE SMREER
acquisition basis of accounting, plus the BRAEZBEREIREADIK)
deemed purchase consideration (net of
deemed distributions) in respect of the
Reorganisation 852,599 852,599 852,599
(i) the amount of share capital (including (i) AARIR -EENERRBETE
share premium) of the Company issued e B I 3 B R B TR KM R
for the acquisition of certain subsidiaries HKBzETHBARMETZ
principally engaged in the manufacture BRA(BRERRDEE) 8
and sale of front loading washing
machines and water heaters in 2006 240,795 240,795 240,795
(i) the changes in share capital and share (i) A< A &) B 5 42 5 44 2 B AR K B& 1
premium of the Company since the mEZE pIE:
Reorganisation, including:
e the repurchases of shares of o RATEERRM
the Company (1,147) (1,147) (1,147)
e the exercise of share options of o KRRRTTEEBAE
the Company 227,288 168,954 142,274
o the exercise of warrants of o ARRITHERMBRER
the Company 127,041 88,210 25,824
e the conversion of convertible bonds o RRAIHMABKRES
of the Company 946,746 946,746 946,746
e the placement of shares of o RNRNAERERMD KK
the Company, net of share BITHRX)
issue expenses 41,752 41,752 41,752
o the issue of shares of the Company o RABITEERE HH
in relation to the management #1710 (B9 E18)
services agreements (note 18) 66,107 — —
2,337,909 2,248,843
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2012 2011
i€ —®-——% —T——4
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FETT

Authorised:

30,000,000,000 (2011: 30,000,000,000) 30,000,000,000 f%

shares of HK$0.1 each

N

(=ZZ ——4 : 30,000,000,000 %)

Issued and fully paid:
2,448,614,277
(2011: 2,346,700,905)
shares of HK$0.1 each

BREEBECIEITL ZKRHN 3,000,000 3,000,000
2012 2011
—®F-=F —F——F

HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$’000 RMB’000

FET ARBT T THET AR T T

equivalent equivalent

£E £E

EBTEAR :

2,448,614,277 Ix
—E——F:

2,346,700,905 fi%)
X EE 0.1 7T
2 RH 244,861 247,686 234,670 239,382
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33. ISSUED EQUITY (continued)

Company (Continued)

A summary of the transactions during the year involving the Company’s

3.BEBITHERZ@

AR F] ()

RERZRARBCETRAZR ZH

issued share capital is as follows: ZMR
Number of Share
sharesin  Issued share premium
issue capital account Total
2817 2817
il 4= [N B 158 E iR @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T ARBT T
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF
and 1 January 2011 +-—A=+—H
kT ——%
—H—H 2,220,843,905 228,871 1,740,263 1,969,134
Exercise of share options ITERE AR 12,857,000 1,059 25,621 26,680
Exercise of warrants 1715 R A 113,000,000 9,452 52,934 62,386
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F
and 1 January 2012 +=—A=+—H
R_T——4%F
—H—H 2,346,700,905 239,382 1,818,818 2,058,200
Exercise of share options (note i) 17 {85 B i% #& (B 3% i) 19,857,000 1,605 56,729 58,334
Exercise of warrants (note ii) TERIRER
(Ff =% ii) 72,000,000 5,883 32,948 38,831
Issue of shares (note iii) BATIR (0 (Ff =) 10,056,372 816 65,291 66,107
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F
+=—A=+—H 2,448,614,277 247,686 1,973,786 2,221,472
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33. ISSUED EQUITY (continued)

Company (Continued)

Notes:

0

(i

(i)

The subscription rights attaching to 13,178,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.7 per share (note 34),
resulting in the issue of 13,178,000 shares of HK$0.1 each for a total
cash consideration of HK$22,403,000 (equivalent to RMB18,109,000). In
addition, the subscription rights attaching to 6,679,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$4.82 per share (note 34),
resulting in the issue of 6,679,000 shares of HK$0.1 each for a total cash
consideration of HK$32,193,000 (equivalent to RMB26,008,000). An
amount of RMB14,217,000 was transferred from the share option reserve
to the share premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

72,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued for cash at a subscription
price of HK$0.66 per share pursuant to the exercise of the Company’s
warrants for a total cash consideration of HK$47,520,000 (equivalent to
RMB38,831,000).

The Company issued 10,056,372 shares of the Company amounting to
approximately RMB66,107,000 to certain Haier franchise store owners
who entered into management services agreements with the Group and
achieved the prescribed performance targets. Further details of the
management services agreements are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to the financial
statements.

Warrants

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 110,000,000
warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of these warrants would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 70,000,000 additional shares of HK$0.66 each and 40,000,000
additional shares of HK$11.20 each.

(i) 13,178,00015 & AR 4 Fr BT 2 32 & 12
ERSERITAETLZRBERETE
(Mt 7 34) & 2 3 7713,178,000 %
EREECIBTZRMN BR &R
& /522,403,000 T(HE N ARK
18,109,0007¢ ) ° It #b +6,679,00017 B
BRIEMM 2 RBEDIRERL82E T
ZRBEEITE(MESS)  BHRET
6,679,000 % & AR E & 0.1/ 7t 2 B 15
4 31] & K 8 582,193,000/ T (1 &
AR #26,0080007T) ° BH AR
14,217,0007C X i IR AE 7T R A 2 E
RIEFEESBRERMEER-

(ii) AERRABRREISETE Bt
72,000,000% & I E {8 0.17%8 7t 2 & 17
EREROBETZRABENANERE S
17+ #38 % KB A 47,520,00078 7T (05
M AR ¥38,831,0007T) °

i)y AAAMERERBITZERRYE %S
WEIEERBEEZETERNA
JE %A A % 1710,056,3720% A& A 7] B
7 2B AEHARYE6,107,0007T ° B
BEERGHE & —PFBHARNY
BHRERMFE18

BB

BRARBZEIERT S RRETE %
TEREZFRHANMBEHRERME34 -

R EE

R & HI K - AN 2 5] A& 110,000,00015 (&
RITERRERE - BRBEAQFRARA
R BREBTEZERABREE IR
770,000,000 8% & P& i 18 0.667% 7T 2 58
SRS 4% B2 40,000,000 A% = A% & (E 11.207%8
TL 2 BBINBR D o
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34. BIRESE

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to the eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the operations of the Group. Eligible
participants of the share option scheme include any employee,
executive or officer of the Group (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors of the Company) and any
supplier, consultant, agent, adviser, shareholder, customer, partner,
business associate who, in the opinion of the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”), has contributed to the Group. The Company’s
current share option scheme became effective on 8 June 2011 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date. The Company’s current share option scheme and
the previous share option scheme terminated on 8 June 2011 are
collectively referred as the “Share Option Scheme”.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme is such number of shares,
when aggregated with shares subject to any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this 1%
limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company (and if
required, the holding company) and the shareholders’ approval of the
Company (and if required, the approval of the shareholders of the
holding company) at a general meeting.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
are subject to the approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (and if required, the independent
non-executive directors of the holding company), excluding the
independent non-executive director(s) of the Company and the holding
company who is/are the grantee(s) of the options. In addition, any
share option granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of grant or with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the shares of the Company as at the date of grant) in excess of
RMBS million, within any 12-month period, is subject to the issue of a
circular by the Company (and if required, the holding company) and the
shareholders’ approval of the Company (and if required, the approval of
the shareholders of the holding company) in advance at a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
RMB1 or HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the board of directors, and
commences on a specified date and ends on a date which is not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options or the expiry
date of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the board of
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (i)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of
the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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34. BRETE w0

MARRZEE BReTHRABXEE
BEXFSESSA2EMWBEEARHE
B BANERBARRZEBYIEHR
TEE(R(WEFTB)ERARIZE L
FHRITES )MAEFRBEREARAZ
ARNBRERARIBIIEATESRK
HN) o BEAN - R RME R+ =@ A B | A
RAIZEERRRBILIERITE S E
EEEAMNBBARLEZEREMS R
2R BBERHEAARNRRBEEHTR
B01%skBERERLE A AR A K
Mz mEE)H#iE A K 5000,000
T BIARRBE(R(IMABFTE)EBRADF)
BHEBARELRBRRERASHEKAA
AR (R(MEFEE)ERAR ZRE)
B o

BRHBERE 2 EZA N EE A e 28
BFARARASNRBAREGHEAR
BITS1B T REM CREBREZ
THEHOAESSET hiEEz A HH
BERHBREDBEFTTNEBERTF2
HEEREEIHmE ARFEERE)
Bk e

BREZTEERESSET  ETF
BRTI=Fz2&®E : (\A2AKRMH
REHMER(WEARRZR)EBIME
HRERMF WM E: ([i)A 2 F D
REBRRLE BRI AER S B R
BAMERMINZFHRTE K (i) &
REIRMD 2 HIE -

PR EE T A AR KRR
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34, BRAEFTE @
The following share options were outstanding under the Share Option LTEFEANEREFZEBTNEARATEZ
Scheme during the year: R
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——%F

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price [oJ I  eXxercise price options

ke 35 niEFEH

TEE BRE=E TE(E RS E

HKS$ per share HK$ per share

sRET %8 T
At 1 January n—HA—H 100,217,500 2.52 98,440,000
Granted during the year FARAKE - 7.64 18,780,000
Cancelled/lapsed during the year £ RN ELUH 2k 4% (5,880,700) 2.18 (4,145,500)
Exercised during the year FRITE (19,857,000) 1.82 (12,857,000)
At 31 December R+t-—A=+—H 3.87 74,479,800 3.59 100,217,500
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share RENITEZBRERITEES B 2M
options exercised during the year was HK$10.09 per share (2011: EFHREAEERI1009BT(ZF——

HK$7.73). F 77387 °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

31 December 2012 —&——

34. BRETE @

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2012
—E—_—F
Exercise price*
TEE
HKS$ per share
BRET

Number of options

BRERE

11,192,000

28,412,000

16,095,800

17,780,000

1,000,000

74,479,800

*

Exercise period

1THE

18/09/2010-
17/09/2013
—E—BE

A 'I' N EI ES

18/09/2010-
17/09/2014
—e-2f
hB+NBE
—E-mE
nA++A

18/05/2011-
17/05/2014
—E——%
FA+NBE
—E-NE
EA+LtH

16/12/2012-
15/12/2014
—EB—_—F

T=ZA+ABE

—E-|mE
+=—HA+EHH

16/06/2012-
15/12/2014
—EBE——F
RATARHEE
—E-NF
+=A+#HA

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the

Number of options

BREHRE

el = el

HIR mARITEBREZITEE
ﬂi@ﬁET

2011
—T——F
Exercise price

T (B~
HK$ per share
A% 7% 7T

*

Exercise period

171858

21,667,000

35,051,500

24,819,000

17,780,000

1,000,000

1.70

1.70

4.82

7.58

8.67

18/09/2010-
17/09/2013
—ET—ZF
AA+NBZE
—T—=F
AA++EH

18/09/2010-
17/09/2014
—T—TF
NA+NAB=E
—E -4
nA++tH

18/05/2011—
17/05/2014
2%
AA+NABZE
—_=— P;EI Eﬁ
FA++EAH

16/12/2012—
15/12/2014
—E——F

+=—A+H=

—E-—MmF
+=ZA+HA

16/06/2012—
15/12/2014
—TE -4
~NA+TABRE
—ET—NF
+=—A+HH

100,217,500

*

case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s

share capital.

BREZITER
AR HRAR Tﬂxﬁﬁjﬁﬁi\ﬁﬂiﬁwﬂiﬁ
F % -

BHERKEERAAF

A BC B H AR Bk B 1T
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. BIRESTE @)

There was no share options granted during the year and the fair value
of equity-settled share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2011 was estimated as at the date of grant, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were

FABERLBEREE MEE_T——
FH_A=Z+T - RALEFERBARKE
HeBEREAFEREL ARG XL
B BB R R AR - TR

granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used: HATAER 28 AE :
2011
—F2——%F
Dividend yield (%) R B % (%) 0
Historical volatility (%) JE 2 1@ (%) 62.75
Risk-free interest rate (%) 45 3 B M) 2 (%) 0.523
Contractual life of options (year) BIRES L FEH(F) 3
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) INEFHRE (FRBT) 6.74

The expected volatility is determined based on the historical volatility of
the share price of the company. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

During the year, the Group recognised a share option expense of
RMB25,139,000 (2011: RMB1,250,000), RMB7,877,000 (2011:
RMB15,959,000) and RMB6,604,000 (2011: RMB12,744,000) in
respect of share options granted during the years ended 31 December
2011, 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, respectively.

The 19,857,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the
issue of 19,857,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new share
capital of HK$1,986,000 (equivalent to RMB1,605,000) and share
premium of HK$76,354,000 (equivalent to RMB56,729,000), as further
detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 74,479,800 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 74,479,800 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$7,448,000 (equivalent to RMB5,988,000) and share premium of
HK$280,903,000 (equivalent to RMB225,824,000) (before issue
expenses).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

35.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of 15,171,000
share options with the exercise price of HK$1.70 per share, 1,946,600
share options with the exercise price of HK$4.82 per share, 1,707,000
share options with the exercise price of HK$7.58 per share were
exercised.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
55,655,200 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 2% of the Company’s

shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

@)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 91 to 92 of the financial
statements.

The Group’s capital reduction reserve arose from the reduction in
the nominal value of each of the issued shares of the Company
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the cancellation of paid-up capital
of HK$0.09 on each of the issued shares of the Company
effective from 8 March 2007. The Group’s capital reserve
originally represented the difference between the credit arising
from the capital reduction of HK$1,657,866,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,758,526,000) and the amount transferred to eliminate the
accumulated losses of the Group of HK$1,196,370,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,186,521,000), less the amount of proposed final
dividend to be distributed out of the contributed surplus of the
Company.

The capital redemption reserve arose from the share repurchases
in the previous year.

The share-based payment reserve arose from the Group’s
management services agreements with certain Haier franchise
store owners, as further detailed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

34.

35.

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

BB RS E (a)

MRS B AR%E - & $£15,171,00015 8 A&
¥E(F 1T EE1.708 7T) ~ 1,946,6001%
BB (BT B 4.82/8 L) 1,707,000
DERE(FRITEET.S8E L) B BT
fE o

RUETBRRIEEBH  XRFFBE
P& 4% 5t & T 55,655,200 17 &1 & 17 2 B8 A%
#HEERARANRZADETROZ
#12% °

it

@ AKE
AEERBAEFTEAEBEZHE
FREERHEEHFE BNV BRE
NEBFREZIREERBERE -

REBZBRAEBRFEEEEBR
—EE+HF=ZA\NBEBBF
HARABRERTRHOZE
HRBA0ETL HARAE
B B BT D 2 EE B 0104 7T
Bl Z001 BT AEBZER
HERBH BB ARESZER
1,657,866,0007% 7T (18 & I A R #&
1,758,526,000 7T ) £& #2 $ DA ¥ 85 X
& @ Z 5t &5 18 1,196,370,00078 T
(HER AR 1,186,521,0007T) Z
EZFH OBRBEARRZEBARBE
2 BR R HARE B, -
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

(@)

Group (Continued)

The share option reserve comprise the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

The put option reserve arose from the Company’s incentive
agreements with certain non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, as further detailed in note 29 to the financial
statements.

The warrant reserve related to the convertible bonds issued
during the year, as further detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The non-controlling interests reserve arose from changes in the
ownership interests of subsidiaries, without a loss of control.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
transfer a portion of their profits to reserve funds. These funds
are non-distributable in the form of cash dividends. When
determining the appropriations to these funds, the net profits of
these subsidiaries are determined in accordance with the
applicable financial rules and regulations of the PRC.
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35. RESERVES (Continued)
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35. fw# @

(b) Company b) A2 T
Reserves
1
Share- Retained Equity
Share Capital  Exchange based Share profits/ Proposed  component of
premi Contri | Jemption fl i payment option (accumulated Warrant Total Final convertible
Notes account surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) reserve reserve  Dividend bonds Total
URE TRE
B4 BERE HERD *ff2 BRE RERR/ 2RER RRAH i .3
i #ER HABS i 1 1 #E  (RiER) ®E  GHELE B BEHD ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTE ARBTT AR%TR ARETR ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETR  AR%TR AR%TR
At 1 January 2011 R-T——F§
—A—H 1,740,263 646,996 184 (254,062) = 39,060 36,082 - 2208523 = - 2208523
Total comprehensive loss
for the year FREAFHRLE = = - (116903 - - (74,424) - (191,827 - - (191,827)
Issue of shares E510) 33 78,555 = = = = (7,404) = = 71,151 - - 71,151
Issue of convertible bonds BARES 30 - - - - - - - 59,700 59,700 - 149249 208,949
Management services arrangements % 72 IR % 24 18 - - - - 70,000 - - - 70,000 - - 70,000
Equity-settled share URAHEH 2
option arrangements BREZH 34 - - - - - 29,953 - - 29,953 - - 29,953
Transfer of share option reserve RN B AR 1% i 1
upon forfeiture of share options A B fR
ELt 2 = = - - - (1,666) 1,666 - - - - -
At 31 December 2011 and RZZ——F
1 January 2012 +-B=t-H
R=Z-Z%
—-A-H 1,818,818 646,996 184 (370,965) 70,000 59,943 (36,676) 59,700 2,248,000 - 149,249 2,397,249
Total comprehensive loss
for the year FREEFRRE = = = (23,001) = = (118,246) — (141,247) - — (141,247)
Issue of shares LGP0 ki) 154,968 - - - 66,107)  (14.217) - - 74,644 - - 74,644
Equity-settled share URAEEE 2
option arrangements BRERH 34 - - - - - 39,620 - - 39,620 - - 39,620
Transfer of share option reserve P BE IR % U 44
upon forfeiture of share options ~~ #EEE R
HEER - - - - - (3,989) 3,989 - — - - -
Proposed final 2012 dividend BE-E——F
FERE 12 — (157,280 = = = = = —  (157480) 157,480 = =
At 31 December 2012 R=Z—=4F
+-A=+-H 1,978,786 489,516 184 (393,966) 3,893 81,357 (150,933) 59,700 2,083,537 167,480 149,249 2,370,266

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders
subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended)
and bye-laws of the Company.

RRAZ BN ERRFTEN B
RAEBRNAFEEBAARRRR
BRREMCHTRNDEEBEZIER
BEBEARE NN\ —FRREME
B BARKRAEETARE
—AN—FRADE(EEFT) IR
REZARAANERT DK T
BR e
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the Company
had any significant contingent liabilities.

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to the
financial statements) to Haier Affiliates under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

36. RAREE

R HIK - A % [ R A I 41

BEREAREE-

37. KEMW T H

(@ FAHEAA

AEERBEEHORIRER
EME(MBHRERME16) HET
BRBEAR -FEZHAR/NT

—FELF-

RBERR - AEEREN T 5 H
B2I8 2z AEEBUE 2 & &M # M
EBEPEARREUREEES AR

Group
rE

U
2012
—E-—F
RMB’000
AR®T T
Within one year —F A
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZHhF(BEEERT)
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2011
—F——%F
RMB’000

ARBTT

1,008

1,008
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. REMN R HEm)
(Continued)
(b) As lessee (b) EHEFEA
The Group leases certain properties under operating lease REBERBLEERNLHEBERS
arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms Ty -HAMEZHBREEAN
ranging from one to eight years. F—FENF-
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company RMEHR  AEB RARQERE
had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable R THEREE 2 TREEUE 2 &
operating leases falling due as follows: EHANBARENEHSLE
A
Group Company
rE AR

2012 2011 2012 2011
e e = T R — T F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R IUNSLERN ARMTT NS

Within one year —F A 1,378
In the second to fifth years, % —Z& A4

inclusive (BiEEEMF)
After five years AFE 2,995

135,627 119,697
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38. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 37(b)
above, the Group had the following commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

Group

38. FiE

Authorised, but not contracted for:
Land and buildings

Contracted, but not provided for:
Property, plant and equipment

REH
2012
—2-=fF
RMB’000
AR® Tt
BHEBARETL -
T REF 179,008
SHEEESZ LR

Y WE REE 106,883

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any

significant commitments.
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2011
—F——F
RMB’000

ARETT

267,677
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39, B T A5 %8

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RERR SEVKITAZEEAEAN
—F

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Group rE

Financial assets
31 December 2012

Available-for-
Loans and sale financial
receivables assets
BERR Al e
FE Wt AR X BB EE wEm
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T ARMT T

Available-for-sale investments AT ERE = 2,925
Trade and bills receivables FEURERREE 6,924,088 6,924,088
Other receivables (note 23) H i 7 Ut BR 3K (P 3£ 23) 431,014 431,014
Pledged deposits BEHF R 61,804 61,804
Cash and cash equivalents HehBReEFEEE 5,368,308 5,368,308
12,785,214 12,788,139
31 December 2011 —E-——f+=A=+—H

Available-for-

Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total

B R A s
JE Uk BR 5K MEEE B EE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E%)
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE — 8,625 8,625
Trade and bills receivables YRR R ERE 5,581,424 = 5,681,424
Other receivables (note 23) H b 18 Uk BR 3 (BT 5% 23) 405,624 = 405,624
Pledged deposits 2 E BT 87,402 — 87,402
Cash and cash equivalents BHehReEEEE 3,961,781 = 3,961,781
10,036,231 8,625 10,044,856
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

H

39.

Group (Continued) KEE @)
Financial assets (Continued) BB EE (&)
1 January 2011 —=E=E———H—H
Available-for-
Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total
Bk A&
JE W BR 3R MIEEE Az
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E%))
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE — 8,625 8,625
Trade and bills receivables EUWEE R R ER 3,931,671 — 3,931,671
Other receivables (note 23) H b U BR 3R (P 3£ 23) 311,228 — 311,228
Pledged deposits EE TR 3,011 = 3,011
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEeEEIER 2,737,413 — 2,737,413
6,983,323 8,625 6,991,948
Financial liabilities
BaE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
—E——4F —F——%F
+=—A=+—8” —HA—H

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

2 65 A A B BR

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

K A 51 B

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

S K AN 51 B

Trade and bills payables

Other payables (note 26)
Interest-bearing borrowings

Due to non-controlling shareholders
Convertible bonds

ZHBaE 2B EE 2B aE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBET T ARBET T

(Restated) (Restated)

(E7)) (&%)

R RARERE 2,961,504 2,550,908 1,561,376
H th & 15 BR 3Kk (i 5E26) 5,031,352 4,094,692 3,431,909
SFEEE 39,800 25,000 5,000
FEATIEE AR AR R 5K 1A 59,537 — —
Al E 5 699,643 669,849 =

The Group’s put option liabilities are carried at fair value and the

changes in fair value are recognised through the put option reserve.

i -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. WBITESTEwm

(Continued)
Company

Financial assets

Loans and receivables
BER R EWRERR
2012 2011
—B-C-F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®T T ARBT T

Due from subsidiaries (note 19)
Cash and cash equivalents

JE U FfS /B8 A B 5k 3R (PP 7E19) 249,671 145,318

Financial liabilities

Other payables (note 26)
Due to subsidiaries (note 19)
Convertible bonds

HehHLZEER 1,065,406 1,340,242
B EE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
RBERAIERZUEEE

2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
HAth fE 1 BR 3K (M 5E26) 36,944 18,754
FEAT BT /8 2 R 5k 38 (PP 7E19) 80,574 80,698
Al R (& 5 699,643 669,849

769,301
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40. AR ERAFBE R

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

Group

REHE

Carrying amounts

AEBRAQARZHBIAZEREAR
NSSERINE

BREE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2011 2011
=W ==_F —ET——4F
+=-A=+—A8 —A—AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(=7)) (&%)
Financial assets BEEE

Trade and bills receivables BURER R EE 6,924,088 5,581,424 3,931,671

Other receivables (note 23) H i U BR 3R
(Fff 5£23) 431,014 405,624 311,228
Pledged deposits BEEHFR 61,804 87,402 3,011
Cash and cash equivalents BekIReEHEEB 5,368,308 3,961,781 2,737,413
10,036,231 6,983,323

Financial liabilities BEaE

Trade and bills payables FERT R R R R 2,961,504 2,550,908 1,561,376

Other payables (note 26) H b FEfRT BRI
(HS3E26) 5,031,352 4,094,692 3,431,909
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE 39,800 25,000 5,000
Due to non-controlling shareholders  J& 15 JF 22 I% i% 58 7 18 59,537 - -
Put option liabilities RobHEAE 428,270 115,000 —
Convertible bonds AR B H 699,643 669,849 —
7,455,449 4,998,285

204 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012




40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
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40. 2 FERQXFES

Group (Continued) AEE (#)
Fair values
AF¥E
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
=5 —T——%F —T——F
+=A=+—H +=A=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARET T ARBET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) 7))
Financial assets BKEE
Trade and bills receivables YRR R EE 6,924,088 5,581,424 3,931,671
Other receivables (note 23) H At Uk BR 3R
(Fft 5E23) 431,014 405,624 311,228
Pledged deposits B8 HFEHK 61,804 87,402 3,011
Cash and cash equivalents BENBESEEIER 5,368,308 3,961,781 2,737,413
10,036,231 6,983,323
Financial liabilities =R
Trade and bills payables e BRI R E 2,961,504 2,550,908 1,561,376
Other payables (note 26) H 1th fE S BR X
(Bt 5£26) 5,031,352 4,094,692 3,431,909
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 39,800 25,000 5,000
Due to non-controlling shareholders & < 3£ 4% % f% 5 2 18 59,537
Put option liabilities Ron A E 428,270 115,000 =
Convertible bonds MR ES 709,789 669,849 —
7,455,449 4,998,285

All of the Group’s available-for-sale investments were stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

7 4 B P 4 IR TR AR AR R
BHIE HEASEATFE & 6E
BEAUBESRARAFERETSE
M8 -
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(Continued)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

0. AFERAFEER @

AREERARPZMETEZREER
NFEWT

Company ¥ YN
Carrying amounts Fair values
AR TH B nFE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-——F —E——% =E-—C=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR T T ARBT AR T T
Financial assets MBEE

Due from subsidiaries (note 19) & Y [ft & A 7] 3% 18

(Mf 5£19) 249,671

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE

I8 H 1,065,406

1,315,077

Financial liabilities =R
Other payables (note 26) H fth &+ BR 3Kk

(Kt 5£26) 36,944
Due to subsidiaries (note 19) JE 5B BB & R RUE

(P 5E19) 80,574
Convertible bonds AR EH 699,643

817,161

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, other
receivables and payables and trade and bills receivables and payables
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the liability portion of
the convertible bonds is estimated using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond without a conversion option and warrants. The
fair value of put option liabilities are measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market data.
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1,340,242 1,065,406 1,340,242

1,485,560 1,315,077 1,485,560

145,318 249,671 145,318

36,944

80,574
709,789

769,301 827,307 769,301

MBEERAGZATENDREBIA
ERXRGEFEERMIEIBANGR
HENBATETRSMEBEFHEEA
BRe TOIAERBRIDARMETERTF
(=

RehHeEERE EEREFR H
fib FEUR R S FE AT BR AR - B AR SR R
BARBNERRRBEZ A FERZSE
TAZEREERE TEREAASZEFT
ANEHAIH- TkESFBERD
ZRFEATEBERBEERZBAUE
ZERBEEBZBAETHENERMGEE R
EHBARZ ATERGHERDG(EY
ECHERAFEBEEAZEZEMEH AR
BHYIFRAERMGBIBESH)FE -
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

(Continued)

Company (Continued)

The fair values of the interest-bearing borrowings and amounts due
from and to subsidiaries have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing
the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
any inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs)
None of the Group’s assets is measured at fair value.

The Group’s put option liabilities are measured at fair value and are
categorised in Level 3 of the fair value measurements.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2011:
Nil).

40.

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

ANEERAFEESE S @m

ARQF ()
AAEEEREREENKEARREAZ
RFEDBBBERAEGRR  FEAR
NRIGR B B EARR AR Al o T AR 2 47
REFRBHARASREFH -

ATFEER
AR TSI SRET RHEBHH LA
ZRATHE:

F-H REBAEEREEEZRD
B2 BECREBE) MHER
T

R RBAEHEIRAFEAE
yemEERMETREZ
ARBAZIEED R ED
F8

FFCUWFRBABER S EECGE
AERERGA)MHECIER
FEEERREZEABAL
fBET AT ERFE

BMEAEEEERAFEFE-

AEBZREHAEBETIRAFET
R U BERE=ZRDFEFE -

FR E-REF_F2BAAEQFE
AAEZEE TUYBEEAIERE=R
ZER(ZBE——F |-
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BERREEEEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
borrowings, convertible bonds and cash and short term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade and bills
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These exposures
mainly arise from sales or purchases by the Group’s operating units in
Mainland China in currencies other than the units’ functional currency (i.e.,
RMB). The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions in an
effort to reduce the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rates
of the Euro, United States Dollar, Japanese Yen and Great Britain
Pound, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit
before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities). There is no significant impact on other components of the
Group’s equity.

208 Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2012

EEE FENBIABEFEEE
ABMBRESEKREEEHNER - ZEH
BITAZTEZEENERAKEZES
BE-AGKEEZREEMMBEERE
B WEEXEBEXBZERERLRE
PYEINE TV ES

REECEFE AKRBZBRAETE
TEMMBEIAES -

REREEHHTAZ IEAB A
AR EEARRADHECEAKR B
BRERHESERR 2 ERRERR
M -

S8 L B

AEBPRRHEBRAR - ZFRARE
EREAEEED R A 2 EEEMIA
BUDaEE® (AR RINEEET
HENEE o A& B EFT I A E
R 5 AR AR S B HER 2 SN RER o

TRINTRBERR  EMALMBER
TEZELT BAKBERBRBAGNZ
BE Xt AEREBEERZEEA
REH I HBRE(ANEBEERER
ZRVPERE) EXSEHHAKEEM
BEHOUEEATE -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BEEREEEEREKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (4&)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) Sh s [ B ()

Increase/(decrease) in  Increase/(decrease) in

exchange rates profit before tax

R B A% R

ExEHA (T K i Crl &)

% RMB’000

ARET T

31 December 2012 —E——#+=-H=+—H

If RMB strengthens against Euro

If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar
If RMB strengthens against Japanese Yen

If RMB strengthens against Great Britain Pound
If RMB weakens against Euro

If RMB weakens against United States Dollar

If RMB weakens against Japanese Yen

If RMB weakens against Great Britain Pound

31 December 2011

If RMB strengthens against Euro

If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar
If RMB strengthens against Japanese Yen

If RMB strengthens against Great Britain Pound
If RMB weakens against Euro

If RMB weakens against United States Dollar

If RMB weakens against Japanese Yen

If RMB weakens against Great Britain Pound

1 January 2011

If RMB strengthens against Euro

If RMB strengthens against United States Dollar
If RMB strengthens against Japanese Yen

If RMB strengthens against Great Britain Pound
If RMB weakens against Euro

If RMB weakens against United States Dollar

If RMB weakens against Japanese Yen

If RMB weakens against Great Britain Pound

AR SERETE
WAREREXTIHE
WMAR Y BETE
AR R EEAE
WARBLERERE
WARBHETRE
WAREEAREZE
AR EERE

—E——%+=-A=+—H

AR BT E
MARKRETAE
WAREL AR E
WARBLREETE
AR LB ERE
WMARBEEXTRE
WARELEBAERZE
WARBLEERZE

—E——%—A—H
HWARBEBEAE
HMARBEETLHE
WARBE BEAE
WARY L EEFE
WARBLBRERE
WARY L ETRE
WAREE BEEE
WARS N ZERE

O o o0 o0 o0 O

a

g & g

[©20N¢) BNG) BNe)]

GG RGEG

BHERKEERAAF

(1,429)
2,612
(1,004)

(10)
1,429
2,612
1,004
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

41.

BHERABEEEEEREE

(%)

Credit risk EERR

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It AEEEEKRT M EERTFZE=H
is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit HETRG - BEAEBZHRER FIEH
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, EUREFERAETRSZELPHELR
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the EEZREREF  WIN REBINEEE

Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer/counterparty and by geographical
region. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are
widely dispersed in different sectors.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 22 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and other

REWRFR S MAKE @R ZIER
[\ B 3 N EK e

ZK%E@EM%EE(@%E@&L%@
%EIEE&EmVH&ﬁE%A)ZEE

ROHUTFENMESE  FRER *H
& <E§§?I,E=ZE%EE°

HRAEBEEERERAREERIEN
FE=TETRS  FitI 8 EREH-IE
H-EERREPREREF RXZY
FREMBETER BRAEERER
RFBHAEDOHMRITRTEZEFA
Ko AEBERLEEREF 2EERAR -

ERASEBERERKERZEEMR
—HE(CBUE - NI TS IRR M 224 5E -

REE T ERE

AEFEZEBRRADESE T AEE
ExfnER AEITAZEENKT
AR %EE (I mEKER) 22 H A
ARBEXB AR RE -

AEEZEBRRBEBERRITERRE
MEEARATRRESHBES ZHE

borrowings and convertible bonds. It is the Group’s policy to renew its MHEEE 2T  AEBZHBER
loan agreements with Haier Finance or major local banks in Mainland EAREE I ZL HETERLEMEERH
China upon the maturity of the Group’s short term bank loans and MMEEESR BRI BT
other borrowings when funding is needed. Bl i&jz T A RITEIN 2 BB o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:

31 December 2012

On demand or

no fixed terms
of repayment
RERD

& B E B R
RMB’000
AR®T

Trade and bills payables FERTBR TR R E %
Other payables (note 26) H i & - BR 3K

(Kt 5 26) 5,031,352
Interest-bearing borrowings &t B f& & =
Due to non-controlling JE 1 SRR AR IR R
shareholders KIE
Put option liabilities Rom A E
Convertible bonds A] #2 IR (&

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

M BEEREEBERBE

(%)

REE € E B @

RBEHR RRCE QBN KE
HF AKEMBRAEZIMABRAT

—E-—-—fF+=A=+-—H
Within Beyond
one year one year Total
—FR —F#& st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB®TRE AR®TR AR®TR

2,943,590 2,961,504

5,031,352
39,800

59,537 59,537
374,700 428,270
699,643 699,643

3,036,960 1,151,794 9,220,106
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% Y = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2011

On demand or

M BEEBREEEERBEE

(%)

REBEEER @

—E——&%+-H=+—8H

no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RER
i [E) 7 B —FR —F& 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T ARETF T AR T T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E73)) (E71) (E3))
Trade and bills payables ENERRER — 2,528,991 21,917 2,550,908
Other payables (note 26) H i FE 1 BR 3K
(Bt 3£26) 4,094,692 - — 4,094,692
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE — 25,000 — 25,000
Put option liabilities RonHEAE = 900 114,100 115,000
Convertible bonds Al 2 B & 55 — — 669,849 669,849
4,094,692 2,554,891 805,866 7,455,449
1 January 2011 —E——&F—F—H
On demand or
no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RER
i [E 7 B R —FR —F& 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T ARETF T AR T T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E751) (E351) (E31) (E751)
Trade and bills payables EANERREE — 1,545,618 15,758 1,561,376
Other payables (note 26) Hfth B BR X
(Bt 5E26) 141,950 3,289,959 — 3,431,909
Interest-bearing borrowings REE — 5,000 — 5,000
141,950 4,840,577 15,758 4,998,285
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BERBEEEERBEXR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (4E)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRRE @
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of RMEEBR HREFTHEN NN R
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, B ARARPHEABEZIBHEBRAOT :
is as follows:
2012

On demand or
no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RERD
& B E B R —FR —F#& st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T T AR¥ T AR®T

Other payables (note 26) H & - BR X

(Fft 5E26) 36,944
Due to subsidiaries (note 19) &t [} B A &) 7k 18
(H7E19) 80,574 80,574

Convertible bonds ] ¥ jL (& 5 699,643 699,643

780,217 817,161

2011 —E——4

On demand or

no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
i & E R S —FR —F1& st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETT ARETT ARETT

Other payables (note 26) H b & 1< BR 3R

(M 7E26) 18,754 — — 18,754

Due to subsidiaries (note 19) &t it B A &) 72k 1B
(M 7E19) — — 80,698 80,698
Convertible bonds A] #a R (& & — — 669,849 669,849
18,754 — 750,547 769,301
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt %5 ¥R 2% Y = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt
divided by total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing
ratio not exceeding 50%. Total debt includes interest-bearing
borrowings, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders and
convertible bonds. The gearing ratios as at the ends of the reporting
periods were as follows:

41.

BHERABEEEEEREE

(%)

EAXERE
AEMERER 2 EEABENRES
EESEEE 2N REBBRAR
BOUXHEEBRAREAREED
R o

AEBBRBELERLSHERERAERL
BEREE - BEFIABRERZERE K
SEMREFAERREEMN ZKE - AR
RREBEAXNBITR -XEEBTZAE
MINEHEMEARBERFRR -BHE_T
——F+-_A=+—HRZZE—FF
ZA=t+t—BHLFE EHEALAEREE
Z BEABEFITEZS -

AEERAEAARLEX(MELBRE
BRAERARE) ERER - AEBZHEK
REFERBBLEERTHER0% - B
RESEBEE BNFERERRR
BRAHBEES - REBEEHR BEAA
A EMT

Group K&
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
—B-C—F —E——%F —E——%F
TZA=1+—H |yl —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T ARBF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E731) (E71)
Interest-bearing borrowings AEEE 39,800 25,000 5,000
Due to non-controlling shareholders JE 1 JE 458 AR IR BR 5k I8 59,537 — —
Convertible bonds Al 2 j% (& 5 699,643 669,849 —
Total debt BEXEE 798,980 694,849 5,000
Total equity EmBE 5,840,228 4,305,801 2,834,308
Gearing ratio BEARBREH X 13.7% 16.1% 0.2%
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42.

43.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a total of 70,000,000
warrants were exercised for 70,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each at a subscription price of HK$0.66 per share. Also, a total of
18,824,600 share options were exercised, as further detailed in note 34
to the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 18 March 2013.

42.

43.

5t 55 3R 2% B = (AR

31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H

EHRERE

]S H AR % & ££70,000,00017 R P #E
BRELTHFE AR R E §AR0.667 TR EY
70,000,000/% & & E 1E0.1% T < & @
B o b A1 - 3 a0 B 7S R R BT SR 34 —
SEat - A $£18,824,60017 & IR HEE1TIE o

Bk 2 H

BBERFER - Z—=F=A+N\BEK
E=eEREETE-
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Five Year Financial Summary
IFMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. The
amounts for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 have
been restated as a result of the common control business combination, as
detailed in note 2.1 to the financial statements.

BT B A 2 B B TR S
AE- BERIRBESAE - BE-FF)
F OCTEAE CF-FER-F—£
“ASt-BLAEZEWE ERKREH
TRBAHTES  HERRABBEM B
2.1 °

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ+-A=+t—HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Pl T —F "—T-FTF —"ZTTNF ZZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IRl ARETT AR®TT AR®TT AR%®Tr
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E31)) (&%) (E7F) (&%)
RESULTS E
REVENUE A 55,615,047 50,089,857 36,948,537 14,850,292 16,260,581
Cost of sales 5 € R AR PRl (42,582,504)  (32,108,100) (11,538,319)  (13,488,356)
Gross profit EF 8,941,181 7,507,263 4,845,437 3,311,973 2,772,225
Other income and gains H U A K& Uz 106,250 99,423 74,744 48,768 42,021
Selling and distribution costs HERDHE R RGNS (4,157,305)  (2,546,846)  (1,987,942)  (1,739,906)
Administrative expenses TH B PREPRCIY (1,572,964) (923,109) (694,870) (798,667)
Other expenses and losses HEiBE R KEE (16,651) (60) (1,082) (12,634) (11,993)
Finance costs B & KA (64,504) (22,492) (6,277) (7,980) (14,816)
Share of profits and losses of & {5 K [R)42 )
jointly-controlled entities BEEIERN — 5,318 3,783 4173
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B4 A %= A 2,244,262 1,853,865 1,448,185 661,098 253,037
Income tax expense TSR (5637,285) (386,942) (430,096) (149,065) (42,029)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 1,706,977 1,466,923 1,018,089 512,033 211,008
Attributable to: AT &7 FEfh :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETI 8 1,695,122 1,407,458 975,048 455,902 190,582
Non-controlling interests FEIE A RE 25 11,855 59,465 43,041 56,130 20,426
1,706,977 1,466,923 1,018,089 512,032 211,008
ASSETS, LIABILITIESAND NON- ¥E - 88K
CONTROLLING INTERESTS ey £
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAHE 18,213,266 14,355,605 9,971,089 6,496,560 5,262,991
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEHAE (PRI (10,049,804) (7,136,781) (4,688,441) (4,011,521)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 3k 12 [ £ 2% (300,502) (280,416) (228,459) (157,359) (109,923)
5,539,726 4,025,385 2,605,849 1,650,760 1,141,647
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